
 

   

Lowell City Council 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, January 15 at 7:00 P.M. 
Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street 

 
 

Call to Order/Roll Call/Pledge 
 
Councilors:     Mayor Bennett ____ Angelini ____ Harris ____ 
 

Approval of Agenda 
 
New City Council Protocol 

1. Oath of Office 
2. Selection of Mayor 
3. Selection of Council President 

 
Consent Agenda: Council members may request an item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be 
discussed as the first business item of the meeting. 
 City Council Executive Session Minutes for December 18, 2018 

City Council Meeting Minutes for December 18, 2018 
Voucher Directory for December 2018 

 
Public Comments: Speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes. The Council may ask questions but will 
not engage in discussion or make decisions based on public comment at this time. The Mayor may direct 
the City Administrator to follow up on comments received. When called, please state your name and 
address for the record. Direct all comments to the Council through the Mayor. 
 
Council Comments (three minutes per speaker) 
 Thoughts and Remembrances of Councilor Maggie Osgood 
 

All speakers are expected to be polite, courteous, and respectful when making their comments.  
Personal attacks, insults, profanity, and inflammatory comments will not be permitted. 

 
Staff Reports: 
 City Administrator Report 

Quarterly Financial Report 
Police Report 

 Public Works Report 
Draft Committee Meeting Minutes 

 
Business Meeting: Items Removed from Consent Agenda 
 
Old Business: None 
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New Business:  

1. Resolution 710 – Naming Library for Maggie Osgood – Discussion/Possible Action 
2. Review and Acceptance of FY 2017/18 Audit – Discussion/Possible Action 
3. Review Committee Applications – Discussion/Possible Action 
4. Professional Services Agreement – The Urban Collaborative – Discussion/Possible Action 
5. City Council Meeting Calendar – Discussion/Possible Action 
6. Grant Agreement – The Ford Family Foundation – Discussion/Possible Action 
7. Memorandum of Understanding – Rural Development Initiatives – Discussion/Possible Action 

 
Other Business 
 
Mayor Comments 
 
Community Comments:  Limited to two (2) minutes if prior to 9:30 P.M. 
 
Adjourn 
 
Future Meetings / Dates to Remember: 
1-17-19             Parks & Recreation Master Plan Open House at 5 PM at Lowell Fire Department 
1-17-19             Parks & Recreation Steering Committee Meeting at 7 PM at Lowell Fire Department 
1-21-19 City Hall/Library Closed in Observance of Martin Luther King Day 
1-28-19 Lowell School District Board Meeting at 7 PM at PDC in Lundy 
2-04-19 Economic Development Committee Meeting at 7 PM at City Hall 
2-05-19 City Council Study Session at 7 PM at City Hall 
2-06-19 Planning Commission Meeting at 7 PM at City Hall 
2-07-19  Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting at 7 PM at City Hall 
2-18-19 City Hall/Library Closed in Observance of President’s Day 
2-19-19 City Council Meeting at 7 PM at City Hall  



 
      

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
Consent Agenda 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

 

SUMMARY: 
The Consent Agenda for the January 15, 2019 City Council meeting includes the City Council 
Executive Session minutes for December 18, 2018, City Council Meeting Minutes for 
December 18, 2018 and Voucher Directory for December 2018. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
1. City Council Executive Session Minutes – December 18, 2018 
2. City Council Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2018 
3. Voucher Directory – December 2018. 

 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
1. Motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
2. Motion to remove an item from the consent agenda and place on the Business 

Meeting for additional review, discussion or amendment. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. City Council Executive Session Minutes – December 18, 2018 
2. City Council Meeting Minutes – December 18, 2018 
3. Voucher Directory – December 2018 

 

 



 

City of Lowell, Oregon 
Minutes of the City Council Executive Session 

December 18, 2018 
 
The Executive Session was called to order at 6:30 PM by Mayor Bennett. 
 
Members Present: Mayor Don Bennett, Patricia Angelini, Gail Harris 
Member Absent: Maggie Osgood 
 
Executive Session: ORS 192.660(2)(i) – To review and evaluate the employment-related 
performance of the chief executive officer of any public body, a public officer, employee or staff 
member who does not request and open hearing.  
 
Adjourn: 6:55 PM 
 

 
Approved:  ________________________                                 ___________________ 
           Don Bennett, Mayor                                                            Date 
 
 
Attest:        ________________________                                 ___________________ 
           Jared Cobb, City Recorder                                                   Date 
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City of Lowell, Oregon 
Minutes of the City Council Regular Session  

December 18, 2018 
 
The Regular Session was called to order at 7:02 PM by Mayor Bennett. 
 
Members Present: Mayor Don Bennett, Gail Harris, Patricia Angelini 
Member Absent:  Maggie Osgood 
 
Consent Agenda: Mayor Bennett moved to approve consent agenda, second by Councilor 
Harris.  PASS 3:0 
 
Public Comments: None 
Council Comments: None 
 
City Administrator Report: CA Cobb reported on the following topics: Covered Bridge Tree 
Lighting success, City Hall/Library Holiday Operating Hours, closing early on Christmas Eve 
and New Year’s Eve, 2019 City Council Meeting Schedule was presented, Project Updates, and 
League of Oregon Cities Highlights. 
Financial Report:  November Financial Report as provided in packet. 
Police Report: November report provided in packet. 
Public Works Report: Max Baker, Public Works Director presented report. Topics included: 
Staff are working on catch basin and culvert cleaning/inspections, street sign inventory, park 
inspections, headworks unit was cleaned and serviced after a blockage, heavy winds caused 
power outage at the lift station, treatment plant was shut down for maintenance, inspection and 
cleaning of the sedimentation basin, and servicing fire hydrants. 
 
Old Business: None 
New Business:  
• Professional Services Agreement -  CA presented the service contract with The Urban 

Collaborative and recommended changing the Circuit Court location in item #18 to Lane 
County.  Councilor Angelini moved to approve the Professional Services Contract with 
The Urban Collaborative and authorize the City Administrator to sign the contract as 
amended, second by Councilor Harris. PASS 3:0 

• Certification of Election Results – CA presented Resolution 709 – A Resolution certifying 
the results of the General Election held on November 6, 2018.  Councilor Angelini moved 
to approve Resolution 709 - A Resolution Canvassing Results of the General Election 
Held in the City of Lowell, Lane County, Oregon on November 6, 2018, second by 
Councilor Harris.   PASS 3:0 

• City Administrator Evaluation – Mayor Bennett stated the Council reviewed the City 
Administrator’s performance for the past year and noted improvements and are pleased with 
performance. Mayor Bennett moved to approve a 4% increase in salary with and 
additional one week vacation, beginning January 2019, second by Councilor Angelini.  
PASS 3:0  
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Other:  
• CA presented request to close City Hall/Library early on Christmas Eve and New Year’s 

Eve.  Mayor Bennett moved to close City Hall at 1 PM on Christmas Eve and New 
Year’s Eve, and use the Holiday Pay Schedule for compensation, second by Councilor 
Harris.  PASS 3:0 

• CA presented request to show appreciation to the employee’s by providing a $50 gift card.  
Mayor Bennett moved to provide a $50 gift card to the employees, second by 
Councilor Angelini. PASS 3:0 

 
Mayor Comments: Mayor reported Dexter Fire Dept. had a First Responder Training related to 
an Active Shooting, a group of Lowell School District students went to Portland to taste food items 
that will be served in school meals state wide, and the state legislature will focus on raising 
revenue. 
CA noted that City Hall Day will be in January, it’s an opportunity to inform legislatures about 
issues that are important for cities. 
 
Public Comments: Hall O’Regan 62 E 3rd Street, requested clarification on Parks & Rec. Steering 
Committee Meeting date, January 17, 2018.  CA verified that it was correct.   
 
Adjourn: 7:52 PM 
 
 
Approved:  ________________________                                 ___________________ 
           Don Bennett, Mayor                                                            Date 
 
 
Attest:        ________________________                                 ___________________ 
           Jared Cobb, City Recorder                                                   Date 
 



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Advantage Clinic Properties

15119 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council
Invoice - Refund 172 E 3rd Street

030-025-4428 Credit Memo Utilities - (Pre-paid) $84.33
Total Invoice - Refund 172 E 3rd Street $84.33

Total 15119 $84.33
Total Advantage Clinic Properties $84.33

Brian J Jensen Computer & Network Services
15111 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice - 5083
010-100-6022 IT Services $36.00
010-150-6022 IT Services $3.60
030-100-6022 IT Services $16.20
040-100-6022 IT Services $16.20

Total Invoice - 5083 $72.00
Total 15111 $72.00

Total Brian J Jensen Computer & Network Services $72.00

Bridge Town Market
15089 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 12/5/2018 12:12:52 PM
010-100-6134 General Supplies $14.80
010-120-6610 Gas & Oil $275.71
012-100-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $5.58
030-100-6134 General Supplies $16.17
030-100-6610 Gas & Oil $322.86
030-100-6720 Chemicals & Lab Supplies $12.14
040-100-6134 General Supplies $29.35
040-100-6610 Gas & Oil $232.53
040-100-6720 Chemicals & Lab Supplies $19.03

Total Invoice - 12/5/2018 12:12:52 PM $928.17
Total 15089 $928.17

Total Bridge Town Market $928.17

Voucher Directory

Fiscal: : 2018-2019 - December 2018
Council Date: : All
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Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Cascade Columbia

15112 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council
Invoice - 737925

040-100-6720 Chemicals & Lab Supplies $1,001.36
Total Invoice - 737925 $1,001.36

Total 15112 $1,001.36
Total Cascade Columbia $1,001.36

Century Link
15103 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 12/11/2018 12:05:38 PM
010-100-6440 Telephone Services $143.55
030-100-6435 Internet Services $70.00
030-100-6440 Telephone Services $236.74
040-100-6440 Telephone Services $74.74

Total Invoice - 12/11/2018 12:05:38 PM $525.03
Total 15103 $525.03

Total Century Link $525.03

CenturyLink Business Services
15104 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 1456590794
010-100-6440 Telephone Services $1.31

Total Invoice - 1456590794 $1.31
Total 15104 $1.31

Total CenturyLink Business Services $1.31

City of Lowell
15090 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 12/5/2018 1:00:41 PM
010-100-6420 Water Services $26.13
010-100-6425 Sewer Services $43.88
010-120-6420 Water Services $55.59
010-120-6425 Sewer Services $117.02
010-150-6420 Water Services $8.71
010-150-6425 Sewer Services $14.63
030-100-6420 Water Services $51.56
030-100-6425 Sewer Services $58.51
040-100-6420 Water Services $904.75
040-100-6425 Sewer Services $526.59

Total Invoice - 12/5/2018 1:00:41 PM $1,807.37
Total 15090 $1,807.37

Total City of Lowell $1,807.37
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Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Civil West Engineering

15105 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council
Invoice - 2101.014.005

012-100-6016 Engineering Services $5,572.06
Total Invoice - 2101.014.005 $5,572.06

Total 15105 $5,572.06
Total Civil West Engineering $5,572.06

Cobb, Jared
15117 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice - 12/19/2018 12:16:38 PM
010-100-6510 Council Expenditure $1,797.00

Total Invoice - 12/19/2018 12:16:38 PM $1,797.00
Total 15117 $1,797.00
15120 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice - Gift Cards 2018
010-100-6510 Council Expenditure $260.00

Total Invoice - Gift Cards 2018 $260.00
Total 15120 $260.00

Total Cobb, Jared $2,057.00

DEQ -Financial Services Revenue Section
15091 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - Renewal 2 year - Thom Von Flatern
040-100-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $160.00

Total Invoice - Renewal 2 year - Thom Von Flatern $160.00
Total 15091 $160.00

Total DEQ -Financial Services Revenue Section $160.00

First American Title
15092 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 12/5/2018 11:23:50 AM
010-120-8020 Capital Outlay - Parks Improvements $165,036.53

Total Invoice - 12/5/2018 11:23:50 AM $165,036.53
Total 15092 $165,036.53

Total First American Title $165,036.53

Hunter Communications
15113 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice - 12/19/2018 9:32:34 AM
010-100-6435 Internet Services $77.47
010-150-6435 Internet Services $77.47

Total Invoice - 12/19/2018 9:32:34 AM $154.94
Total 15113 $154.94

Total Hunter Communications $154.94
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Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
J & K Electrical LLC

15093 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council
Invoice - 1447A

030-100-6224 Equipment Repair & Maintenance $479.60
Total Invoice - 1447A $479.60

Total 15093 $479.60
Total J & K Electrical LLC $479.60

Lane County Animal Services
15114 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice -PWA00009273
010-160-6028 Other Contract Services $420.30

Total Invoice -PWA00009273 $420.30
Total 15114 $420.30

Total Lane County Animal Services $420.30

Lane Electric Cooperative
15094 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 12/5/2018 12:58:15 PM
010-100-6430 Electricity Services $154.18
010-120-6430 Electricity Services $47.72
010-150-6430 Electricity Services $51.39
010-170-6226 Covered Bridge Maintenance $67.35
012-100-6430 Electricity Services $1,206.21
030-100-6430 Electricity Services $1,339.09
040-100-6430 Electricity Services $1,746.54

Total Invoice - 12/5/2018 12:58:15 PM $4,612.48
Total 15094 $4,612.48

Total Lane Electric Cooperative $4,612.48

Lowell Mini Storage
1688 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice - Jan. 2019
014-100-6605 Rent $80.00

Total Invoice - Jan. 2019 $80.00
Total 1688 $80.00

Total Lowell Mini Storage $80.00

National Center for Executive Leadership and School Board Development
15095 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 2113
010-100-6028 Other Contract Services $500.00

Total Invoice - 2113 $500.00
Total 15095 $500.00

Total National Center for Executive Leadership and School Board Development $500.00
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Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Nichols Layli

15106 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council
Invoice - Nov.30, 2018

010-100-6014 Financial Services $198.25
012-100-6014 Financial Services $66.08
030-100-6014 Financial Services $198.25
040-100-6014 Financial Services $198.25

Total Invoice - Nov.30, 2018 $660.83
Total 15106 $660.83

Total Nichols Layli $660.83

Northwest Code Professionals
15096 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 2244
010-140-6524 Building Permit Costs $1,635.04
010-140-6525 Electrical Permit Costs $429.75

Total Invoice - 2244 $2,064.79
Total 15096 $2,064.79

Total Northwest Code Professionals $2,064.79

OHA Cashier
15097 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 41-00492
030-100-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $75.00

Total Invoice - 41-00492 $75.00
Invoice - Renewal Max Baker

030-100-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $210.00
Total Invoice - Renewal Max Baker $210.00

Total 15097 $285.00
Total OHA Cashier $285.00

One Call Concepts
15098 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 8110421
030-100-6230 Other Repair & Maintenance $4.20
040-100-6230 Other Repair & Maintenance $4.20

Total Invoice - 8110421 $8.40
Total 15098 $8.40

Total One Call Concepts $8.40
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Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Oregon Dept.of Revenue

1604 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council
Invoice - November 2018 Fines 

010-180-6560 State Assessments $45.00
Total Invoice - November 2018 Fines $45.00

Total 1604 $45.00
Total Oregon Dept.of Revenue $45.00

Purchase Power
20181219 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice - EFT Check
010-100-6126 Postage $30.00
010-100-6126 Postage $33.62
030-100-6126 Postage $60.00
040-100-6126 Postage $60.00

Total Invoice - EFT Check $183.62
Total 20181219 $183.62

Total Purchase Power $183.62

Renewable Resource Group Inc.
15099 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 110187, 110188, 110189, 110232
030-100-6722 Water/Sewer Analysis $322.20
040-100-6722 Water/Sewer Analysis $403.20

Total Invoice - 110187, 110188, 110189, 110232 $725.40
Total 15099 $725.40

Total Renewable Resource Group Inc. $725.40

RG Media Company
15107 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 7388309
010-100-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $150.00

Total Invoice - 7388309 $150.00
Total 15107 $150.00

Total RG Media Company $150.00

Sanders, Tim
15100 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 51
040-100-6028 Other Contract Services $300.00

Total Invoice - 51 $300.00
Total 15100 $300.00

Total Sanders, Tim $300.00
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Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
SaniPac

15108 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council
Invoice - 12/11/2018 12:02:12 PM

010-100-6445 Refuse Services $8.21
010-120-6445 Refuse Services $22.50
010-150-6445 Refuse Services $8.21
030-100-6445 Refuse Services $18.92
040-100-6445 Refuse Services $18.92

Total Invoice - 12/11/2018 12:02:12 PM $76.76
Total 15108 $76.76

Total SaniPac $76.76

Staples Credit Plan
15115 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice - 12/19/2018 9:33:47 AM
010-100-6130 Office Supplies/Equipment $129.99
010-100-6134 General Supplies $16.78
030-100-6134 General Supplies $25.82
040-100-6134 General Supplies $11.55

Total Invoice - 12/19/2018 9:33:47 AM $184.14
Total 15115 $184.14

Total Staples Credit Plan $184.14

Sunbelt Rentals
15101 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 84587847-0001
010-170-6226 Covered Bridge Maintenance $216.70
012-100-6230 Other Repair & Maintenance $216.70

Total Invoice - 84587847-0001 $433.40
Total 15101 $433.40

Total Sunbelt Rentals $433.40

Travel Lane County
15109 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 14315
010-100-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $295.00

Total Invoice - 14315 $295.00
Total 15109 $295.00

Total Travel Lane County $295.00

 Printed by LWSRV01\cladtemp on 1/11/2019 1:02:25 PM Page 7 of 8
Voucher Directory



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
U.S. Equipment Finance

15110 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council
Invoice - 372525170

010-100-6024 Copier Contract $232.88
Total Invoice - 372525170 $232.88

Total 15110 $232.88
Total U.S. Equipment Finance $232.88

USPS
15116 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 2nd Council

Invoice - 12/19/2018 9:30:46 AM
030-100-6126 Postage $57.50
040-100-6126 Postage $57.50

Total Invoice - 12/19/2018 9:30:46 AM $115.00
Total 15116 $115.00

Total USPS $115.00

Verizon Wireless
15102 2018-2019 - December 2018 - 1st Council

Invoice - 9818913984
010-100-6440 Telephone Services $52.23
030-100-6440 Telephone Services $52.23
040-100-6440 Telephone Services $52.23

Total Invoice - 9818913984 $156.69
Total 15102 $156.69

Total Verizon Wireless $156.69

Grand Total Vendor Count 33 $189,409.39
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
City Administrator Report 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

 

SUMMARY: 
The attached City Administrator Report is for the period of December 14 – January 12. The 
report covers the following topics: Oregon RAIN, Job Openings, Project Updates, and League of 
Oregon Cities Highlights. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
This item is presented for purposes of review and discussion. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. City Administrator Report 

 
 
 

 



 

City Administrator’s Office     
P.O. Box 490 Lowell, OR 97452  
Phone: 541-937-2157    
Email: jcobb@ci.lowell.or.us  

 

   

 
TO:   Mayor Bennett and Council 
 
FROM:  Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
 
DATE:   January 12, 2019 
 
SUBJECT:  City Administrator Report 
 
 
Oregon RAIN 
Last week I met with Raj Vable, our Oregon RAIN Venture Catalyst, to tour TUMAC, the industrial 
park, downtown, and housing developments. Raj plans to attend the next Economic 
Development Committee meeting on Monday, February 4 and the City Council Work Session on 
Tuesday, February 5 to introduce himself and discuss the entrepreneurship program. 
 
Job Openings 
The Public Works Department currently has two openings for utility operators. Staff is in the 
process of posting the job advertisements. The positions will be posted on the City’s website, 
Facebook, League of Oregon Cities, and the Oregon Chapter of the American Public Works 
Association. 
 
Project Updates 
Staff has developed a “Projects” page on the City website. Residents may access this page to 
receive updates on City projects by visiting www.ci.lowell.or.us/projects. The page may also be 
accessed from the homepage under the “I Want To…” tab.  
 

• Paul Fisher Park Irrigation Repairs and Improvements – Staff has ordered a part to 
complete the hot tap of the water main. 

• Parks and Recreation Master Plan – An open house to review the concept plans for Rolling 
Rock Park and the Railroad Right-of-Way is scheduled for Thursday, January 17 from 5:00 
– 7:00 p.m. in the Lowell Fire Department Community Room. The Steering Committee will 
meet afterwards to review feedback and discuss next steps. 

 
League of Oregon Cities Highlights 
 
Small Cell Committees Kick Off 
LOC along with broadband carriers kicked off a series of meetings this week (January 11) to 
discover opportunities for development of the small cell/5G network.  Three committees have 

http://www.ci.lowell.or.us/projects
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been formed including: Model code, Design Standards, and Public Education. Each of these 
committees will be meeting three times over the next six weeks.  As the conversation matures 
League staff will provide updates with a possible outcome of a template or model code that has 
an application across Oregon. 
 
LOC Addressing Speaker Kotek’s Zoning Mandate 
This week (December 21), news agencies around Oregon published articles about a proposal from 
House Speaker Tina Kotek (D-Portland) that would eliminate single family zoning in cities with 
populations exceeding 10,000.  The LOC has been working with partners and cities to provide 
information to Speaker Kotek and her staff about why such a preemption is not acceptable or 
effective in meeting our shared goals of increasing housing supply for moderate income families 
in cities across Oregon. 
 
Speaker Kotek’s proposal includes a variety of concepts that impact how cities plan for housing 
and the facilities to service them.  The proposal would require cities in excess of 10,000 
population to update their zoning codes in 16 months to allow duplexes, triplexes, quadplexes, 
and cottage clusters by right in areas zoned for single family housing.  This mandate directly 
impacts city authority to determine the best methods for meeting the housing needs of current 
and future residents.  It also impacts a city’s broader ability to plan for the development and 
financing of public facilities to support such a wide range of potential development types.  
 
The LOC has already expressed its opposition to Speaker Kotek for any bill that undermines local 
authority in the planning process.  However, we are also working to develop policy options and 
technical assistance proposals that will help cities meet the shared goal of increased housing 
development that meets a variety of price points.  These efforts will focus on the issues that cities 
identified to LOC staff this spring and summer through the policy committee process and at the 
regional housing workshops that were held in partnership with the state and counties.  The LOC 
wants to move housing forward, and does not accept state-level policies which mandate local 
zoning decisions. 
 
The LOC will keep its members informed on this ongoing policy conversation throughout the 
session. 
 
City Day at the Capitol – Thursday, January 24 
Registration is now open for City Day at the Capitol, local government’s major event of the 
legislative session, which is scheduled for January 24, 2019 and co-sponsored by the LOC and the 
Oregon Mayors Association. Most importantly, it is also the opportunity for city officials from 
around Oregon to stand together in support of the League's advocacy efforts and let legislators 
know how actions they take could impact local communities.  
 
Highlights of City Day at the Capitol will include a briefing from League staff on legislative 
priorities, hearing from the legislative leadership about their objectives for the session, individual 
visits with legislators, and a reception for legislators and city officials. 
 



 
      

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
Quarterly Financial Report 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

 

SUMMARY: 
The Quarterly Financial Report for October – December is attached for your review.  
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
All operating funds exceed the minimum unrestricted fund balance of 17% as established by 
Resolution 644. Revenues for the operating funds are at 67% of budgeted revenues, while 
expenditures are at 59% of budgeted expenditures (including transfers, excluding contingency 
and reserves). 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
This item is presented for purposes of review and discussion. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Cash and Investment Activity Report 
2. Revenue and Expenditure Report 
3. Court Report 
4. Employee Liabilities Report 

 



Fund Description
Beginning 
Balance Revenues Expenditures

Surplus/ 
(Deficit)

Ending 
Balance

Operating 
Budget

Unrestricted 
Fund Balance

10 GENERAL FUND $209,750 $437,019 ($338,139) $98,879 $308,630 $364,715 85%
12 STREET FUND $126,314 $40,746 ($55,046) ($14,300) $112,014 $93,720 120%
30 WATER FUND $142,580 $177,056 ($137,776) $39,280 $181,861 $345,491 53%
40 SEWER FUND $122,283 $194,878 ($151,919) $42,958 $165,242 $348,194 47%
14 BBJ FESTIVAL FUND $19,303 $10,425 ($16,678) ($6,254) $13,050
17 SDC FUND $397,049 $7,660 $0 $7,660 $404,709
20 WATER RESERVE FUND $15,752 $3,938 $0 $3,938 $19,690
21 SEWER RESERVE FUND $6,670 $1,575 $0 $1,575 $8,245
50 EQUIPMENT FUND $42,803 $10,000 ($23,453) ($13,453) $29,350
55 DEBT RESERVE FUND $28,394 $0 ($15,745) ($15,745) $12,649

$1,110,899 $883,296 ($738,756) $144,540 $1,255,439

Cash Balance Report - FY 2019 through December 31
As of January 11, 2019



Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
GENERAL FUND
  REVENUES
010-025-4012 Property Taxes - Current $32,696.04 $119,736.86 $138,610.00 86.38 % $18,873.14
010-025-4014 Property Taxes - Prior $129.56 $4,414.02 $2,512.00 175.72 % ($1,902.02)
010-025-4052 Interest Earned $11.66 $178.82 $3,500.00 5.11 % $3,321.18
010-025-4132 State Revenue Sharing $2,490.10 $4,787.01 $9,654.00 49.59 % $4,866.99
010-025-4134 Cigarette Tax $209.94 $677.87 $1,199.00 56.54 % $521.13
010-025-4136 Liquor Tax $1,118.33 $8,392.84 $18,280.00 45.91 % $9,887.16
010-025-4145 Transient Room Tax $0.00 $0.00 $332.00 0.00 % $332.00
010-025-4151 Grant Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $63,000.00 0.00 % $63,000.00
010-025-4152 Tourism Grant $0.00 $9,639.44 $9,024.00 106.82 % ($615.44)
010-025-4154 Library Summer Reading Program 

Grant
$0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00 % $1,000.00

010-025-4225 Loan Proceeds $0.00 $0.00 $135,000.00 0.00 % $135,000.00
010-025-4310 Cable Franchise Fees $0.00 $1,918.24 $1,481.00 129.52 % ($437.24)
010-025-4312 Electric Franchise Fees $0.00 $24,715.63 $50,163.00 49.27 % $25,447.37
010-025-4314 Garbage Franchise Fees $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 0.00 % $300.00
010-025-4316 Telecom Franchise Fees $0.00 $0.00 $2,335.00 0.00 % $2,335.00
010-025-4352 Land Use/ Development $758.00 $874.00 $7,500.00 11.65 % $6,626.00
010-025-4354 Permits & Variances $0.00 $220.00 $100.00 220.00 % ($120.00)
010-025-4356 Building Permit Fees $3,476.60 $26,492.15 $39,450.00 67.15 % $12,957.85
010-025-4358 Electrical Permit Fees $1,155.84 $4,281.76 $5,810.00 73.70 % $1,528.24
010-025-4360 Dog Licenses $14.00 $524.00 $500.00 104.80 % ($24.00)
010-025-4415 Library Revenue $6.95 $290.40 $500.00 58.08 % $209.60
010-025-4417 Lien Searches $20.00 $400.00 $200.00 200.00 % ($200.00)
010-025-4419 Election Filing Fees $0.00 $50.00 $50.00 100.00 % $0.00
010-025-4421 SDC/CET Admin Fee $0.00 $646.60 $3,730.00 17.34 % $3,083.40
010-025-4423 Pay Station Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00 % $100.00
010-025-4511 Park Reimbursement SDC $0.00 $0.00 $735.00 0.00 % $735.00
010-025-4625 Municipal Court Revenue $25.00 $2,064.49 $2,000.00 103.22 % ($64.49)
010-025-4752 Reimbursement Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00 % $5,000.00
010-025-4852 Miscellaneous Revenue $226,362.89 $226,714.39 $2,000.00 11,335.72 % ($224,714.39)

Revenue

Starting Account Number: 010-025-4012 Property Taxes - Current
Ending Account Number: 060-025-4930 Transfer from Water Fund
Period: 2018-2019 - December 2018
Printing: Full
Non Activity Accounts: Hide
Balance Records: Hide
Investment Records: Hide
Operation Totals: Hide
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
  Total REVENUES $268,474.91 $437,018.52 $504,065.00 86.70 % $67,046.48

Total GENERAL FUND $268,474.91 $437,018.52 $504,065.00 86.70 % $67,046.48
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
STREET FUND
  REVENUES
012-025-4052 Interest Earned $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00 % $500.00
012-025-4142 State Distributions $7,347.47 $40,745.78 $77,554.00 52.54 % $36,808.22
012-025-4513 Transportation Reimbursement SDC $0.00 $0.00 $1,605.00 0.00 % $1,605.00
  Total REVENUES $7,347.47 $40,745.78 $79,659.00 51.15 % $38,913.22

Total STREET FUND $7,347.47 $40,745.78 $79,659.00 51.15 % $38,913.22
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
BBJ FESTIVAL FUND
  REVENUES
014-025-4052 Interest Earned $0.00 $1.60 $10.00 16.00 % $8.40
014-025-4852 Miscellaneous Revenue $0.00 $328.00 $500.00 65.60 % $172.00
014-025-4860 Craft/Commercial Booth Sales $0.00 $235.00 $3,000.00 7.83 % $2,765.00
014-025-4862 Food Booth Sales $0.00 $530.00 $800.00 66.25 % $270.00
014-025-4864 Jam Sales $15.00 $1,130.00 $1,000.00 113.00 % ($130.00)
014-025-4866 Quilt Raffle Sales $0.00 $2,358.02 $4,000.00 58.95 % $1,641.98
014-025-4868 Program Ad Sales $0.00 $220.00 $2,700.00 8.15 % $2,480.00
014-025-4870 Sponsorship Revenue $0.00 $250.00 $2,250.00 11.11 % $2,000.00
014-025-4872 Pie Sales $0.00 $194.00 $0.00 ($194.00)
014-025-4876 5K Race Revenue $0.00 $595.00 $1,100.00 54.09 % $505.00
014-025-4878 Car Show Revenue $0.00 $3,207.00 $4,000.00 80.18 % $793.00
014-025-4880 Fishing Derby Revenue $0.00 $440.00 $350.00 125.71 % ($90.00)
014-025-4882 Horseshoe Tourney Revenue $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 100.00 % $0.00
014-025-4884 Kidz Korner Revenue $0.00 $776.00 $1,000.00 77.60 % $224.00
014-025-4886 Pie Eating Contest Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 0.00 % $200.00
014-025-4888 RC Flyers Revenue $0.00 $60.00 $400.00 15.00 % $340.00
  Total REVENUES $15.00 $10,424.62 $21,410.00 48.69 % $10,985.38

Total BBJ FESTIVAL FUND $15.00 $10,424.62 $21,410.00 48.69 % $10,985.38
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
SDC FUND
  REVENUES
017-025-4530 Water SDC $0.00 $7,660.00 $0.00 ($7,660.00)
  Total REVENUES $0.00 $7,660.00 $0.00 ($7,660.00)

Total SDC FUND $0.00 $7,660.00 $0.00 ($7,660.00)
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
WATER RESERVE FUND
  REVENUES
020-025-4930 Transfer from Water Fund $0.00 $3,938.00 $3,938.00 100.00 % $0.00
  Total REVENUES $0.00 $3,938.00 $3,938.00 100.00 % $0.00

Total WATER RESERVE FUND $0.00 $3,938.00 $3,938.00 100.00 % $0.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
SEWER RESERVE FUND
  REVENUES
021-025-4940 Transfer from Sewer Fund $0.00 $1,575.00 $1,575.00 100.00 % $0.00
  Total REVENUES $0.00 $1,575.00 $1,575.00 100.00 % $0.00

Total SEWER RESERVE FUND $0.00 $1,575.00 $1,575.00 100.00 % $0.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
WATER FUND
030-025-4052 Interest Earned $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 0.00 % $300.00
030-025-4370 Water/Sewer Connection Permit Fees $250.00 $2,915.00 $0.00 ($2,915.00)
030-025-4425 Water/Sewer Sales $21,561.09 $169,126.32 $299,635.00 56.44 % $130,508.68
030-025-4426 Bulk Water Sales $0.00 $153.00 $0.00 ($153.00)
030-025-4428 Credit Memo Utilities - (Pre-paid) ($379.42) ($1,293.01) $0.00 $1,293.01
030-025-4430 Water/Sewer Connection Fees $0.00 $0.00 $3,750.00 0.00 % $3,750.00
030-025-4435 Fire Hydrant Fee $341.24 $2,043.02 $3,957.00 51.63 % $1,913.98
030-025-4531 Water Reimbursement SDC $0.00 $1,490.00 $10,395.00 14.33 % $8,905.00
030-025-4852 Miscellaneous Revenue $668.50 $2,622.12 $5,000.00 52.44 % $2,377.88
Total WATER FUND $22,441.41 $177,056.45 $323,037.00 54.81 % $145,980.55
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
SEWER FUND
  REVENUES
040-025-4370 Water/Sewer Connection Permit Fees $115.00 $1,035.00 $0.00 ($1,035.00)
040-025-4425 Water/Sewer Sales $28,655.20 $175,221.93 $340,134.00 51.52 % $164,912.07
040-025-4430 Water/Sewer Connection Fees $0.00 $0.00 $805.00 0.00 % $805.00
040-025-4541 Sewer Reimbursement SDC $0.00 $0.00 $8,835.00 0.00 % $8,835.00
040-025-4852 Miscellaneous Revenue $728.50 $2,875.73 $4,500.00 63.91 % $1,624.27
040-025-4955 Transfer from Debt Reserve Fund $0.00 $15,745.00 $15,745.00 100.00 % $0.00
  Total REVENUES $29,498.70 $194,877.66 $370,019.00 52.67 % $175,141.34

Total SEWER FUND $29,498.70 $194,877.66 $370,019.00 52.67 % $175,141.34
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
EQUIPMENT FUND
  REVENUES
050-025-4910 Transfer from General Fund $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
050-025-4912 Transfer from Street Fund $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
050-025-4930 Transfer from Water Fund $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
050-025-4940 Transfer from Sewer Fund $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
  Total REVENUES $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 100.00 % $0.00

Total EQUIPMENT FUND $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance

                Grand Totals $327,777.49 $883,296.03 $1,313,703.00 67.24 % $430,406.97
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Totals By Fund
Fund Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
010-000-0000 GENERAL FUND $268,474.91 $437,018.52 $504,065.00 86.70 % $67,046.48
012-000-0000 STREET FUND $7,347.47 $40,745.78 $79,659.00 51.15 % $38,913.22
014-000-0000 BBJ FESTIVAL FUND $15.00 $10,424.62 $21,410.00 48.69 % $10,985.38
017-000-0000 SDC FUND $0.00 $7,660.00 $0.00 ($7,660.00)
020-000-0000 WATER RESERVE FUND $0.00 $3,938.00 $3,938.00 100.00 % $0.00
021-000-0000 SEWER RESERVE FUND $0.00 $1,575.00 $1,575.00 100.00 % $0.00
030-000-0000 WATER FUND $22,441.41 $177,056.45 $323,037.00 54.81 % $145,980.55
040-000-0000 SEWER FUND $29,498.70 $194,877.66 $370,019.00 52.67 % $175,141.34
050-000-0000 EQUIPMENT FUND $0.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 100.00 % $0.00

Grand Totals $327,777.49 $883,296.03 $1,313,703.00 67.24 % $430,406.97
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
GENERAL FUND
ADMINISTRATION
  PERSONAL SERVICES
010-100-5010 City Administrator $999.92 $5,499.56 $12,300.00 44.71 % $6,800.44
010-100-5014 City Clerk $419.46 $2,306.97 $5,010.00 46.05 % $2,703.03
010-100-5050 Public Works Director $273.41 $1,503.74 $3,280.00 45.85 % $1,776.26
010-100-5052 Utility Worker I $0.00 $0.00 $1,718.00 0.00 % $1,718.00
010-100-5054 Utility Worker II $354.49 $1,071.86 $1,895.00 56.56 % $823.14
010-100-5058 Maintenance Worker I $76.68 $375.13 $844.00 44.45 % $468.87
010-100-5220 Overtime $110.56 $488.79 $1,079.00 45.30 % $590.21
010-100-5315 Social Security/Medicare(FICA) $170.93 $860.31 $2,228.00 38.61 % $1,367.69
010-100-5320 Worker's Comp $0.94 $245.02 $891.00 27.50 % $645.98
010-100-5350 Unemployment Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $2,093.00 0.00 % $2,093.00
010-100-5410 Health Insurance $383.86 $1,919.26 $6,411.00 29.94 % $4,491.74
010-100-5450 Public Employees Retirement $235.03 $1,271.36 $3,004.00 42.32 % $1,732.64
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $3,025.28 $15,542.00 $40,753.00 38.14 % $25,211.00

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
010-100-6010 Auditing $0.00 $0.00 $4,290.00 0.00 % $4,290.00
010-100-6012 Legal Services $0.00 $848.91 $5,000.00 16.98 % $4,151.09
010-100-6014 Financial Services $198.25 $1,189.50 $3,570.00 33.32 % $2,380.50
010-100-6022 IT Services $36.00 $2,791.40 $6,596.00 42.32 % $3,804.60
010-100-6024 Copier Contract $232.88 $972.78 $2,093.00 46.48 % $1,120.22
010-100-6028 Other Contract Services $500.00 $566.24 $1,000.00 56.62 % $433.76
010-100-6110 Insurance And Bonds $0.00 $5,643.02 $6,594.00 85.58 % $950.98
010-100-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $445.00 $2,240.41 $3,550.00 63.11 % $1,309.59
010-100-6122 Newsletter Expenditure $0.00 $0.00 $1,200.00 0.00 % $1,200.00
010-100-6126 Postage $63.62 $249.84 $500.00 49.97 % $250.16
010-100-6128 Public Notices $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00 % $1,000.00
010-100-6130 Office Supplies/Equipment $129.99 $333.37 $1,000.00 33.34 % $666.63
010-100-6134 General Supplies $31.58 $276.40 $750.00 36.85 % $473.60
010-100-6138 Bank Service Charges $0.00 $74.16 $1,400.00 5.30 % $1,325.84
010-100-6140 Travel & Training $0.00 $435.00 $1,500.00 29.00 % $1,065.00
010-100-6190 Miscellaneous Expenditures $0.00 $25.00 $500.00 5.00 % $475.00

Expenditure
Starting Account Number: 010-100-5010 City Administrator
Ending Account Number: 060-999-9899 Suspense
Period: 2018-2019 - December 2018
Printing: Full
Non Activity Accounts: Hide
Balance Records: Hide
Investment Records: Hide
Operation Totals: Hide
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
010-100-6220 Building Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $25.59 $1,000.00 2.56 % $974.41
010-100-6234 Non-Capitalized Assets $0.00 $269.99 $2,000.00 13.50 % $1,730.01
010-100-6420 Water Services $26.13 $160.27 $413.00 38.81 % $252.73
010-100-6425 Sewer Services $43.88 $262.00 $524.00 50.00 % $262.00
010-100-6430 Electricity Services $154.18 $764.19 $2,010.00 38.02 % $1,245.81
010-100-6435 Internet Services $77.47 $464.82 $985.00 47.19 % $520.18
010-100-6440 Telephone Services $197.09 $1,243.13 $2,629.00 47.29 % $1,385.87
010-100-6445 Refuse Services $8.21 $70.19 $91.00 77.13 % $20.81
010-100-6510 Council Expenditure $2,057.00 $2,057.00 $2,000.00 102.85 % ($57.00)
010-100-6512 State Ethics Commission $0.00 $475.12 $600.00 79.19 % $124.88
010-100-6792 Reimbursable Expenditure $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00 % $5,000.00
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $4,201.28 $21,438.33 $57,795.00 37.09 % $36,356.67

  CAPITAL OUTLAY
010-100-8012 Capital Outlay - Buildings & Facilities $0.00 $3,776.70 $25,000.00 15.11 % $21,223.30
010-100-8018 Capital Outlay - Software $0.00 $280.53 $7,955.00 3.53 % $7,674.47
  Total CAPITAL OUTLAY $0.00 $4,057.23 $32,955.00 12.31 % $28,897.77

Total ADMINISTRATION $7,226.56 $41,037.56 $131,503.00 31.21 % $90,465.44
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
PARKS & RECREATION
  PERSONAL SERVICES
010-120-5010 City Administrator $333.30 $1,833.15 $4,100.00 44.71 % $2,266.85
010-120-5050 Public Works Director  $273.41 $1,503.74 $3,280.00 45.85 % $1,776.26
010-120-5052 Utility Worker I $0.00 $0.00 $1,718.00 0.00 % $1,718.00
010-120-5054 Utility Worker II $354.49 $1,071.86 $1,895.00 56.56 % $823.14
010-120-5058 Maintenance Worker I $689.74 $3,375.75 $7,598.00 44.43 % $4,222.25
010-120-5220 Overtime $110.56 $454.26 $891.00 50.98 % $436.74
010-120-5315 Social Security/Medicare(FICA) $134.75 $630.23 $1,662.00 37.92 % $1,031.77
010-120-5320 Worker's Comp $1.08 $428.08 $1,473.00 29.06 % $1,044.92
010-120-5350 Unemmployment Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $1,558.00 0.00 % $1,558.00
010-120-5410 Health Insurance $151.84 $759.16 $2,874.00 26.41 % $2,114.84
010-120-5450 Public Employees Retirement $180.64 $925.53 $2,240.00 41.32 % $1,314.47
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $2,229.81 $10,981.76 $29,289.00 37.49 % $18,307.24

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
010-120-6028 Other Contract Services $0.00 $31,000.00 $44,268.00 70.03 % $13,268.00
010-120-6134 General Supplies $0.00 $904.58 $1,000.00 90.46 % $95.42
010-120-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $0.00 $140.00 $500.00 28.00 % $360.00
010-120-6220 Building Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $1,512.66 $2,500.00 60.51 % $987.34
010-120-6224 Equipment Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $1,002.52 $1,000.00 100.25 % ($2.52)
010-120-6230 Other Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $1,313.65 $3,000.00 43.79 % $1,686.35
010-120-6234 Non-Capitalized Assets $0.00 $1,597.44 $2,000.00 79.87 % $402.56
010-120-6239 Maintenance - Nelson Land Donation $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00 % $500.00
010-120-6420 Water Services $55.59 $463.05 $5,000.00 9.26 % $4,536.95
010-120-6425 Sewer Services $117.02 $698.72 $1,397.00 50.02 % $698.28
010-120-6430 Electricity Services $47.72 $307.94 $579.00 53.18 % $271.06
010-120-6445 Refuse Services $22.50 $133.92 $272.00 49.24 % $138.08
010-120-6610 Gas & Oil $275.71 $488.40 $789.00 61.90 % $300.60
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $518.54 $39,562.88 $62,805.00 62.99 % $23,242.12

010-120-8020 Capital Outlay - Parks Improvements $165,036.53 $180,010.47 $195,000.00 92.31 % $14,989.53
Total PARKS & RECREATION $167,784.88 $230,555.11 $287,094.00 80.31 % $56,538.89
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
POLICE
  MATERIALS & SERVICES
010-130-6018 Police Services $0.00 $4,550.00 $29,106.00 15.63 % $24,556.00
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $0.00 $4,550.00 $29,106.00 15.63 % $24,556.00

Total POLICE $0.00 $4,550.00 $29,106.00 15.63 % $24,556.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
  PERSONAL SERVICES
010-140-5010 City Administrator $666.60 $3,666.31 $8,200.00 44.71 % $4,533.69
010-140-5014 City Clerk $209.72 $1,153.39 $2,505.00 46.04 % $1,351.61
010-140-5220 Overtime $0.00 $17.21 $94.00 18.31 % $76.79
010-140-5315 Social Security/Medicare(FICA) $67.04 $370.05 $921.00 40.18 % $550.95
010-140-5320 Worker's Comp $0.35 $8.46 $73.00 11.59 % $64.54
010-140-5350 Unemployment Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $894.00 0.00 % $894.00
010-140-5410 Health Insurance $145.36 $726.80 $2,278.00 31.91 % $1,551.20
010-140-5450 Public Employees Retirement $100.78 $556.27 $1,242.00 44.79 % $685.73
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $1,189.85 $6,498.49 $16,207.00 40.10 % $9,708.51

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
010-140-6016 Engineering Services $0.00 $144.94 $500.00 28.99 % $355.06
010-140-6028 Other Contract Services $0.00 $8,819.06 $40,000.00 22.05 % $31,180.94
010-140-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00 % $100.00
010-140-6126 Postage $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0.00 % $250.00
010-140-6140 Travel & Training $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00 % $500.00
010-140-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0.00 % $250.00
010-140-6522 Land Use/Development Costs $0.00 $4,944.71 $7,500.00 65.93 % $2,555.29
010-140-6524 Building Permit Costs $1,635.04 $20,501.63 $30,371.00 67.50 % $9,869.37
010-140-6525 Electrical Permit Costs $429.75 $2,780.46 $4,515.00 61.58 % $1,734.54
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $2,064.79 $37,190.80 $83,986.00 44.28 % $46,795.20

Total COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT $3,254.64 $43,689.29 $100,193.00 43.61 % $56,503.71
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
LIBRARY
  PERSONAL SERVICES
010-150-5320 Worker's Comp $0.00 $17.60 $50.00 35.20 % $32.40
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $0.00 $17.60 $50.00 35.20 % $32.40

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
010-150-6022 IT Services $3.60 $422.10 $1,529.00 27.61 % $1,106.90
010-150-6130 Office Supplies/Equipment $0.00 $147.08 $500.00 29.42 % $352.92
010-150-6134 General Supplies $0.00 $314.69 $1,250.00 25.18 % $935.31
010-150-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0.00 % $250.00
010-150-6220 Building Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00 % $100.00
010-150-6234 Non-Capitalized Assets $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00 % $500.00
010-150-6420 Water Services $8.71 $53.42 $150.00 35.61 % $96.58
010-150-6425 Sewer Services $14.63 $87.36 $200.00 43.68 % $112.64
010-150-6430 Electricity Services $51.39 $254.73 $800.00 31.84 % $545.27
010-150-6435 Internet Services $77.47 $464.82 $1,000.00 46.48 % $535.18
010-150-6445 Refuse Services $8.21 $48.19 $100.00 48.19 % $51.81
010-150-6530 Summer Reading Program $0.00 $739.56 $1,250.00 59.16 % $510.44
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $164.01 $2,531.95 $7,629.00 33.19 % $5,097.05

Total LIBRARY $164.01 $2,549.55 $7,679.00 33.20 % $5,129.45
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
CODE ENFORCEMENT
  PERSONAL SERVICES
010-160-5010 City Administrator $333.30 $1,833.15 $4,100.00 44.71 % $2,266.85
010-160-5050 Public Works Director $273.41 $1,503.74 $3,280.00 45.85 % $1,776.26
010-160-5220 Overtime $88.71 $171.50 $123.00 139.43 % ($48.50)
010-160-5315 Social Security/Medicare(FICA) $53.20 $268.43 $640.00 41.94 % $371.57
010-160-5320 Worker's Comp $0.29 $87.02 $353.00 24.65 % $265.98
010-160-5350 Unemployment Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $617.00 0.00 % $617.00
010-160-5410 Health Insurance $90.28 $451.40 $1,434.00 31.48 % $982.60
010-160-5450 Public Employees Retirement $79.98 $403.52 $863.00 46.76 % $459.48
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $919.17 $4,718.76 $11,410.00 41.36 % $6,691.24

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
010-160-6028 Other Contract Services $420.30 $420.30 $4,500.00 9.34 % $4,079.70
010-160-6134 General Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 0.00 % $300.00
010-160-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00 % $100.00
010-160-6540 Dog/Cat Control $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0.00 % $250.00
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $420.30 $420.30 $5,150.00 8.16 % $4,729.70

Total CODE ENFORCEMENT $1,339.47 $5,139.06 $16,560.00 31.03 % $11,420.94
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TOURISM
  MATERIALS & SERVICES
010-170-6124 Marketing $0.00 $420.80 $2,000.00 21.04 % $1,579.20
010-170-6126 Postage $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00 % $100.00
010-170-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 0.00 % $250.00
010-170-6226 Covered Bridge Maintenance $284.05 $968.40 $2,500.00 38.74 % $1,531.60
010-170-6227 Community Grant Program $0.00 $1,559.35 $3,000.00 51.98 % $1,440.65
010-170-6228 Matching Grant Funds $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0.00 % $5,000.00
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $284.05 $2,948.55 $12,850.00 22.95 % $9,901.45

Total TOURISM $284.05 $2,948.55 $12,850.00 22.95 % $9,901.45
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
MUNICIPAL COURT
  PERSONAL SERVICES
010-180-5010 City Administrator $333.30 $1,833.15 $4,100.00 44.71 % $2,266.85
010-180-5014 City Clerk $209.72 $1,153.39 $2,505.00 46.04 % $1,351.61
010-180-5220 Overtime $0.00 $17.21 $94.00 18.31 % $76.79
010-180-5315 Social Security/Medicare(FICA) $41.54 $229.80 $571.00 40.25 % $341.20
010-180-5320 Worker's Comp $0.24 $5.32 $45.00 11.82 % $39.68
010-180-5350 Unemployment Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $552.00 0.00 % $552.00
010-180-5410 Health Insurance $116.01 $580.05 $1,769.00 32.79 % $1,188.95
010-180-5450 Public Employees Retirement $62.46 $345.51 $770.00 44.87 % $424.49
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $763.27 $4,164.43 $10,406.00 40.02 % $6,241.57

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
010-180-6020 Judge Contract $0.00 $450.00 $1,250.00 36.00 % $800.00
010-180-6028 Other Contract Services $0.00 $875.69 $1,000.00 87.57 % $124.31
010-180-6126 Postage $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00 % $100.00
010-180-6138 Bank Service Charges $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 0.00 % $150.00
010-180-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00 % $100.00
010-180-6560 State Assessments $45.00 $180.00 $675.00 26.67 % $495.00
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $45.00 $1,505.69 $3,275.00 45.98 % $1,769.31

Total MUNICIPAL COURT $808.27 $5,670.12 $13,681.00 41.45 % $8,010.88
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  OTHER REQUIREMENTS
010-800-9050 Transfer to Equipment Fund $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
010-800-9990 Contingency $0.00 $0.00 $77,488.00 0.00 % $77,488.00
010-800-9995 Reserved for future use - Parks $0.00 $0.00 $8,000.00 0.00 % $8,000.00
  Total OTHER REQUIREMENTS $0.00 $2,000.00 $87,488.00 2.29 % $85,488.00

Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL $0.00 $2,000.00 $87,488.00 2.29 % $85,488.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
Total GENERAL FUND $180,861.88 $338,139.24 $686,154.00 49.28 % $348,014.76
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
STREET FUND
ADMINISTRATION
  PERSONAL SERVICES
012-100-5010 City Administrator $666.60 $3,666.31 $8,200.00 44.71 % $4,533.69
012-100-5050 Public Works Director $820.24 $4,511.24 $9,841.00 45.84 % $5,329.76
012-100-5052 Utility Worker I $0.00 $0.00 $3,435.00 0.00 % $3,435.00
012-100-5054 Utility Worker II $708.97 $2,143.82 $3,789.00 56.58 % $1,645.18
012-100-5058 Maintenance Worker I $153.27 $750.17 $1,689.00 44.42 % $938.83
012-100-5220 Overtime $309.85 $1,079.90 $1,377.00 78.42 % $297.10
012-100-5315 Social Security/Medicare(FICA) $203.43 $929.61 $2,462.00 37.76 % $1,532.39
012-100-5320 Worker's Comp $1.10 $488.69 $1,927.00 25.36 % $1,438.31
012-100-5350 Unemployment Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $2,252.00 0.00 % $2,252.00
012-100-5410 Health Insurance $364.60 $1,822.97 $6,672.00 27.32 % $4,849.03
012-100-5450 Public Employees Retirement $261.89 $1,353.57 $3,319.00 40.78 % $1,965.43
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $3,489.95 $16,746.28 $44,963.00 37.24 % $28,216.72

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
012-100-6010 Auditing $0.00 $0.00 $1,430.00 0.00 % $1,430.00
012-100-6014 Financial Services $66.08 $396.48 $1,190.00 33.32 % $793.52
012-100-6016 Engineering Services $5,572.06 $17,137.06 $19,094.00 89.75 % $1,956.94
012-100-6022 IT Services $0.00 $279.18 $1,198.00 23.30 % $918.82
012-100-6028 Other Contract Services $0.00 $2,378.08 $12,400.00 19.18 % $10,021.92
012-100-6110 Insurance And Bonds $0.00 $1,881.00 $2,198.00 85.58 % $317.00
012-100-6134 General Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 0.00 % $150.00
012-100-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $5.58 $5.58 $500.00 1.12 % $494.42
012-100-6224 Equipment Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00 % $500.00
012-100-6230 Other Repair & Maintenance $216.70 $216.70 $1,000.00 21.67 % $783.30
012-100-6234 Non-Capitalized Assets $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00 % $500.00
012-100-6430 Electricity Services $1,206.21 $6,680.91 $15,292.00 43.69 % $8,611.09
012-100-6620 Storm Drain Maintenance $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 0.00 % $2,000.00
012-100-6624 Street Signs $0.00 $280.80 $500.00 56.16 % $219.20
012-100-6626 Street Lights $0.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 0.00 % $10,000.00
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $7,066.63 $29,255.79 $67,952.00 43.05 % $38,696.21

  CAPITAL OUTLAY
012-100-8018 Capital Outlay - Software $0.00 $93.50 $2,651.00 3.53 % $2,557.50
012-100-8030 Capital Outlay - Street Improvements $0.00 $4,950.00 $60,350.00 8.20 % $55,400.00
  Total CAPITAL OUTLAY $0.00 $5,043.50 $63,001.00 8.01 % $57,957.50

Total ADMINISTRATION $10,556.58 $51,045.57 $175,916.00 29.02 % $124,870.43
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  OTHER REQUIREMENTS
012-800-9050 Transfer to Equipment Fund $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
012-800-9990 Contingency $0.00 $0.00 $19,195.00 0.00 % $19,195.00
  Total OTHER REQUIREMENTS $0.00 $4,000.00 $23,195.00 17.25 % $19,195.00

Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL $0.00 $4,000.00 $23,195.00 17.25 % $19,195.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
Total STREET FUND $10,556.58 $55,045.57 $199,111.00 27.65 % $144,065.43
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
BBJ FESTIVAL FUND
ADMINISTRATION
  MATERIALS & SERVICES
014-100-6022 IT Services $0.00 $0.00 $450.00 0.00 % $450.00
014-100-6120 Programs $0.00 $1,079.27 $1,200.00 89.94 % $120.73
014-100-6124 Festival Advertisement $0.00 $325.00 $1,400.00 23.21 % $1,075.00
014-100-6126 Postage $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 0.00 % $50.00
014-100-6190 Miscellaneous Exp $0.00 $2,192.67 $1,850.00 118.52 % ($342.67)
014-100-6440 Telephone Services $0.00 $68.95 $0.00 ($68.95)
014-100-6445 Refuse Services $0.00 $812.00 $90.00 902.22 % ($722.00)
014-100-6605 Rent $80.00 $460.00 $500.00 92.00 % $40.00
014-100-6614 Materials & Services $0.00 $112.65 $0.00 ($112.65)
014-100-6810 Craft/Commercial Booth Exp $0.00 $111.08 $750.00 14.81 % $638.92
014-100-6812 Food Booth Exp $0.00 $40.00 $0.00 ($40.00)
014-100-6814 Jam Sales Exp $0.00 $374.00 $1,000.00 37.40 % $626.00
014-100-6816 Quilt Raffle $0.00 $2,645.00 $4,000.00 66.13 % $1,355.00
014-100-6820 Sponsorship Exp $0.00 $50.51 $0.00 ($50.51)
014-100-6822 Pie Sales Exp $0.00 $186.80 $0.00 ($186.80)
014-100-6850 5K Race Exp $0.00 $495.00 $1,100.00 45.00 % $605.00
014-100-6852 Car Show Exp $0.00 $3,055.07 $4,000.00 76.38 % $944.93
014-100-6854 Fishing Derby Exp $0.00 $500.00 $350.00 142.86 % ($150.00)
014-100-6856 Horseshoe Tourney Exp $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 0.00 % $100.00
014-100-6858 Kidz Korner Exp $0.00 $290.00 $1,000.00 29.00 % $710.00
014-100-6860 Pie Eating Contest Exp $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 0.00 % $200.00
014-100-6862 RC Flyers Exp $0.00 $100.00 $400.00 25.00 % $300.00
014-100-6864 Entertainment Exp $0.00 $3,780.32 $3,850.00 98.19 % $69.68
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $80.00 $16,678.32 $22,290.00 74.82 % $5,611.68

Total ADMINISTRATION $80.00 $16,678.32 $22,290.00 74.82 % $5,611.68

NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  OTHER REQUIREMENTS
014-800-9990 Contingency $0.00 $0.00 $14,671.00 0.00 % $14,671.00
  Total OTHER REQUIREMENTS $0.00 $0.00 $14,671.00 0.00 % $14,671.00

Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL $0.00 $0.00 $14,671.00 0.00 % $14,671.00
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Total BBJ FESTIVAL FUND $80.00 $16,678.32 $36,961.00 45.12 % $20,282.68
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
WATER RESERVE FUND
NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  OTHER REQUIREMENTS
020-800-9992 Reserved for Water Bond Payment $0.00 $0.00 $19,690.00 0.00 % $19,690.00
  Total OTHER REQUIREMENTS $0.00 $0.00 $19,690.00 0.00 % $19,690.00

Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL $0.00 $0.00 $19,690.00 0.00 % $19,690.00
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Total WATER RESERVE FUND $0.00 $0.00 $19,690.00 0.00 % $19,690.00
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SEWER RESERVE FUND
NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  OTHER REQUIREMENTS
021-800-9997 Reserved for Sewer Bond Payment $0.00 $0.00 $8,245.00 0.00 % $8,245.00
  Total OTHER REQUIREMENTS $0.00 $0.00 $8,245.00 0.00 % $8,245.00

Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL $0.00 $0.00 $8,245.00 0.00 % $8,245.00
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Total SEWER RESERVE FUND $0.00 $0.00 $8,245.00 0.00 % $8,245.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
WATER FUND
ADMINISTRATION
  PERSONAL SERVICES
030-100-5010 City Administrator $1,666.47 $9,165.58 $20,499.00 44.71 % $11,333.42
030-100-5014 City Clerk $1,677.85 $9,228.40 $20,040.00 46.05 % $10,811.60
030-100-5050 Public Works Director $1,913.69 $10,525.60 $22,963.00 45.84 % $12,437.40
030-100-5052 Utility Worker I $0.00 $0.00 $13,742.00 0.00 % $13,742.00
030-100-5054 Utility Worker II $2,835.86 $8,575.48 $15,157.00 56.58 % $6,581.52
030-100-5058 Maintenance Worker I $306.58 $1,500.37 $3,377.00 44.43 % $1,876.63
030-100-5220 Overtime $795.74 $3,600.04 $7,759.00 46.40 % $4,158.96
030-100-5315 Social Security/Medicare(FICA) $703.54 $3,258.59 $8,831.00 36.90 % $5,572.41
030-100-5320 Worker's Comp $3.74 $1,457.63 $5,797.00 25.14 % $4,339.37
030-100-5350 Unemployment Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $8,003.00 0.00 % $8,003.00
030-100-5410 Health Insurance $1,758.96 $8,794.90 $30,614.00 28.73 % $21,819.10
030-100-5450 Public Employees Retirement $882.04 $4,722.82 $11,907.00 39.66 % $7,184.18
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $12,544.47 $60,829.41 $168,689.00 36.06 % $107,859.59

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
030-100-6010 Auditing $0.00 $0.00 $4,290.00 0.00 % $4,290.00
030-100-6012 Legal Services $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00 % $500.00
030-100-6014 Financial Services $198.25 $1,189.50 $3,570.00 33.32 % $2,380.50
030-100-6016 Engineering Services $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00 % $1,000.00
030-100-6022 IT Services $16.20 $1,272.36 $5,418.00 23.48 % $4,145.64
030-100-6028 Other Contract Services $0.00 $1,032.48 $7,100.00 14.54 % $6,067.52
030-100-6110 Insurance And Bonds $0.00 $5,643.03 $6,594.00 85.58 % $950.97
030-100-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $285.00 $505.00 $1,000.00 50.50 % $495.00
030-100-6126 Postage $117.50 $675.00 $1,516.00 44.53 % $841.00
030-100-6130 Office Supplies/Equipment $0.00 $57.13 $250.00 22.85 % $192.87
030-100-6134 General Supplies $41.99 $2,528.50 $2,570.00 98.39 % $41.50
030-100-6138 Bank Service Charges $0.00 $0.00 $2,744.00 0.00 % $2,744.00
030-100-6140 Travel & Training $0.00 $956.25 $1,000.00 95.63 % $43.75
030-100-6190 Miscellaneous Expenditures $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 0.00 % $200.00
030-100-6220 Building Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $19.87 $1,000.00 1.99 % $980.13
030-100-6224 Equipment Repair & Maintenance $479.60 $703.01 $2,000.00 35.15 % $1,296.99
030-100-6230 Other Repair & Maintenance $4.20 $7,691.53 $15,000.00 51.28 % $7,308.47
030-100-6234 Non-Capitalized Assets $0.00 $29.99 $3,500.00 0.86 % $3,470.01
030-100-6420 Water Services $51.56 $1,407.52 $524.00 268.61 % ($883.52)
030-100-6425 Sewer Services $58.51 $349.36 $698.00 50.05 % $348.64
030-100-6430 Electricity Services $1,339.09 $7,197.54 $16,438.00 43.79 % $9,240.46
030-100-6435 Internet Services $70.00 $420.00 $865.00 48.55 % $445.00
030-100-6440 Telephone Services $288.97 $1,815.92 $3,672.00 49.45 % $1,856.08
030-100-6445 Refuse Services $18.92 $112.45 $0.00 ($112.45)
030-100-6610 Gas & Oil $322.86 $523.89 $1,000.00 52.39 % $476.11
030-100-6720 Chemicals & Lab Supplies $12.14 $9,898.24 $20,332.00 48.68 % $10,433.76
030-100-6722 Water/Sewer Analysis $322.20 $1,999.80 $4,000.00 50.00 % $2,000.20
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $3,626.99 $46,028.37 $106,781.00 43.11 % $60,752.63
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  CAPITAL OUTLAY
030-100-8018 Capital Outlay - Software $0.00 $280.53 $7,955.00 3.53 % $7,674.47
030-100-8020 Capital Outlay - Other Improvements $0.00 $0.00 $28,000.00 0.00 % $28,000.00
  Total CAPITAL OUTLAY $0.00 $280.53 $35,955.00 0.78 % $35,674.47

Total ADMINISTRATION $16,171.46 $107,138.31 $311,425.00 34.40 % $204,286.69
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NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  DEBT SERVICE
030-800-7020 Loan Principal $0.00 $15,101.01 $15,102.00 99.99 % $0.99
030-800-7021 Loan Interest $0.00 $5,543.19 $2,177.00 254.63 % ($3,366.19)
030-800-7122 Loan Principal - SPWF $0.00 $4,055.64 $4,056.00 99.99 % $0.36
030-800-7123 Loan Interest - SPWF $0.00 $0.00 $3,367.00 0.00 % $3,367.00
030-800-7124 Loan Principal - RD $0.00 $0.00 $15,663.00 0.00 % $15,663.00
030-800-7125 Loan Interest - RD $0.00 $0.00 $23,718.00 0.00 % $23,718.00
  Total DEBT SERVICE $0.00 $24,699.84 $64,083.00 38.54 % $39,383.16

  OTHER REQUIREMENTS
030-800-9020 Transfer to water Reserve Fund $0.00 $3,938.00 $3,938.00 100.00 % $0.00
030-800-9050 Transfer to Equipment Fund $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
030-800-9990 Contingency $0.00 $0.00 $70,733.00 0.00 % $70,733.00
  Total OTHER REQUIREMENTS $0.00 $5,938.00 $76,671.00 7.74 % $70,733.00

Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL $0.00 $30,637.84 $140,754.00 21.77 % $110,116.16
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Total WATER FUND $16,171.46 $137,776.15 $452,179.00 30.47 % $314,402.85
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
SEWER FUND
ADMINISTRATION
  PERSONAL SERVICES
040-100-5010 City Administrator $1,666.51 $9,165.79 $20,499.00 44.71 % $11,333.21
040-100-5014 City Clerk $1,677.83 $9,228.05 $20,040.00 46.05 % $10,811.95
040-100-5050 Public Works Director $1,913.80 $10,525.92 $22,963.00 45.84 % $12,437.08
040-100-5052 Utility Worker I $0.00 $0.00 $13,742.00 0.00 % $13,742.00
040-100-5054 Utility Worker II $2,835.83 $8,575.35 $15,157.00 56.58 % $6,581.65
040-100-5058 Maintenance Worker I $306.56 $1,500.34 $3,377.00 44.43 % $1,876.66
040-100-5220 Overtime $795.74 $3,600.09 $7,759.00 46.40 % $4,158.91
040-100-5315 Social Security/Medicare(FICA) $703.49 $3,258.51 $8,831.00 36.90 % $5,572.49
040-100-5320 Worker's Comp $3.80 $1,457.71 $5,797.00 25.15 % $4,339.29
040-100-5350 Unemployment Insurance $0.00 $0.00 $8,003.00 0.00 % $8,003.00
040-100-5410 Health Insurance $1,758.97 $8,794.86 $30,614.00 28.73 % $21,819.14
040-100-5450 Public Employees Retirement $882.10 $4,723.02 $11,907.00 39.67 % $7,183.98
  Total PERSONAL SERVICES $12,544.63 $60,829.64 $168,689.00 36.06 % $107,859.36

  MATERIALS & SERVICES
040-100-6010 Auditing $0.00 $0.00 $4,290.00 0.00 % $4,290.00
040-100-6012 Legal Services $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00 % $500.00
040-100-6014 Financial Services $198.25 $1,189.50 $3,570.00 33.32 % $2,380.50
040-100-6016 Engineering Services $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00 % $1,000.00
040-100-6022 IT Services $16.20 $1,132.75 $4,736.00 23.92 % $3,603.25
040-100-6028 Other Contract Services $300.00 $1,932.48 $4,000.00 48.31 % $2,067.52
040-100-6110 Insurance And Bonds $0.00 $5,643.03 $6,594.00 85.58 % $950.97
040-100-6120 Publications, Printing & Dues $160.00 $380.00 $400.00 95.00 % $20.00
040-100-6126 Postage $117.50 $673.50 $1,500.00 44.90 % $826.50
040-100-6130 Office Supplies/Equipment $0.00 $72.74 $250.00 29.10 % $177.26
040-100-6134 General Supplies $40.90 $367.96 $2,000.00 18.40 % $1,632.04
040-100-6138 Bank Service Charges $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 0.00 % $1,500.00
040-100-6140 Travel & Training $0.00 $1,014.36 $1,000.00 101.44 % ($14.36)
040-100-6190 Miscellaneous Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 0.00 % $300.00
040-100-6220 Building Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $422.25 $1,000.00 42.23 % $577.75
040-100-6224 Equipment Repair & Maintenance $0.00 $6,738.12 $5,000.00 134.76 % ($1,738.12)
040-100-6230 Other Repair & Maintenance $4.20 $48.31 $12,500.00 0.39 % $12,451.69
040-100-6234 Non-Capitalized Assets $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 0.00 % $1,000.00
040-100-6420 Water Services $904.75 $4,425.80 $6,794.00 65.14 % $2,368.20
040-100-6425 Sewer Services $526.59 $3,144.24 $6,469.00 48.60 % $3,324.76
040-100-6430 Electricity Services $1,746.54 $12,020.66 $28,619.00 42.00 % $16,598.34
040-100-6440 Telephone Services $126.97 $698.59 $1,686.00 41.43 % $987.41
040-100-6445 Refuse Services $18.92 $112.45 $324.00 34.71 % $211.55
040-100-6520 Permits $0.00 $0.00 $3,100.00 0.00 % $3,100.00
040-100-6610 Gas & Oil $232.53 $408.19 $1,388.00 29.41 % $979.81
040-100-6720 Chemicals & Lab Supplies $1,020.39 $5,959.72 $13,000.00 45.84 % $7,040.28
040-100-6722 Water/Sewer Analysis $403.20 $4,685.40 $11,500.00 40.74 % $6,814.60
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $5,816.94 $51,070.05 $124,020.00 41.18 % $72,949.95
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
  CAPITAL OUTLAY
040-100-8018 Capital Outlay - Software $0.00 $280.53 $7,955.00 3.53 % $7,674.47
  Total CAPITAL OUTLAY $0.00 $280.53 $7,955.00 3.53 % $7,674.47

Total ADMINISTRATION $18,361.57 $112,180.22 $300,664.00 37.31 % $188,483.78
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  DEBT SERVICE
040-800-7020 Loan Principal $0.00 $18,171.00 $18,171.00 100.00 % $0.00
040-800-7021 Loan Interest $0.00 $10,570.60 $10,571.00 100.00 % $0.40
040-800-7122 Loan Principal - SPWF $0.00 $4,055.63 $4,056.00 99.99 % $0.37
040-800-7123 Loan Interest - SPWF $0.00 $3,366.86 $3,367.00 100.00 % $0.14
040-800-7124 Loan Principal - RD $0.00 $0.00 $6,263.00 0.00 % $6,263.00
040-800-7125 Loan Interest - RD $0.00 $0.00 $9,482.00 0.00 % $9,482.00
  Total DEBT SERVICE $0.00 $36,164.09 $51,910.00 69.67 % $15,745.91

  OTHER REQUIREMENTS
040-800-9021 Transfer to Sewer Reserve Fund $0.00 $1,575.00 $1,575.00 100.00 % $0.00
040-800-9050 Transfer to Equipment Fund $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 100.00 % $0.00
040-800-9990 Contingency $0.00 $0.00 $103,805.00 0.00 % $103,805.00
  Total OTHER REQUIREMENTS $0.00 $3,575.00 $107,380.00 3.33 % $103,805.00

Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL $0.00 $39,739.09 $159,290.00 24.95 % $119,550.91
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
Total SEWER FUND $18,361.57 $151,919.31 $459,954.00 33.03 % $308,034.69
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
UTILITY DEPOSIT FUND
ADMINISTRATION
  MATERIALS & SERVICES
045-100-6907 Deposit Refunds $360.00 $2,290.42 $0.00 ($2,290.42)
  Total MATERIALS & SERVICES $360.00 $2,290.42 $0.00 ($2,290.42)

Total ADMINISTRATION $360.00 $2,290.42 $0.00 ($2,290.42)

Total UTILITY DEPOSIT FUND $360.00 $2,290.42 $0.00 ($2,290.42)
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
EQUIPMENT FUND
ADMINISTRATION
  CAPITAL OUTLAY
050-100-8014 Capital Outlay - Vehicles & Equipment $0.00 $23,452.67 $53,579.00 43.77 % $30,126.33
  Total CAPITAL OUTLAY $0.00 $23,452.67 $53,579.00 43.77 % $30,126.33

Total ADMINISTRATION $0.00 $23,452.67 $53,579.00 43.77 % $30,126.33
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
Total EQUIPMENT FUND $0.00 $23,452.67 $53,579.00 43.77 % $30,126.33
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
DEBT RESERVE FUND
NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  OTHER REQUIREMENTS
055-800-9040 Transfer to Sewer Fund $0.00 $15,745.00 $15,745.00 100.00 % $0.00
  Total OTHER REQUIREMENTS $0.00 $15,745.00 $15,745.00 100.00 % $0.00

Total NON-DEPARTMENTAL $0.00 $15,745.00 $15,745.00 100.00 % $0.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
Total DEBT RESERVE FUND $0.00 $15,745.00 $15,745.00 100.00 % $0.00
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Account Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance

                Grand Totals $226,391.49 $741,046.68 $1,931,618.00 38.36 % $1,190,571.32
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Totals By Fund
Fund Number Title Period Fiscal Budget % of Total Balance
010-000-0000 GENERAL FUND $180,861.88 $338,139.24 $686,154.00 49.28 % $348,014.76
012-000-0000 STREET FUND $10,556.58 $55,045.57 $199,111.00 27.65 % $144,065.43
014-000-0000 BBJ FESTIVAL FUND $80.00 $16,678.32 $36,961.00 45.12 % $20,282.68
020-000-0000 WATER RESERVE FUND $0.00 $0.00 $19,690.00 0.00 % $19,690.00
021-000-0000 SEWER RESERVE FUND $0.00 $0.00 $8,245.00 0.00 % $8,245.00
030-000-0000 WATER FUND $16,171.46 $137,776.15 $452,179.00 30.47 % $314,402.85
040-000-0000 SEWER FUND $18,361.57 $151,919.31 $459,954.00 33.03 % $308,034.69
045-000-0000 UTILITY DEPOSIT FUND $360.00 $2,290.42 $0.00 ($2,290.42)
050-000-0000 EQUIPMENT FUND $0.00 $23,452.67 $53,579.00 43.77 % $30,126.33
055-000-0000 DEBT RESERVE FUND $0.00 $15,745.00 $15,745.00 100.00 % $0.00

Grand Totals $226,391.49 $741,046.68 $1,931,618.00 38.36 % $1,190,571.32
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Lowell Municipal Court

Revenues
2nd Qtr FY 18-19 Revenue
Oct-18 25.00$                 
Nov-18 1,062.03$            
Dec-18 25.00$                 

Total Revenues 1,112.03$            

Expenses

2nd Qtr FY 18-19 Assessments Bailiff Judge
CC Bank 
Charges

Collection 
Expenses

Citation
Refunds Total

Oct-18 -$                     -$                -$                
Nov-18 -$                     238.51$          
Dec-18
Total Expenses -$                     -$                -$                -$                238.51$          -$                238.51$          

Revenue Distribution
2nd Qtr Revenue 1,112.03$            
Less 10% Admin Fee 111.20$               
Less Court Expenses 238.51$               
Net Revenue 762.32$               

City of Oakridge
50%  Net Revenue 381.16$               
Bailiff -$                     
Total 381.16$               Amount to be paid to City of Oakridge 

City of Lowell
50% Net Revenue 381.16$               
Judge -$                     
10% Admin Fee 111.20$               
Total 492.36$               Amount to be paid to City of Lowell



Component Starting Balance Earned Used Balance
Baker, Max 
Sick 359.00 4.00 0.00 363.00
Vacation 88.40 5.00 0.00 93.40

447.40 9.00 0.00 456.40
Cobb, Jared B
Sick 273.00 4.00 0.00 277.00
Vacation 240.00 6.67 23.00 223.67

513.00 10.67 23.00 500.67
Daigneault, Robert G. 
Sick 82.50 2.50 0.00 85.00
Vacation 26.30 2.10 0.00 28.40

108.80 4.60 0.00 113.40
Donnell, Joyce 
Sick 534.50 4.00 0.00 538.50
Vacation 85.10 5.00 0.00 90.10

619.60 9.00 0.00 628.60
Grand Total: 1,688.80 33.27 23.00 1,699.07

Employee Accruals

Pay period: 2019 - January - !st Pay Period
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Component Starting Balance Earned Used Balance
Sick 1,249.00 14.50 0.00 1,263.50
Vacation 439.80 18.77 23.00 435.57
Grand Total: 1,688.80 33.27 23.00 1,699.07
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
Monthly Police Report 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

 

SUMMARY: 
The Monthly Police Report for December is presented for your review and discussion. 
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
  

COURSES OF ACTION: 
This item is presented for purposes of review and discussion. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. December Police Report 

 
 

 

 



DATE OFFICERS START TIME END TIME # HOURS CONTACTS ARRESTS CITES WARNINGS CALLS REPORT #
1-Dec 401 18:00 19:30 1:30
2-Dec 407 23:30 1:00 1:30
4-Dec 407 0:00 1:30 1:30
5-Dec 407 1:00 2:30 1:30
1-Dec 408 0:30 2:30 2:00
2-Dec 408 1:30 3:30 2:00
6-Dec 408 0:30 3:30 3:00
7-Dec 408 0:30 1:30 1:00
9-Dec 407 0:30 2:00 1:30
19-Dec 408 0:00 2:00 2:00
20-Dec 408 0:00 1:30 1:30
24-Dec 408 1:00 5:00 4:00
25-Dec 408 2:00 4:30 2:30
26-Dec 408 23:00 1:30 2:30
27-Dec 408 22:00 0:00 2:00
28-Dec 408 0:00 2:30 2:30
30-Dec 408 1:00 3:00 2:00
31-Dec 420 11:00 17:30 6:30
31-Dec 406 14:30 15:30 1:00

TOTAL HOURS 42 0 0 0 0 0 0

CITATION WARNING DATE TIME
SPEED
DWS
FAIL TO SIGNAL
STOP VIOLATIONS
OTHER MOVING
NON-MOVING
DEFECTIVE EQUIPMENT
SEAT BELT
NO LICENSE
REGISTRATION VIOLATIONS
NO INSURANCE
ALCOHOL/MARIJUANA
NO PROOF INSURANCE

TOTAL 0 0

LOWELL PATROL LOG DECEMBER 2018

DESCRIPTIONTRAFFIC VIOLATIONS



 
      

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Max Baker, Public Works Director 
January 11, 2019 
Public Works Report 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

 

SUMMARY: 
The attached Public Works Report is for the period of December 15 – January 11. The report 
covers the following topics: Streets and Parks, Wastewater Treatment Plant, Water Treatment 
Plant, Training and Certification, and Code Enforcement. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
This item is presented for purposes of review and discussion. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Public Works Report 

 
 
 

 



 

 
Public Works Department 
P.O. Box 490 Lowell, OR 97452  
Phone: 541-937-2157    
Fax: 541-937-2936   
Email: mbaker@ci.lowell.or.us 

 

 

TO:  Mayor Bennett and Council 
FROM:  Max Baker, Public Works Director 
DATE:   January 11, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Report 
 
 
Streets and Parks 
Staff removed Holiday decorations from Covered Bridge. The far South gate (highway 58 side) 
of the Covered Bridge was opened and safely secured in the open position. 
 
Still brainstorming on ideas to mitigate pigeon issues. 
 
Park inspections are complete for January. 
 
A tarp was placed on the caboose at RR park to prevent further damage from a leaking roof. 
Staff has ordered some sealant to repair the leaks. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant/Collections 
Staff has requested a quote to switch interior and exterior lights plantwide to LED. Many of the 
existing lights installed need replacement or extensive maintenance. 
  
Water Treatment Plant/Distribution 
5 New water meters were installed. 
 
Staff repaired a water leak at 75 Loftus. Leak was estimated to be 20-25 GPM. 
 
Training and Certification 
The LCC training intern was approved to test for Level I wastewater treatment. 
 
Code Enforcement 
Door Hangers  3 
Verbal   1 
Vehicles  2 
Letters   2 



 
      

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
Draft Committee Minutes 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

 

SUMMARY: 
The most recent draft minutes for the Blackberry Jam Festival Committee are attached for 
your review. 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
For review and discussion only. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
For review and discussion only. 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft minutes for the Blackberry Jam Festival Committee for January 8, 2019. 
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City of Lowell, Oregon  
Minutes of the Blackberry Jam Festival Committee Meeting 

January 8, 2019 
 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Vice-Chair Michael Galvin 

 
Members Present: Pam Baumann, Michael & Virginia Galvin, George Wild, Gerry Burr, Diane 
Stephens, Brad Anderson, Joyce Donnell, Warren Weathers, Lonna Bennett, Patty Jo Angelini, 
CA - Jared Cobb 
 
Approval of Minutes: George Wild moved to approve the minutes of November 13, 2018, 
second by Diane Stephens. Approved by consensus. 
 
Old Business:  

1) Marketing: 
Financial:  CA Cobb provided a report for December 2018.  Michael requested that the 2016-17 
be added to the report for comparison, at the next meeting. 
Public Relations/Advertising/ Program: Patty Jo discussed options to provide more exposure, it 
was the consensus to continue with the printable program and set up like last year.  A list of 
advertisers was provided to the members to seek verification. Patty Jo stated that the yearly 
payment on the Go Daddy domain name needs follow up. 
Poster:  Patty Jo will proceed with help from Aaron Graham and Laura Anderson to design this 
year’s poster.  Freedom was given to create the 25th Anniversary Edition.  
Sponsorship:  Patty Jo would like to encourage the sponsors to provide a banner to be displayed 
at the festival. 
 

2) Events: 
Car Show:  No report 
Craft Vendors: Pam stated she will proceed with sending the applications out.   
Entertainment: No report 
Fishing Derby:  Warren reported there are new leaders and they are changing the event to 
encourage more involvement.   
Food Vendors:  No report 
Grease Pole Climb: No report. 
Horseshoe Event:  Brad requested to move the  event from Sunday to Saturday, and start 
registration at 4 PM, and throwing at 5 PM.  Approved by consensus. 
K9 Event:  George reported no change.    
Kids Entertainment: Savannah reported that the County Fair and Children’s Celebration is also 
scheduled for that weekend.  She is looking for volunteers to help with event and will be 
contacting the schools, the Boys and Girls Scouts.  She has been checking the donated toys, and 
received a $20 donation from Lonna Bennett towards the purchase of new toys. 
Parade: Diane stated that Superintendent Johnie Matthews will contact Music Director Paul 
Burch about having the HS Band perform in the parade. 
Pie Baking/ Eating Contest: No report  
Quilt Show:  Gerry provided a picture of the 2019 Quilt, submitted bills for payment and revenue 
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from ticket sales.  Also stated they have begun work on the 2020 Quilt.  
5KRun/Walk:  CA reported that he will follow up with Danielle McCallum about the event. 
  

3) Event Support: 
Security:  George reported no change, CA Cobb stated that Oakridge Police will be present. 
Garbage/Recycle/Toilets:  Joyce stated the new representative of Honey Bucket had made 
contact, and will get a quote once she has the number of toilets needed. It was decided by 
consensus to keep the same amount and to use the toilet reserved for RC Flyers, be placed at the 
East end of the park for the Kids Area.   
Layout/set-up/Grounds:  CA will provide an updated map of the grounds at the next meeting. 
City: Nothing to report. 
 
New Business:  None 
 
 
Other Business:  

1) Beer & Wine Garden:  CA Cobb presented information from the Oakridge Keg and Cask 
Festival. After much discussion, Patty Jo volunteered to coordinate the Beer & Wine 
Garden Event at the BBJ Festival.  Pam Baumann move to proceed with the planning of a 
Beer & Wine Garden Event, with tentative approval of the event subject to the plan 
proposal.  Second by Warren Weathers.  Approved by consensus.  George Wild opposed. 

 
Adjourn:  8:35 PM 
 
 
 
 Approved:  _____________________________                   Date: _______________        
                      Michael Galvin – Vice-Chair                                       
 
 
 
Attest:          ____________________________                     Date: _______________            
                     Jared Cobb – City Recorder                                       



 
      

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
Resolution 710 
Naming Library for Maggie Osgood 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

SUMMARY: 
Councilor Angelini requested an agenda item to name the library for the late Volunteer 
Librarian and City Councilor Maggie Osgood. A draft resolution is attached for review and 
discussion. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
1. Motion to adopt Resolution 710 – A Resolution Naming the Lowell Public Library in 

Memory of the Late Volunteer Librarian Maggie Osgood. 
2. No action. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Motion to adopt Resolution 710 – A Resolution Naming the Lowell Public Library in 

Memory of the Late Volunteer Librarian Maggie Osgood. 
 
 

 



Resolution 710  Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF LOWELL, OREGON 
 

RESOLUTION 710 
 

A RESOLUTION NAMING THE LOWELL PUBLIC LIBRARY IN MEMORY OF THE 
LATE VOLUNTEER LIBRARIAN MAGGIE OSGOOD 

 
WHEREAS, Maggie Osgood, who departed this life on January 9, 2019, was at the time of her 
death and for many years prior thereto had been the volunteer librarian in charge of the City’s 
public library; and 
 
WHEREAS, Maggie Osgood was whole-heartedly devoted to the growth and development of the 
library, giving specific attention to the resources needed to support the children and underserved 
in our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lowell City Council would like to recognize the dedication and efforts of Maggie 
Osgood by naming the Lowell Public Library as the “Maggie Osgood Library”; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lowell, Oregon, hereby 
names and designates the Lowell Public Library as the “Maggie Osgood Library”. 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 15th Day of January 2019.  
 
 
Approved: ______________________________ 

Don Bennett, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:  ______________________________ 
  Jared Cobb, City Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 



 
      

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
FY 2017/18 Audit Presentation 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

 

SUMMARY: 
The Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2018 has been completed and is 
available for your review. There are no audit findings for FY 2017/18. Bill Trotter, with Emerald 
CPA Group, will present the audit report and answer questions. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
1. Motion to accept the FY 2017/18 Annual Financial Report. 
2. No action.  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to accept the FY 2017/18 Annual Financial Report. 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2018. 
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CITY OF LOWELL
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Year Ended June 3O, 2018
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Name and Address

Don Bennett, Mayor
540 Sunridge Lane
Lowell, Oregon 97452

Patricia Jo Angelini
239 S Pioneer Street
Lowell, Oregon 97452

Jim Burford
160 Wetlau Dr,
Lowell, Oregon 97452

Maggie Osgood
PO Box 6
Lowell, Oregon 97452

Gail Harris
P,O. Box 328
Lowell, Oregon 97452

Name

Jared Cobb

Milo Mecham

CITY OF LOWELL

CITY OFFICIALS

June 30, 2018

ELECTED OFFICIALS

Position

Position 1

Position 2

Position 3
Council President

Position 4

Position 5

APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Position

City Administrator

Legal Counsel Attorney at Law

Mailing Address

City of Lowell
107 East Third Street

P.O. Box 490
Lowell, Oregon 97452

(541) 937-2157. Facsimile (541) 937-2936

Term Expires

December 3I,2022

December 31,2O2O

December 3I,2020
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INDEPEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lowell
Lane County, Oregon

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Lowell, Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2OLB, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting as described in note 1; this
includes determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Aud itor's Responsi bil ity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control, Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinions,



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective modified cash basis financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each minor fund and the aggregate remaining fund Information of the City of Lowell, as of
June 30,20L8, and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash
flows thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting
described in note 1.

Other Matters

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The Management's Discussion and Analysis on
pages i-ix is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements, We have applied certain limited procedures to this supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

The combining statements of remaining aggregate fund information and the budgetary schedules
presented as supplementary information on pages 23-34 are for the purposes of additional analysis
and are nota required part of the basic financial statements, The supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole,

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 31, 2018, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contract, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting and compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.



Other Reporting Required by Oregon Minimum Standards

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have
also issued our report dated December 3t,2OtB, on our consideration of the City's internal
control over financial reporting and on tests of its compliance with the provisions of Oregon
Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules OAR 162-10-000 to 162-10-320,
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Ernerald CPA Qroup LLP

Eugene, Oregon
December 31, 2018
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CITY OF LOWETL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) focuses on current year activities and resulting changes. This MD&A
is based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions that existed as of the date of the independent auditor's

report. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which follow this discussion and analysis.

This discussion and analysis present the highlights of financial activities and the financial position of the City of
Lowell. The analysis focuses on significant financial issues, major financial activities and resulting changes in financial
position, debt administration, capital assets, budget changes and variances from the budget, specific issues related

to funds and the economic factors affecting the City.

FINANCIAT HIGHLIGHTS

o TheCity'stotal Assetsasof June30,2018 are58,822,t34,adecreaseof $10,8g6fromthepreviousyear
primarily as a result of capital asset depreciation.

The City's total Liabilities are5L,644,202, a decrease of 564,015 from the previous year, primarily as a result

of debt principle payments.

The City's total debt outstanding decreased 56t,527 or 4% during the current fiscal year. No debt was

refinanced or acquired during the fiscal year.

The City's Net Position increased 562,809 in governmental activities and decreased 522,585 in business

type activities for a combined increase of 540,224 over the previous year.

For its governmental activities, the City received 5140,307 in tax revenue, up 55,326, or 4%oover the prior
year.

For its business type activities, the City recognized 5639,959 in program revenue including 5690,422 in

charges for services.

The City's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 5840,535, an increase of 5!22,060
over the previous fiscal year. Of the total fund balance reported, 5615,140 is considered nonspendable,

restricted, committed or assigned. The remaining 5225,395 is available for spending at the government's

discretion.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements

and other required supplementary information. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of four
components:

o Government-widefinancialstatements
o Fund Financial statements
¡ Notes to the basic financial statements
. Supplementaryinformation

a

a

a

a

a

a



CITY OF LOWELL

MANAGEMENT'S D¡SCUSSION AND ANALYS¡S

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

Government-wide financial statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's

finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Stofement oÍ Net Position presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference

between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful

indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Sfofeme nt of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent

fiscal year. Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally

supported by taxes, fees, and inter-governmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are

intended to recover all or a significant portion oftheir costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

The governmental act¡vities of the City include the following:

¡ General Government
¡ Public Works, Streets
¡ lnfrastructureSystems Development
¡ Debt Reserve

¡ Blackberry Jam Festival

¡ Water Utility
¡ Sewer Utility

Fu nd financial statements
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated

for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to demonstrate and ensure compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: Governmental

funds and Proprietary funds.

Governmental funds
Governmental funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed on available financial resources,

rather than upon net income determination. Therefore, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on the acquisition and use of current spendable resources, as well as

on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in

evaluating a government's near-term requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial decisions. By doing so, readers may better understand the

long-term impact of the government's near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet

and the governmental fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide

reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. These

reconciliations can be found in the basic financial statements.

The Business-type activities of the City include the following:



CITY OF LOWEtt
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

The City maintains six individual governmental funds: The General Fund, Street Fund, Blackberry jam Fund,

Equipment Fund, Systems Development Charges (SDC) Fund and the Debt Service Fund. lnformation is presented

separately in the governmental fund Balance Sheet and in the governmental fund Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for each of those funds.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds. To demonstrate compliance with the

budget, budgetary comparison statements have been provided in the Supplementary lnformation section.

Proprietary funds
Proprietary funds are used to account for activities where the emphasis is placed on net income determination. The

City maintains one type of proprietary fund known as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activ¡ties in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses

enterprise funds to account for its water utility and sewer utility operations and for reserves for water and sewer

utility capital improvements. The water and sewer funds, both of which are considered major funds of the City, are

combined with their associated reserve fund in the basic financial statements.

The City also adopts an annual appropriated budget for all proprietary funds. The proprietary fund financial

statements can be found in the Basic Financial Statements. To demonstrate compliance with the budget, budgetary

comparison statements have been provided in the Supplementary lnformation section.

Notes to the bâsic financial statements
The notes to the basic financial statements contain additional information that is essential for a full understanding

of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. They are an integral part of the basic

financial statements and should be read in conjunction with them.

Other supplementary information
The combining statements and schedules referred to earlier follow the notes in this report.

GOVERNM ENT-WI DE FINANCIAT ANATYSIS

One important question asked about the City's finances is, "ls the City better or worse off as a result of the year's

activities?" The information in the government-wide financial statements helps answer this question. These

statements include all assets and liabilities, with the addition of reporting depreciation on capital assets. This is

similar to the basis of accounting used by most private-sector companies.

The change in net position over time is one indicator of whether the City's financial health is improving or

deteriorating. However, there are other non-financial factors that influence the City's fiscal health, such as changes

in the economy and changes in the City's tax base, etc. This report includes a comparison to the prior year to assist

the reader in determining the status of the City's fiscal standing over time. At the close of the most recent fiscal

year, the City's assets exceeded liabilities (net position) by 57,165,037.



CITY OF LOWETL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

CITY OF LOWELL - NET POSITION

The table below reflects a summary of net position compared to the prior fiscal year, the following notes

summarize the major changes to net position.

Current a nd other assets

Câpita I assets

Total assets

Government

June 2018 June2077

s 843,012 5 724,930

3.083.s74 3.129.930

Tota I

June 2018

r,L58,722 s

7.663.4r2

lune 2017 Change

942,007 5 276,7rs

Bu s i ness

June 2018 June 2017

s 315,710 s 2L7,077 s

4.579.838 4.767.O93 9q n) 3 ())7 1ì7 61

s 3,926.s86 s 3,8s4,860 s 4,895,s48 s 4, 978.L70 s 8.822.L34 s 8.833,030 s (10,896)

Current liabilities

Non-current lia bilities

Totalliabilities

5 2,477 5 o,¿SS S 32,s60 S

1 609 165

31,070 5

1.67fJ.692

35,037 $

1.609.165

37,525 s
7î âq)

(2,488)

lâ1 \)7\6

s 2,477 s 6,455 5 7,64r,72s 5 r,70r.762 s 7.644.202 I L.708,277 s (64.01s)

Net position:

Net ¡nvestment in

ca pìta I assets

Restri cted

Un restri cted

s 3,083,s74 s

552,1s2

275,488

3,129,930 5

495,677

222,798

6,220,33r

495,677

40R 805

s (166,084)

56,475

2,970,673 s 3,090,401 s 6,Os4,247 s

552,7s2

283.1s0 186.007 558.638 149 .83 3

Tota I net pos¡tion 5 3,97r,274 S 3,848,405 s 3.2s3.823 s 3.276.408 s 7,76s,037 s 7.124.Ar3 s 40.224

Changes in net position
The entire balance of unrestricted net position may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens

and creditors within the fund they are located. The City's current and other assets equal 5!,\58,722, an increase of

52t6,7t5 from the previous year. The City's total non-current liabilities equal $1,609,!65, a decrease of 561,527

from the previous fiscal year.

84.5% of the City's net position is invested in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure, less

accumulated depreciatíon), and reported net of any related debt. The City uses these capital assets to provide

services to its citizens, thus, they do not represent resources available for future spending. 7.7%of the City's net

position is restricted and represents cash and investments that are legally restricted for capital expansíon or debt

service. Finally, the remainin g7.8% is unrestricted, meaning it is available for meeting the City's ongoing obligations.

The following chart displays the three components of net position as of June 30th.

Net Position

U nrestricted,
ss8,638

Ca pita I

Assets,

6,054,247

Restricted,

552,L52

IV



CITY OF LOWELL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS¡S

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

CITY OF LOWEtt - STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

As with the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Activities reports activities on a consolidated basis. A

summary of significant activities follows the table below.

Government

June 2018 June2O!7

Tota I

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Cha rges for service

Operati ng gra nts

Total program revenues

June 2018 June 2017 Change

79,364 64,349 690,422 605,236

27.649

Bu s i ness

lune 2018 June 2017

20,140

769,786

27.649

669,585

20.140

100,201

7.509

s 107.013 s 84,489 s 690,422 s 60s.236 s 797.43s s 689.725 s 707.770

General revenues:

P ro pe rty ta xes

Fra nchise & public service

ta xes

lnvestment earnings

Other

Gain (loss) on sa le ofasset

Total general revenues

Total revenues:

5 r4o,3o7 S 134,981 S s $ 140,307 $ 134,981 5 s,326

130,777

6,92L

6L,2T5

16,479

95,459

7,782

75,O76

3,265

272

r30,777

10,186

67,487

76.4t9

95,459

7,782

75,385

35,318

2,404

(13,898)

16.4L9

309

3ss.639 313.298 3,s37 309 3 5g 776 11. 607 45.5693

5 462,6s2 5 397,787 S 693,9s9 S 60s,s4s S 1,1s6.611 S 1,001,33? $ 1!!2

Expenses:

General government

Commun¡ty Development

Culture & recreation

Tourism

Public safety

Munic¡palcourt

Highways & streets

Water

Sewer

Total expenses:

lncrease ¡n net position

before tra nsfers

Transferto or
(from) other funds

Change in net position

Beginning net position

Ending net position

s rr8,22s s

42,730

67,812

9,695

30,200

ro,294

707,427

IT8,225 S

42,730

67,8r2

9,695

30,200

70,294

ro7,427

358,810

s (104,809)

42,730

48,436

9,69s

:ri,zoo

to,294

5,324

ro,727

223,034 5

L9,376

96,103

s $ 223,O34

19,376

96,103

348,683358,810

377.794

348,683

347 717 377 194 387 777 110.5 23

380.383 338,513 736.OO4 .400 r.776.?A7 7.074.973 47.474

82,269

119.460)

59,274

ßL.9241 79,460

(42,O4sl. (130,8ss) 40,224 (77,5811 111,80s

q1 924

62,809

3.848.405

(32,6s0) (22,s8s) (38,s31) 40,224

1)4 A1

(71,s81)

.196.394

1 11,80s

171.s8113.881.055 3.276.408 3,3 15 119 7

s 3.9Lr.21,4 s 3.848,405 s 3,2s3,823 s 3 .408 s 7.16s.037 s 7.r24.a13 s 40,224

V



CITY OF LOWEtt
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

Governmental Activities
The net position for governmental activities increased 562,809 over the prior year. This increase is mainly due to
overall increases to charges for services, franchise fees and shared revenues, along with the sale of fixed assets.

Financial highlights from governmental activities for the year include:
¡ Property taxes comprise approximately 30.3% of governmental resources. For operating purposes,

property tax revenues increase $5,326 over last year, as allowed by statute.
o Charges for services represent L7.2% of governmental resources which include: Building & electrical

permits, land use and other permits, animal licenses and library fees.
o Operating grants and contributions increased by 57,509 over the prior year. This increase is mainly due to

an increase to the Rural Tourism Marketing Program Grant, and a St,000 DLCD grant.
¡ Total governmental activity expense increased 541,870 over last year.

Resources by Type Expenses by Activity
lnvestmt &

Other
78%

Gen
Tourism

2%

Franchise

& Pub Svc

Tax

28%

3r%

Comm

Cu ltu re

& Rec

t8%Charges

for
Services..

Operating
Grants &
Contrib's

6%

lnvestmt &
Other

T%

Dev
7r%

Public

Safety
8o/o

Property
Taxes

3t%

Streets

27%

Muni
Court

3%

Business Act¡v¡t¡es
Business-type activities resulted in a $22,585 decrease to net position from the prioryear

Key activities during the fiscal year include:
o Charges for services in the water and sewer funds generated the majority of the $693,959 in revenues for

all business-type activities.
. Expenses remained consistent with last year, with an overall decrease of 5396.

Resources by Type Expenses by Activity

Charges

for
Service

s...

Water
49%

Sewer
5r%

VI



CITY OF tOWEtL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

FUND FINANCIAT ANATYSIS

As previously discussed, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related

legal requirements. A summary of the City's fund balances and fund types follows the table below.

Government

June 2018 June 2017

s 22s,39s 5 784,077 5

L26,292 126,877

397,397 3L6,946

43,614 17,795

19,374 27,526

28,469 s1,8s4

Bus i nes s

June 2018 June2OIT

-S

Tota I

June 2018 June 2017

225,39s 5 784,077

726,292 !26,877

397,39L 316,946

43,614 77,795

L9,374 21,526

28,469 51,8s4

7,548,912 r,597,387

L5,752 1r,8r4
1,682,489 7,662,118

6.670 5,095

General Fund

Street Fund

SDC Fund

Euqipment Fund

BBJ Festival Fund

Debt Service Fund

Water Operating Fund

Water Reserve Fund

Sewer Operatingfund

Sewer Reserve Fund

Tota l:

r,548,9r2

15,752

r,682,489

6,670

7,597,387

17,874

1,662,rr8
s.09s

Cha nge

S 41,318

(s8s)

80,44s

26,4r9
(2,L52)

(23,38s)

(48,46s1

3,938

20,371

r,575

s

s 840.s3s s 718.475 s 3.2s3.823 s 3,276.408 s 4.094.3s8 s 3.994.883 s 99.475

Governmental funds
The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances

of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. ln particular,

unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at

the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of

5840,535, of which 5225,395 is unassigned fund balance. Of the remaining amount 5523,683 is restricted for streets

and systems development and 591,457 is assigned for equipment, debt service and the BlackberryJam.

Bus¡ness-type (Proprietary) funds
The Water and Sewer funds ended the year with a 522,585 decrease in net position, for a combined net position of

53,253,823.

The Water fund ended the fiscal year with a net position of 51,564,664, with 5325,415 of that amount unrestricted

and the remaining balance restricted for or invested (net) in capital assets.

The Sewer fund ended the fiscal year with a net position of S1-,689,159, with S177,579 of that amount unrestricted

and the remaining balance restricted for or invested (net) in capital assets.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The budgetary statement for the General Fund shows the original budget, final budget, actual revenues,

expenditures, debt service and transfers for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. Five budgetary adjustments were

approved by Council during the f¡scal year. The adjustments included an increase of 54,200 to police services, an

increase of $16,130 for building permits and the following grants: Parks Master Plan 532,000, Downtown Master

Plan 530,000, Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development SL,000, Lane Library League S¿OO. final
budgeted expense amounts for program appropriat¡ons differ from the original budget appropriations by 520,300,

or 2.4Yo, with amounts funded through contingency.

vil



CITY OF LOWETL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

CAPITAT ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets
The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2018 was

57 ,663,4L2 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, right-of-way, buildings

and improvements, improvements other than buildings (such as parks and park improvements), equipment, and

infrastructure (streets, water, storm water, and wastewater).

Government

June 2018 June 2017

s 1,969,03s s 1,969,03s s

9,005 9,005

2s2,538 252,538

r,29s,704 7,295,704

6L.487 7L,437

Bus i ness

June 2018 June 2017

Tota I

La nd

Construction ¡n progress

Buildings

lnfrastructure

Furnishings a nd equipment

Tota l:

5

3,587,769 3,597,719 9,310,680 9,286,040 12,898,449 12,883,759 14,690

(s04,19s) ø67,789\ (4,t30,8421 (4, 574.9471 (5.23s.037) 14,992,7361 Q42,3011

92,779

13,s08

44,347

9,O4r,r0t
1 19,54s

92,L79 5

13,508

44,347

9,041,10 I
94.905

June 2018

2,O6L,2r4

22,5t3

296,885

10,336,805

181.032

June 2017

5 2,06t,2r4
22,5I3

296,885

10,336,80s

L66.342

Cha nge

14,690

Accum depreciation:

Net ca pita I a ssets s 3.083.574 s 3.129.930 s 4,579.838 5 4,761 .093 s 7.663.4L2 s 7.891.023 s 1227.6111

Debt Administration
Debt outstanding of S1,609,165 includes notes payable through Business Oregon and United States Department of
Agriculture - Rural Utilities Services (USDA RUS) for water and sewer system improvements. None of this debt is

paid with general obligation bonds.

During the fiscal year, all scheduled debt service payments were met. Debt service requirements are met by revenue
generated by the water and sewer utilities, water and sewer system development charges, reimbursement district
assessments andlor applicable existing debt reserve. The decrease of 56!,527 from the previous year reflects
principal payment on long-term debt. Of the total debt, 563,309 is due within one year, and $1,545,857 is due within
more than one year.

Tota I

Longterm obligations:

Notes payable:

Busi ness Oregon (50006)

Busi ness Oregon (J05001)

Busi ness Oregon (G02002)

usDA RUS (91{3)

usDA RUS (92-0s)

47,4I3 s

t30,248

224,268

862,443

344,793

47,4r3 s

r30,248

224,268

862,443

344,793

Government

June 2018 June 2017

s

Bu s i ness

June 2018 June2OIT June 2018 June20T7 Change

s s 61,851 s

r37,960

242,306

877,687

3s0.888

61,851 s

737,960

242,306

877,687

3s0,888

(14,438)

v,7r2l
(18,038)

(15,244l.

(6.09s)

Total obligations s s s 1,609,16s s 92 s1.609.165 57.670.692s ß7,5271

vilt



CITY OF LOWELL

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the Year Ending June 30, 2018

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City of Lowell is in a stable financial position and continues to experience a slow growth rate and expansion of
its infrastructure. The fiscal year 2018-2019 budget was approved by the City Council on June 5,2018, in the total
amount of 52,76o,223, including Ss6O,zgO in ending fund balances, 5442,505 in inter-fund transfers, 51,15,993 in

debt service and 5269,445 in capital outlay. The budget reflects the City is dedicated to investing in its infrastructure
while ensuring that it is able to maintain high quality services to the City.

Property taxes are the primary resource for the General Fund. The City's permanent tax rate is 52.1613 per S1,000

of assessed valuation. Taxes from the permanent rate are recorded in the General Fund as discretionary revenues

to support General Fund programs such as Police, Municipal Court, Library, Parks and Recreation and Community
Development. Property taxes are budgeted at $138,610 for the 20!8-2019 fiscal year.

Franchise fees and privilege taxes are the second largest revenue source for the General Fund, budgeted at554,279,
and have proven to be largely stable. These fees are charged to various utility companies for use of public right-or-
way based upon a percentage of net sales within city limits.

lntergovernmental revenues, budgeted at S32,151, originate from state and county shared revenues. The state
shared revenues include liquor and cigarette excise taxes, state shared revenues and others. The revenues are

allocated by various formulas, but utilize a per capita rate. lncreases in next year's budget are due primarily to the
addition of marijuana tax revenue and an anticipated increase to liquor tax revenue.

Utility rates are reviewed regularly and adjusted by the City Council to ensure charges are sufficient to finance all

related operating, capital outlay, debt service expenses, and operating reserves, as such:

Water rates will increase 3% effective July 1, 2018

Sewer rates will increase 3% effective July 1, 2018

The personal services budget includes a 5% step increase for employees that receive a satisfactory performance

evaluation. Medical benefits are anticipated to increase6Yo,and Public Employees RetirementSystem (PERS) rates

are expected to remain llat aT LL.5%.

Uncertainties about future economic changes and financial impacts are common to all cities. While the local

economy may be characterized as stable, significant economic growth is not anticipated for the ensuing fiscal year.

The 2018 population estimate is L,075, an increase of just 0.05%, as provided by the Population Research Center at

Portland State University. Revenues are expected to grow slowly at or near the rate of inflation.

REqUESTS FOR INFORMATION
The financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors) with
a general overview of the C¡ty's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability. lf you have questions about
the report or need additional financial information, please contact:

Jared Cobb, City Administrator
City of Lowell
P. O. Box 490
Lowell, OR97452

a
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CITY OF LOWELL
Statement of Net Position

Modified Cash Basis
June 3O, 2O18

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

$ 843.O72 $ 315,710 $ r,r58,722

105,687

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Capital Assets

Land and construction in progress

I nfrastructu re

Buildings and inprovements
Equipment and Furniture, net of depreciation
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net Capital assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Due to other governmental agencies
Utility deposits
Long-term liabilities

Due within one year
Bonds, capital leases and contracts

Due in more than one year
Bonds, capital leases and contracts

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Streets
Capital projects (SDC funds)

Unrestricted
Total net position

3,083,574 4,579,838 7, 663.4r2

$ 3,913,691 $ 4,895,548 $ B,809.239

L,97B,O4O

1,295,704

252,538
6L,487

(s04.195)

9,090,836
r14,L57

(4,730,842)

2,O93,727

!,295,704

9,343,374
775,644

(s,235.O37)

$ 2,477 $
32,560

2,477
32,560

63,309

1.545,856

$

63,309

1,545,856

2,477 L,647,725 r,644,202

3,093,574 2,970,673 6,054,247

126,292
397,397

126,292
397,39r

303 957 283 150 587 L07
$3, 9tL.274 s 3,253,823 g 7,765,O37

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Expenses

C¡TY OF LOWELL
Statement of act¡v¡ties

Modif¡ed Cash Bas¡s
For the Year Ended tune 30, 2018

Program Revenue

Charges for
Operating
Grants and

contr¡but¡ons

Net (Expensel Revenue and Changes ¡n Net Pos¡t¡oñ
Pr¡mary Government

Governmental
Act¡v¡t¡es

Bus¡ness-type
Activit¡es TotalFunctions/ Proorams

Primary government
Governmental Activities

General Government
Community Development
Public Safety
Tour¡sm
Highways and streets
Culture and Recreation
Municipal Court

Total governmental activ¡ties

Business-type act¡vities:
Water FD
Sewer FD

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

$ LLg,225
42,730
30,200
9,695

tot,4z7
67,Ar2
t0,294

8,007
2L,899

( s 1,879)
(42,730)
(30,200)

(9,69s)
(93,42O)
(35,1 52)
(to.294)

(s 1.879)
(42,730)
(30,200)
(9.69s)

(93,420)
(3s,152)
(LO,294)

$ 49,4s8 $ 16,888 $ $ $

0,76

380,383 79,364 27,649 (273,370) (273.370)

3 58,8 10
377,L94
736,004

$ 1,116,387

308,138
382,284

(so,672)
s ôqn

(so,672)
5.090

690,422

_s____1s9;236 s 27.649

(45,582) (45,582)

(273,37O) (45.582) (318,952)

3,265

19,460

17q 22,997 359,L76

(22,58s) 40,224

7,L24,8L33.2 76 Ao,P,

s 3.9rr.2L4 $ 3,253,823 _s__1,1þÞþ31_

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

2

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Franchise fees
Unrostr¡cied investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Ga¡n on sale of asset
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change ¡n net posit¡on

Net position - beginning

Net pos¡t¡on - ending

L40,307
L30,777

6,92t
6L,ZL'
16,419

(19,460)

L40,307
t30,777

10,186
6r,487
L6,4t9

272

62,809

3,848,405



CITY OF LOWELL
Balance Sheet

Modified Cash Basis
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2018

Street Fund SDC Fund

Other
Governmental

Funds

s 126,292 $ .391 $ 28,469 $ 62,988
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

TIABITITIE' AND FUND BATANCES
Liabilities:

Payable to other govern

Debt Reserve
Fund

Total
Governmental

FundsGeneral Fund

5 227,872

i 227,872 5 126,292 $ 397,391 5 28,469 $ 62.988

$ 843,012

$ 843,012

ments $ 2.477 $ $ $ $ $ 2.477

Total liabilities 2,477 2,477

Fund Equity:
Restricted for

Streets
SDC

Assigned for:
Debt service
Blackberry Jam Festival
Capital projects

Unassigned

Total fund balances

t26,292 726,292
397,397397,39L

28,469 28,469
t9,374
43,6t4

225,395

L9,374
43,614

225,395

225,395 t26,292 397,391 62,988 840,s35

Total I iabi I ities and fu nd bal ances_11__f,!!Q/2_ $ 397,391 $ 28,469 _$_______02.9!!_ $ -012$1 26.292

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF LOWELL
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of

Net Position
Modified Cash Basis

June 30, 2018

Total fund balance, governmental funds $ 840,535

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and therefore are not reported in this fund
financial statement, but are reported in the governmental activities
of the Statement of Net Position. 3,093,574

Certain other long-term assets are not available to pay current
period expenditures and therefore are not reported in this fund
financial statement, but are reported in the governmental activities
of the Statement of Net Position,

The assets and liabilities of certain internal service funds are not
included in the fund financial statement, but are included in the
governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position.

Some liabilities, (such as Notes Payable, Capital Lease Contract
Payable, Long-term Compensated Absences, and Bonds Payable ),
are not due and payable in the current period and are not included
in the fund financial statement, but are included in the
governmental activities of the Statement of Net Position.

Payment on interfund loan in the governmental funds 12.895)(

Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position $ 3,911,2t4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF LOWELL
Statement of Revenues, Expend¡tures and Changes ¡n Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Modified Cash Bas¡s

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Debt Reserve
Fund

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Fees and fines
Licenses and permits
I ntergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Blackberry Jam Festival receipts

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government
Community Development
Public Safety
Tourism
Highways and Streets
Culture and recreation
Municipal Court

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expend itures

oTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from sale of cap¡tal assets
Proceeds from payment of interfund loan
Payment of ¡nterfund loan
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financ¡ng sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

297.04A 73,637 67,550

to3,o74
42,730
30,200

9,695
70,222

44,842
L0.294

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

FundsGeneral Fund

$ 140,307
3,726

9L,t34
35,4r9
4,956
6,398

1 5,1 08

Street Fund

ô_
134;

67,9L4

94
4,289

SDC Fund

$-
67,204

342

$ $ $

L2

20.806

L40,307
70,934
92,474

103,333
4,956
6,92t

L9,397
20.806

75

75 20.818 459.L24

22,970

t03,074
42,730
30,200

9,695
70,222
67,8t2
1¡ )q4

5 70,222 _
3,4t5 67.550

12,895

22.970 334.027

56,2L3 75 (2,152) 12 5,101

(12,895)

12.000)

L6,419

1 0,000

L6,4L9
t2,895

( 1 2,895)
1 0,000

(29.460\(23.460\

( 14.895)

(4,000)

(4.000)

(s8s)

126,877

_s___!2þ,æ2

12,895

40,445

3L6,946

_$__!92.391_

(23.460\ 26.4t9 (3.041)

41,318

184,077

(23,38s)

51,854

40,686

38,721

t34,479

718,475

s 225.395 $ 28.469 $ 79.407 $ 856.954

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF LOWELL

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Modified Cash Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: L38,479$

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

This is the amount by which capital outlays $0 were less than
depreciation of $46,356 in the current period.

Payment on interfund loan in the governmental funds

Change in net position of governmental activities

(46,356)

t12.895)

$ 62,809

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF LOWELL
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Modified Cash Basis

June 30, 2018

Enterprise Funds

Water
Operating

Fund

Sewer
Operating

Fund Total
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Capital Assets:

Land and improvements
Utility System
Construction in Progress
Equipment and Furniture

Less Accum ulated depreciation

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Utility Deposits
Bonds, notes and loans payable

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities :

Bonds, notes and loans payable

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

$ rg7,42r $ 128,289 $ 315,710

T87 42r I28 289 315 7LO

Bl,L79
4,298,779

6,754
82,62L

(2,084,549)

11,000
4,792,O57

6,754
31,536

(2,646,293)

92,r79
g,ogo,B36

13,508
Lt4,t57

(4,730,842)

2 384 784 2 195 054 4,579,838

5 2,572,205 $ 2,323,343 $ 4,895,548

$ 32,560 $ $ 32,560
34 820 28 489 63 309

67,380 28,489 95,869

940,t6L 605,695 1.545,856

940 161 605,695 1,545,856

L, 007,547 634 184 1 64L 725

t,239,249
325,4r5 177 579 502 994

1,511,580 2,75O,829

s r,564,664 $ 1,689.159 $ 3,253,823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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stater,,ent or Revenr.", ,:to:;:t-:Îy"=iårrn.- in Fund Net pos¡t¡on
Modified Gash Basis
Propr¡etary Funds

For the Year Ended June 3(), 2()18

Funds
Vltater

Operating
Fund

Sevver
Operat¡ng

Fund
REVENUES
Charges for serv¡ces
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services
Contractual services
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Other supplies and expenses
Insurance claims and expenses
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in net posit¡on

Total net position - beg¡nning

Total net position - ending

$ 3O1,,7O4
6,707

337,L57
45,L25

$ 638,861$
51 432

304,411 2-2A2 690,693

t44,507
L4,293
L9,706

50,109
5,73r

7"44,5LL
11,559
38,794
3,864

36,t87
5,73L

Lrt,972

289,O1B
25,452
5B,5OO

3,864
86,296
1L,462

205,A9593 923
328,269 352,6L4 6ao,aa7

( 19,a58) 29 664 9 ao6

153
130.541)

3,LL2
-575

3,265
(s,966)

(30,3aa) -647 (2,70L')
(5O,246)

1 1,653
(5,934)

4,20L
L7,32O
(3,575)

(42,O4s)
24,973
(9,513)

(44,53L') 2L 946 (22.5A5)

1.609.195 1.667.2t3 3,276.404

s L.564.664 $1 -159 5 3,253,A23

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF LOWELL
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

Modified Cash Basis
For the Year Ended June 3O, 2O18

En Funds
Water

Operating
Fund

Sewer
Operating

Fund Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers
Miscellaneous operatin g reven ue
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Non capital financing activities - transfers

Net cash provided (used) by capital related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on ¡nvestments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash Balances - beginning of the year

Cash Balances - end of the year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (Loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income:

Depreciation expense
Rounding

Increase (decrease) in deposits

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

75,556 74 .636 2t7 t92

(27,989) (61,528)
(24,640)
(55,1 16)(24,575)

13,745

(83,00s) (38,819) (t2t,824)

153 3,t72 .265

153 3,r72 .265

(7,296) 105.929 98,633

t94,717 22,360 2r7,077

$ r87,42r $ 128.289 $ 315,710

$ (19,858) $ 29,664

llt,972

$ 9,806

$ 303,195
6,707

(89,839)
(144,507)

$ 337,L57
45,125

(96,135)
(144,s17)

$ 640,352
51,832

(785,974)
(289,018)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on Loans (33,539)
Purchases of capital assets (24,640)
Interest paid on capital debts (30,541)

5,715 19 .460

93,923
1

1,490

205,895
1

7,490

$7s .556 $ 141,636 $ 2t7,r92

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Lowell, Oregon, operates under a Council-Manager form of government. The
governing body consists of five elected council members, of which one is selected as Mayor by a
majority of the Council,

The City of Lowell, Oregon, is a primary government. A primary government is financially
accountable for the organizations (component units) that make up its legal entity. The City has
considered all organizations for which the City is financially accountable. Financial accountability
may be evidenced by the ability to appoint the voting majority of the governing body, and either
it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific burdens on, the primary government;
or a fiscal dependency or intergovernmental relationship so close that exclusion from the primary
government would render the financial statements incomplete or misleading. The City has
determined that there are no component units required to be included in these financial
statements.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on the entire City. For the most part, the effect of inter-fund
activity has been removed from these statements.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function or segment, Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, General and other
governmental other funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using a modified cash basis of
accounting. This basis recognizes assets, liabilities, net position/fund equity, revenues and
expenditures when they result from cash transactions with a provision for capital assets and
depreciation and recognition of long-term debts. The modified cash basis of accounting is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. This basis of accounting is specifically allowed under Oregon rules, and
the City considers the use of this basis to be an appropriate reflection of the City's financial
status and results of operations.
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses for the proprietary funds include the cost of personal and contractual services, supplies
and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses,

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City, It is used to account for all financial
sources except for those required to be accounted for in another fund. The principal revenue
sources are property taxes,

The Stree t Fund accounts for receipts for state gasoline taxes and interest. The monies are
expended primarily for the repair and maintenance of the City roads and buildings.

The System Development Charge (SDC) Fund accounts for receipts of the City's system
development charges and related expenses.

The Debt Reserve Fund accounts for resources set aside for payments on current and future debt
i ncu rred ,

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Fund accounts for the operations of the City's water department. Primary revenues
are the sale of water to users and connection fees.

The Seu¿er Fund accounts for the operations of the City's sewer department. Primary revenues
are charges for services and connection fees.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds are primarily operating funds that account for specific taxes or other
revenue sources, which are legally restricted to finance particular functions or activities.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
or construction of major capital facilities.

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include operating grants and contributions and capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position

Cash and investments

The cash and investments reported on the statement of net position include checking account,
state Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), and petty cash balances. The City invests in
the LGIP, which is managed by the State Treasurer's office. These investments are managed in
accordance with the "prudent person rule" and administrative regulations of the State Treasurer,
which may change. Eligible investments are those allowed by Oregon law and are not leveraged
and do not contain any derivative products. The City reports the fair value of their position in
the pool as the same as the value of the pool shares,

Receiva bles a nd paya bles

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding
at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" or "advances
to/from other funds". All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from
other funds."

Lane County makes all assessments of property value, and levies and collects the taxes for the
City. Assessments of property values are as of January 1 of each year. Real property taxes are
levied and attach as an enforceable lien on property on July 1. Taxes are payable in three
installments on November 15, February 15, and May 15. A 3o/o discount is allowed for payment
in full on November 15. Property taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered to be
delinquent

For the current year the City levied taxes at the rate of 2.1613 per $1,000 of assessed value
within the City limits, Measure 50 establishes the permanent rate and allows for an increase of
the assessed value of 3o/o per year.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as any capital purchase,
donation or dedication of land, infrastructure, buildings and/or equipment that exceeds $5,000
for a single acquisition. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed, Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Equipment
Buildings
lnfrastructure

10

20
40

Long-term Obligations

General obligation bonds and other revolving loans, issued for sewer and water system
construction, are reported as long-term debts in the government-wide financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with the modified cash basis requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates,

2. STEWARDSHTP, COMPLTANCE, AND ACCOUNTABTLTTY

Budgetary Compliance

Budgets are prepared and adopted, and expenditures are appropriated, in accordance with
Oregon Local Budget Law, Budgets are adopted on the cash-basis of accounting, which is not in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, but is an acceptable method for
Oregon Municipal Corporations under Oregon Local Budget Law. All annual appropriations lapse
at fiscal year-end. The City does not use encumbrance accounting.

On or before June 30 of each yearr the City enacts a resolution approving the budget,
appropriating the expenditures, and levying the property taxes. Prior to enacting this resolution,
the proposed budget is presented to a budget committee consisting of members the City Council
and a like number of interested citizens. The budget committee presents the budget to the City
Council for budget hearings prior to enactment of the resolution.

la.LJ



CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

The budget is prepared by fund, and line item, and includes information of the past year, current
year estimates, and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year. Expenditures may not
exceed legally budgeted appropriations at the level of programs, or alternatively, materials and
services, personal services, capital outlay, debt service, transfers out, or other expenditures for
each fund.
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments consist of the following as of June 30, 2018:

$ 609,280
250

549,r92
$ 1,L58,722

Deposits: Deposits with financial institutions are comprised of bank demand deposits and a

certificate of deposit. Total bank balances of the checking accounts, as shown on the banks'
records at year-end were $625,903, The amount in the LGIP was $549,903.

Custodial credit risk - deposits: This is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District's
deposits may not be returned to it. In order to minimize this risk, the State of Oregon
established the Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP),

PFCP is an application created by the Office of the State Treasurer (OST) to facilitate bank
depository, custodian and public official compliance with Oregon Revised Statues 295 (ORS)
effective on July 1, 2008. Requirements described on PFCP for depository banks, custodian banks
and local governments are set forth as the following:

Banks are required to report quarterly to the State Treasurer, providing quarter-end public funds
balance in excess of the FDIC limits, net worth, and FDIC capitalization information. The FDIC
assigns each bank with a capitalization category quarterly, either well capitalized, adequately
capitalized or undercapitalized. The PFCP calculates, based on this information, the bank's
minimum collateral (maximum liability) that must be pledged with the custodian for the next
quarter. The maximum liability is reported to the bank, OST and custodian.

The custodian banks hold the collateral pledged by the banks. OST provides the custodian the
maximum liability for each bank, Banks will request security pledges, releases and substitutions
through the PFCP, The custodian will process the transactions as approved by OST and maintain
an inventory of pledged securities. OST will monitor that adequate collateral is pledged at all
times and that all banks comply with the requirements of ORS.

Public officials are required to verify that deposit accounts in excess of deposit insurance limits
are only maintained at financial institutions included on the list of qualified depositories found on
the OST's web site. Public officials are also required to report at least annually, or within 10 days
of a change, the banks they do business with, and contact information for the public official. It is
the responsibility of the public official to ensure compliance with these requirements in order to
eliminate personal liability in the event of a bank loss.

The City's depository bank was listed on the Treasurer's web site, "Qualified Depositories for
Public Fund", throughout the fiscal year.

Cash in bank
Cash on hand
Local government investment pool (LGIP)

Total
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments: The only investments held by theCity at June 30, 2018, were funds in the LGIP,
which is part of the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). The OSTF is a cash and investment pool
available for use by all state agencies and eligible local governments. Then LGIP is an open-
ended, no-load diversified portfolio offered to eligible participants who by law are made
custodian of, or have control over, any public funds. The City's investment in the LGIP is carried
at cost, which approximates fair value. The State of Oregon's investments policies used in
administering the LGIP are governed by statute and the Oregon Investment Council (the
Council). The State Treasurer is the investment officer for the Council and is responsible for the
funds on deposit in the state treasury. The OST's investments in short-term securities are limited
by the portfolio rules established by the OSTF Board and the Council. In accordance with Oregon
statutes, the investments funds are invested, and the investments of those funds managed, as a
prudent investor would do - exercising reasonable care, skill, and caution. The LGIP's portfolio
rules provide that broker/dealers meet certain qualifications and that investments and delivered
to and held by a third-party custodian that hold the securities in the State of Oregon's name, The
LGIP is not registered with the Securities Exchange Commission and is not rated.

4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows
Governmental activities: Beginning

Balance Additions
Capital assets,'

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements
Construction in progress

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and improvements
I nfrastru ctu re
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Capital assets being depreciated

Total Capital assets

$ 1,969,035 $
9.005

Deletions
Ending
Balance

$ 1,969,035
9,005

$

L.978.040 r,978,040

252,538
r,295,704

7 7,437 9 950

252,538
r,295,704

6t,487

t,619,679 9,950

9,950

L,609.729

3,587,7693,597,7r9

Accum u I ated depreciatíon :
Buildings and improvements
I nfrastructu re
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Total accumulated derpeciation

1 16,188
299,296

52,305

467,789

9,950

9,950

$_

t27,689
33t,632
44,874

504,195

$___3J€3,524

1 1,50 1

32,336
2,5L9

46,356

Capital assets, net, governmental activities $___3,12_9p3_q $____14ÉÉ5_q)

Governmental activities :

General government
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense - government activ¡ties

$ L4,O2O
3t,205

1,131

I6

$______19.3!É



CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

4. CAPITAT ASSETS (Continued)

Business type activities:

Capital assets.'
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and land improvements
Construction in progress

Capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings

I n frastru ctu re

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Capital assets being depreciated
Total Capital assets

Accu m u lated depreciation :
Buildings
I nfrastructu re
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Business type activities:

Water
Sewer

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

$ 92,179 $
13,5 08

$ $ 92,179
13,508

r05,687

17,825
4,403,875

t03,247

882
2O3,7Bl

105,687

44,347

9,O4t,r0t
119,545

9 204 993
9 310 680

r8,707
4,607,656

44,347
g,o41,L0r

94,905 24,640

9,180,353 24,640
9,286,040 24,640

2321 r04 479

Total accumulated derpeciation 4.524.947 205.895 4,730,842

$ 4.579,838Capital assets, net, business type activities s 4,76t,093 $___l]_qLZÞ5) $_

$ 93,923
tLt,972

$ 20s,89s

5. IONG.TERM DEBT

SAFE DRINKING WATER REVOLVING LOAN FUND

On August 7, 2002, the City was granted a Water Drinking Revolving Loan in the amount of
$223,000 from the State of Oregon Economic and Community Development Department
(OECDD). The loan was the part of total amount of $868,000 for the Project of Construction of
Water System Improvements, which consisted of Oregon Community Development Block Grant
($645,000) and this loan. The loan agreement requires 20 annual payments and carries an
interest rate of 4.59o/o, and maturity date on December t,2020. The balance of the loan at June
30, 2018 was $47,413.

WASTEWATER PROJ ECT LOAN

On December 4,2002, the City was granted a loan for Phase I of its Water/Wastewater
construction project in the amount of $425,000 from the State of Oregon Economic and
Community Development Department (OECDD), Proceeds in the amount of $161,939 were
received during the 2002-03 fiscal year, with the remaining loan proceeds of $263,061 received
during the 2003-2004 fiscal year. The loan agreement requires 25 annual payments and carries
an interest rate of 5.35o/o, and maturity date on December 1,2027, The balance of the loan at

I7



CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

5. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

June 30, 2018 was fi224,268.

PIONEER STREET RELOCATION PROJECT LOAN

On May I1,2005, the City was granted a loan forthe Pioneer Street Water/Sewer Line
Relocation Project in the amount of $200,000 from the State of Oregon Economic and
Community Development Department (OECDD). The loan principal is split between the Water
and Sewer Funds equally. The loan agreement requires 24 annual payments of $14,845
beginning December I,2006, and carries an interest rate of 5.17o/o, and maturity date is
December 7,2029. The balance of the loan at June 30, 2018 was $130,248 apportioned
$65,125 to the water fund and $65,123 to the sewer fund,

WATER REVENUE LOAN

On April 6,2012, a water revenue loan for capital improvements to the water system including
improving the water treatment facility, constructing a water storage reservoir and extending
water services in the amount of $948,000 was entered into with the United States Department of
Agriculture, Rural Development Utilities Services (RUS). The loan financed improvements to the
water system including capital improvements to the water treatment facility, construction of a
water storage reservoir and extending water service lines. The loan agreement requires 40
annual payments of $39,380 beginning April 6, 2Ot2, carries an interest rate of 2.75o/o and a
maturity date of April 6, 2052. The balance of the loan atJune 30,2018 was ç862,443.

SEWER REVENUE LOAN

On April 6, 2012, a sewer revenue loan for capital improvements to the sewer system including
extending sewer services in the amount of $379,000 was entered into with the United States
Department of Agriculture, Rural Development Utilities Services (RUS). The loan financed capital
improvements to the sewer system including extending sewer service lines. The loan agreement
requires 40 annual payments of $L5,744 beginning April 6, 2OL2, carries an interest rate of
2.75o/o and a maturity date of April 6, 2052. The balance of the loan at June 30, 2018 was
$344,793.

The changes in long-term debt were as follows:

Business Oregon (formerly OECDD) Drinking Water (50006) Water
Business Oregon (formerly OECDD) Pioneer St Reloc. (J05001 Water/Sewer
USDA Water Revenue Loân Water

Subtotal Water Fund
Sewer
Sewer

Water/Sewer

242,306
68,979

350,888

224,268
65,t23

.793

Due within
one year

$ 15,101
4,056

15,663

34,820
78,L7t
4,056
6,262

24,489

Balance
Fund Beginning Addltions Repayment

$ 61,8s1 $ - $14,438
68,981 - 3,856

477,647

Balânce
Ending

$ 47,473
65,125

862,443

974,98t

634,184

1.008.519
Business Oregon (formerly OECDD) Wastewater (G2002)
Business Oregon (formerly OECDD) Pioneer St Reloc. (J05001

662,L73

18,038
3,856

27,989

__&_91,å27_

USDA Sewer Revenue Loan

Subtotal Sewer Fund

Totals

1B

$7,670,692 _$-r,0!¿1_0s __$_É!Éq9_



CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

5. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Long-term debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending
June 3O, Principal Interest Total

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043
2044-2048
2049-2053

Total

$ 63,308
65,166
67,t04
51,848
58,162

3r7,40]-
L79,327
173,988
L99,263
22B,zLL

$ 52,680
50,L46
47,5L9
44,792
42,766

L77,986
t25,847
Lor,632
76,357
47,409
L4,273

$ 115,988
LLs,3r2
tI4,623
96,640

100,928
495,387
305,t74
275,620
275,620
275,620

205 387 2L9 660
$ 1,609,165 5781,407 52,390,572

6. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The Operating transfers for the year are as follows

Transfer in to Equipment Fund from General Fund
Transfer out from Street Fund
Transfer in to Equipment Fund from Street Fund
Transfer out from Debt Reserve Fund
Transfer in to Water Operating Fund from Debt Reserve Fund
Transfer in to Sewer Operating Fund from Debt Reserve Fund
Transfer out from Water Operating Fund
Transfer in from Water Operating Fund to Equipment Fund
Transfer in from Water Operating Fund to Water Reserve Fund
Transfer out from Sewer Fund
Transfer in from Sewer Operating Fund to Equipment Fund
Transfer in from Sewer Operating Fund to Sewer Reserve Fund

Total Transfers

Transfer
Out

Transfer
In

$ 2,000

4,000

23,460

2,000

4,000

7,715
t5,745

5,938
2,000
3,938

3,575
2,000
1 575

$ 38.973 $ 38.973

$
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

6. INTERFUND BATANCES AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Transfers are used to move revenues that budget requires to collect and expend them, use
unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and transfer residual equity to the
general fund.

In 2010 the General Fund borrowed $30,000 from the SDC Fund at 2.5o/o interest and a term of
ten years. At June 30, 2018 the balance of the loan was $0. The loan has been repaid through
payments from the General Fund to the SDC Fund,

7. PENSION PLAN

A. Plan Description

The City contributes to the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Oregon Public
Employees Retirement System. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-
living adjustments and death benefits to plan member and beneficiaries. The Oregon Public
Employees Retirement Fund ("OPERF") applies to the City's contribution for qualifying employees
who were hired before August 29,2003. Oregon Revised Statutes 238 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the PERS Board of Trustees and the State Legislature,

In the 2003 legislative session, the Oregon Legislative Assembly created a successor plan for
PERS. The Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan ("OPSRP") is effective for all new employees
hired on or after August 29,2003, and applies to any inactive PERS members who return to
employment following a six month or greater break in service. The new plan consists of a

defined benefit program (the "Pension Program") and a defined contribution portion (the
Individual Account Program or "IAP"). The Pension Program portion of OPSRP provides a life
pension funded by employer contributions. Benefits are calculated by a formula for members
who attain normal retirement age, The formula takes into account final average salary and years
of service and a factor that varies based on type of service (general versus police or fire).

Beginning January l,2OO4, all PERS member's contributions go into the IAP portion of OPSRP.
PERS members retain their existing PERS accounts, but any future member contributions are
deposited into the member's IAP, not the member's PERS account. Those employees who had
established a PERS membership prior to creation of OPSRP will be members of both the PERS

and OPSRP system as long as they remain in covered employment.

Both PERS and OPSRP are administered by the Oregon Public Employees Retirement Board
("OPERB"). The comprehensive annual financial report for the funds administered by the OPERB
may be obtained by writing to Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, P.O. Box 23700,
Tigard, Oregon 97281-3700, by calling (503) 598-7377, or by accessing the PERS web site at
www, pers.state.or. us,
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

7. PENSION PLAN (Continued)

B. Funding Policy

Members of PERS are required to contribute 6,000/o of their salary covered under the plan, which
is invested in the OPSRP Individual Account Program. The City is required by ORS 238.225 to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate for all the qualifying employees under the OPERF
plan, and a general service rate for the qualifying employees under the OPSRP plan. The OPERF

and OPSRP rates in effect for the year ended June 30,2018 were 19.33olo and 11.50o/o
respectively, The contribution requirements for plan members are established by ORS Chapter
238 and may be amended by an act of the Oregon Legislature.

C. Annual Pension Cost

Employer contributions are calculated in conformance with the provisions of GASB Statement No.
27 as a percentage of covered payroll. Therefore, the contributions transmitted to the System
are equal to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC), and there is no Net Pension Obligation
(NPO) necessary to amortize any unmade contributions.

For the year ended June 30, 2O1.B, the City's annual pension cost of $27,309 was equal to the
required and actual contributions of the City, The required contribution was determined as part
of the December 3!,2Ot5, actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method.
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuation include (a) a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 7.5o/o per year, (b) projected salary increases of 4.5o/o
per year attributable to general wage adjustments, with additional increases for promotion and
longevity that vary by age and service, (c) projected automatic cost-of-living benefit increases of
2.Ao/o per year, and (d) CPI increases of 3.5olo per year, and (e) demographic assumptions that
were chosen to reflect the best estimate of emerging experience of the members of the System.

D. Three-year Trend Information

Three-year trend information for the City of Lowell is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending Annual Pension Cost
(APC)

Percentage of APC
Contributed

Net Pension
Obliqation

06/30116 $23.520 100o/o $0

06/30/17 s27,309 100o/o $o

06/30/78 s32,340 100o/o $0

8. CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a

liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the grantor agencies cannot be determined at this time although management expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
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CITY OF LOWELL

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

8. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Management believes that there are no liabilities that could result from pending suits, judgments
or claims where the amount in excess of insurance coverage would be material to the financial
statements,

9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is operated under various risks and the City participates in various insurance programs
to hedge against those risks. The insurance coverage includes general and auto liability,
property/mobile equipment, boiler & machinery, excess earthquake, excess crime and others.
There have been no losses in excess of insurance coverage for the past three years,
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CITY OF LOWELL
Balance Sheet

Other Governmental Funds
Modified Cash Basis

June 30, 2018

Blackberry
Jam Festival

Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds
Equipment

Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Fund balances:

Assigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

s 19,374 $ 43,674 $ 62,988

$ 19,374 $ 43,614 $ 62,988

$ 19,374 $ 43,614 $ 62,988

19 374 43 614 62,988

$ 19,374 $ 43,614 $ 62,988
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CITY OF LOWELL

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Other Governmental Funds

Modified Cash Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Blackberry
Jam Festival Equipment

Fund Fund

Total-Other
Governmental

Funds
REVENUES

Investment earnings

Blackberry Jam Festival receipts

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Culture and recreation

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

. Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

20,818 20,818

22 970 22,970

22 970 22,970

(2,152) (2,t52\

10,000 10,000

10,000 10 000

(2,152) 26,419 24 267

2T 526 t7 195 38,72r

19,374 $ 43,614 $ 62,988

$ $ $T2

20,806
T2

20,806

$
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

General Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Ori inal Final

REVENUES
Propefty Taxes
Fees and fines
Licenses and permits
I ntergovern mental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cu rrent:

General government
Public Safety - Police
Highways and roads - Tourism
Community Development
Library
Code enforcement
Parks & recreation
Municipal court
Debt Seruice:

Principal
Contingency

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Loan Proceeds
Proceeds from capital leases
Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

261,860 325 260

$ 136,081
3,000

75,818
26,457
2,900

522
t7 082

136,081
3,000

75,818
26,457

2,900
522

80,482 15 108

4,226
726

15,316
8,962
2,056
5,876

65,374)

$

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

t40,307
3,726

91,734
3 5,419
4,956
6,398

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Nesati ve)

$ $

L52,993
27,720
21,850
37,685
7,9L5

13,230
88,944
13,075

152,993
3t,920
21,850
84,815

8,315
L3,230

r20,944
13,075

12,895
52,330

60,092
L,720

12,r55
42,085

526
3,057

83,891
2,781

297 048

92,90t
30,200
9,695

42,730
7,789

10,r73
37,053
10,294

12,895

(28,212)

12,895
72,660

448 967 5t2,367 253 730

52 330

258 637

187.107) (r87,t07)( 43,318 230 425

50,000 50,000

t2.000)

50,000

(2,000) (2,000)

Total other financing sources and uses 48 000

( 139,107)

48,000 (2,000) 50,000

r47 607

(139,107)

147,607

41,318

r84,077

t80,425

36,470

8,500$

25
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

Street Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

nal Final
REVENUES
Licenses and permits
I ntergovern mental
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cu rrent :

Personal Services
Materials and Services

Capital Outlay
Contingency

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

188,821 1BB 821

$ $749
65,402

500

749
65,402

500

7,340
67,9r4

94
4,288

$ $ 591
2,512
(406)

4 288
66 651 66,651 73,636 6 985

4L,712
33,291
90,469

47,7L2
33,29r
90,469

38,816
31,355

50

2,896
1,936

90,4L9
23.34923 349 23 349

70 221 118,600

122,r70], (L22,r70) 3,415 125,585

(4,000) 4,000) (4,000)(

Total other financing sources and uses (4,000) 4.000) (4,000)(

$

(126,L70) (126,t70)

t26 170 126 170

(sBs)

726,877

$ 126,292

125,585

707

_þ_____t26Æ2_$
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

SDC Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Nes ative)

Ori inal Final
REVENUES
SDC Fees

Investment earnings

Total other financing

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$ 47,950
500

$ $$ 47,950
s00

67,208
342

19,258
(1s8)

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cu rrent:
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Prtoceeds from repayment of intefund loar
Transfers out

450 48,450 67,550

214 186

48 19 100

214 186 2t4 186

2r4 186

233,286

2r4 186 2r4 186

( 165,736) ( 165,736)

12,895
( 180,493)

72,995
( 180,493)

67 550

12,895
180,493

sources and uses (167,598) ( 167,598) t2 895 180,493

(333,334) (333,334) 80,445

333 334 333 334 316 946

$ $ 397,391 $ 397,391

413,779

( 16,388)

$
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

Debt Reserve Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Budseted Amounts

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negativel

or¡glnal Ftnal

REVENUES
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Cu rrent:
Debt Service:

Principal

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$ 300 $ 3oo $ 7s$ (225\

300 300 75 (22s)

300 300 75 (225\

180,493
t26

180,493
(55,126) 23.460\

180,493
(31,666)

t25,367 725 367 23.460) t48,827

(23,385)

5i 854

5 L77,821 $ r77,B2t $ 28,469 $ (149,352)

t25,667

52,r54

r25,667

52,r54

(149,052)

(300)
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

Blackberry Jam Festival Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Budseted Amounts

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

Orisinal Final
REVENUES
Festival revenue
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cu rrent :

Materials and Services
Contingency

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers out

3r,276 3I,2T6

$ L4,834
10

$ 14,834
10

$ $20,806
I2

5,972
2

14,844 14,844 2O,B1B 5 974

26,277
4,939

30,959
257

22,970 7,989
257

22,970 8 246

(16,372) (16,372) (2,t52') t4 220

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

(16,372)

16 372

(16,372)

t6,372

(2,r52)

27,526

t4,220

5 754

$ $ $ 19,374 $ t9,374
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

Equipment Fund
For the year ended June 3O, 2O18

Budgeted Amounts

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Neqative)

Original Final
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Transfers in

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$ 40,99s $ .995 $ $ 40,99s

40.995 40,995 40,995

(40,69s) (40,69s) 40,695

10,000 10,000
76,479

.000
(16,419)

Total other financing sources and uses 10,000 10,000 26,419 (16,419)

(30,695)

31,995

(30,695)

31,995

26,419 57,1L4

(14,800)t7 195

$ 1.300 $ 1,300 s 43,6t4 $ 42,3t4

30



CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

Water Operating Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Oriqinal Final

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negativel

7,696
1,562
1,802
(147)

r,706

REVENUES
Charges for services
Water connections and permits
Reimbursement of SDC fees
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cu rrent:
Personal services
Materials and services
Capital outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest and other charges

Contingency

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Reconciliation to modified cash basis:

Net capital assets
Long-term debt

Net position, modified cash basis

$ 279,881
5,913
4,851

300
5,000

$ 279,881
5,913
4,851

300
5,000

$ 287,577
7,475
6,653

153
6,706

$

295,945 295 945 308 564 12,619

r57,548
103,987
35,955

33,538
30,542
91.800

r57,548
103,987
35,955

r44,507
B9,6BB
24,790

13,041
74,299
1 1,165

33,538
30,542
91,800

33,538
30,542

91 800

453 370 453 370 323 065 130 305

(t57,425) (157,425) ( 14,50i) 742 924

39,381
(s,938)

39,381
(s,938)

7,715
(s,938)

31,666

33 443 33 443 r,777 31,666

(t23,982) (t23,982)

152 358 152 358

(L2,724)

151,833

111,258

(s2s)

s 28,376 5 28,376 139 109 $ 110,733

2,384,784
e74,gBL)
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

Water Reserve Fund
For the year ended June 3O, 2O18

Budgeted Amounts
Ori inal Final

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(NeEat ive)

EXPENDITURES
orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

$ 3,938 $ 3,938 $ 3.938 $

Total other financing sources and uses 3,938

Net change in fund balances 3,938

3,938 3 938

11 8L4

3,938

Lt,8t4
3,938

1 1 .814

$ t5.752 5 t5,752 $ t5,752 $
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

Sewer Operating Fund
For the year ended June 3O, 2O18

Budqeted Amounts

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Nesative)

Original Final
REVENUES
Charges for services
Reimbursement of SDC fees
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cu rrent:

Health and sanitation
Personal services
Materials and services
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest and other charges

Capital Outlay
Contingency

Total Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expend itu res

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Reconciliation to modified cash basis:

Net capital assets
Long-term debt

Net position, modified cash basis

(t2,629) (72,629) 92,184

$ 327,989
4,L23

50

$ 327,989
4,r23

50

$ 33t,624
5,533
3,112

3,635
7,4r0
3,062

40,626

$

4 500 4 500 45 I26

336,662 336,662 385,395 48,733

L57,547
125,086

L57,547
125,086

27,989
24,577
7,955

t44,57L
95,986

27,989
24,575

150

13,036
29,t00

27,989
24,576

7,955
6,1 38

2
7,805
6,1376 L37

349,297 349,29t 293,2Lr 56,080

104,813

L5,745
(3.575)

L5,745
(3.575)

L5,745
(3.575)

72 L70 L2 770 72,I70

(4se)

459

(4se)

459

ro4,354

77,265

104,813

16,806

$ $ tzL,619 $ t2t,6r9

2,795,054
(634,184)

_$r,q€æge
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CITY OF LOWELL
Budget and Actual (with Variances)

Sewer Reserve Fund
For the year ended June 3O, 2O18

Budqeted Amounts

Actual
Amounts,
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
ive)

OriEinal Final
oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ 1.575 $ 1.575 $ 1,s7s $

Total other financing sources and uses 1 575 1,575 L,575

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

7,575
6,670

t,575
6.670

L,575
5,095 ( 1,575)

$ 8,245 $ 8,245 $ 6,670 $ (1,575)
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REPORT OF THE TNDEPENDENT AUDTTORS REQUTRED BY
THE STATE OF OREGON MTNTMUM STANDARDS FOR

AUDTTS OF OREGON MUNTCIPAL CORPORATTONS



REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF
OREGON MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR AUDITS OF OREGON MUNICIPAL

CORPORATIONS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Lowell
107 East Third Street
Post Office Box 490
Lowell, Oregon 97452

We have audited the basic financial statements of City of Lowell (the City) as of and for the
year ended June 30, zOtB, and have issued our report thereon dated December 31, 2018,

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as
specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-tO-320 of the Minimum
Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a

direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required
comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).

Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.

Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

Programs funded from outside sources.

Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets.

Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

Pubf ic contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A,2798.,279C).
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Lowell
Page 2 of 2

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the City
was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon
Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through L62-I0-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of
Oregon Mu nicipal Corporations,

OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, wê do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control overfinancial reporting.

Communication on the City's internal control over financial reporting is issued in the Report on
Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards on pages 37-35.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management,
and the Oregon Secretary of State, and is not intended to be used and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

EMEÍ<ALD CPA QROUP, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Eugene, Oregon
December 31, 2018

36



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCTNG REPORTING AND
ON COMPLTANCE AND OTHER MATTER BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCTAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED TN ACCORDANCE WTTH

GOVERN MENT AU DITTNG STAN DARDS



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTER BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOV E RN M E NT AU DITT N G STAN DARDS

IN DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Lowell
Lowell, Oregon

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Lowell (the City) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 31,
2018.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City's internal control. Accordingly, wê do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purposed described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that
is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance,
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Prior Year Findinos

Findino 2O17-1 Significant deficiency: Segregation of duties and review.

The City has engaged an experienced municipal accountant to review and reconcile the City's
financial records. The City council retains monthly oversight of the financial reports. We
consider this finding closed.

Finding 2Ot7-2 Material Weakness: Inadequate accounting software.

The City has purchased adequate financial accounting software that will be fully implemented
during the 2018-19 year. We consider this finding closed.

Findina 2O17-3 Significant Deficiency: Financial statements.

The combination of the experience of the City Administrator and of the the contract accountant
has given the city a knowledgeable team for review and preparation of schedules for the
financial statements. We consider this finding closed.

EMET<ALD CPA QROUP, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Eugene, Oregon
December 31, 2018
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
December January 12, 2019 
Committee Appointments 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

SUMMARY: 
Each year the City Council has open positions to fill on the City’s standing committees. The 
City advertised a call for volunteers for a minimum of (30) days. Attached is an overview of 
each committee, along with the list of open positions and applicants. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
A motion should be made to approve the appointments for each position to the individual 
board, commission, or committee.  
 
Sample Motion:  
“I make a motion to appoint Don Bennett for Position 1 and Jim Burford for Position 2 to the 
Budget Committee.” 

RECOMMENDATION: 
A motion should be made to approve the appointments for each position to the individual 
board, commission, or committee as described in the sample motion above.  
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 2019 City Council Appointments – Boards, Commissions, and Committees 
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2019 City Council Appointments 
Boards, Commissions, and Committees  

 
Each year the City Council has open positions to fill on the City’s standing committees. The 
following document provides an overview of the membership, terms, powers and duties, and 
reporting requirements for each committee. A list of open positions, terms, and prospective 
applicants is also provided to assist the City Council with the selection of new members. 
 
NOTE: Applicants with an asterisk (*) currently serve on the board. 
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Budget Committee 
 
Membership: The Budget Committee shall consist of the members of the governing body and a 
number, equal to the number of members of the governing body, of electors of the municipal 
corporation appointed by the governing body.  
 
Term of Office: Members of the Budget Committee shall serve a term of three years. The terms 
shall be staggered so that, as near as practicable, one-third of the terms of the appointive 
members end each year. 
 
Powers and Duties: The Budget Committee shall have the powers and duties which are assigned 
by state law or city charter. This includes, but is not limited to, review and approval of the annual 
budget and property tax rates. 
 
Reporting: No report is required. 
 
 

Position Name Term Expires 

1 Don Bennett December 31, 2022 

2 Patricia-Jo Angelini December 31, 2020 

3 Vacant Council Position December 31, 2020 

4 Vacant Council Position December 31, 2022 

5 Gail Harris December 31, 2020 

6 Bill George December 31, 2020 

7  December 31, 2021 

8  December 31, 2021 

9 Maureen Weathers December 31, 2019 

10 Gerry Burr December 31, 2019 

 
Applicants: 
Lon Dragt* 
John Myers 
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Planning Commission 
 
Membership: The Planning Commission shall consist of five members and meet the following 
criteria: 

(1) Four members shall reside within the City of Lowell. 
(2) One member may reside within the City of Lowell Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). 
(3) No two or more members shall be engaged in the same kind of occupation, business, trade 

or profession. 
 
Term of Office: Members of the Planning Commission shall serve a term of two years. Expiration 
of the terms shall be staggered such that the terms of three members expire of December 31st of 
odd numbered years and the terms of two members expire on December 31st of even numbered 
years.  
 
Powers and Duties: The Commission shall review and make recommendations regarding 
planning, zoning, and development within the city, and shall have the powers and duties which 
are assigned by state law or city charter. 
 
Reporting: An annual report describing the activities of the previous calendar year shall be 
submitted by January 31 of each year. 
 
 

Position Name Term Expires 

1  December 31, 2019 

2 Stacie Harris December 31, 2019 

3 Lon Dragt December 31, 2019 

4  December 31, 2020 

5  December 31, 2020 

 
Applicants: 
Mary Wallace* 
Don Swain* 
John Myers 
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Parks and Recreation Committee 
 
Membership: The Parks and Recreation Committee shall consist of five members and meet the 
following criteria, unless waived by an action of the City Council: 

(1) Four members shall be residents of the City of Lowell. 
(2) One member may be eighteen (18) years of age or younger. 
(3) One member may be a non-resident. 

 
Term of Office: Members of the Parks and Recreation Committee shall serve a term of two years. 
Expiration of the terms shall be staggered such that the terms of three members expire of 
December 31st of odd numbered years and the terms of two members expire on December 31st 
of even numbered years. 
 
Powers and Duties: The Parks and Recreation Committee shall make recommendations 
regarding the parks and recreation operations including, but not limited to, parks planning, 
acquisition, development, and maintenance; recreation programming; and tree planting and 
maintenance.  
 
Reporting: An annual report describing the activities of the previous calendar year shall be 
submitted by January 31 of each year. 
 
 

Position Name Term Expires 

1 Hall O’Regan December 31, 2019 

2  December 31, 2020 

3  December 31, 2020 

4 Sara Mikulich December 31, 2019 

5 Joseph Brazill December 31, 2019 

 
Applicants: 
Tony Moreci* (nonresident) 
George Wild* 
John Myers 
Sydney Singer (nonresident) 
Josh Serafin (nonresident) 
Dian Kehres 
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Economic Development Committee 
 
Membership: The Economic Development Committee shall consist of five members and meet the 
following criteria, unless waived by an action of the City Council: 

(1) Three members shall be residents of the City of Lowell. 
(2) One member may represent a business located within the City of Lowell. 
(3) One member may represent the Lowell-Fall Creek School District. 
(4) One member may represent the Lowell Rural Fire Protection District. 

 
Term of Office: Members of the Economic Development Committee shall serve a term of two 
years. Expiration of the terms shall be staggered such that the terms of three members expire of 
December 31st of odd numbered years and the terms of two members expire on December 31st 
of even numbered years. 

 
Powers and Duties: The Economic Development Committee shall make recommendations 
regarding the creation, retention, and expansion of businesses and other ventures that enrich the 
community by creating goods and services that provide employment opportunities while 
maintaining and enhancing the overall quality of life.  
 
Reporting: An annual report describing the activities of the previous calendar year shall be 
submitted by January 31 of each year. 
 
 

Position Name Term Expires 

1 Michael Galvin December 31, 2019 

2 Robert Burr December 31, 2019 

3 Lisa Bee-Wilson December 31, 2019 

4  December 31, 2020 

5  December 31, 2020 

 
Applicants: 
Bill George* 
John Myers 
Josh Serafin (nonresident) 
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Library Committee 
 
Membership: The Library Committee shall consist of five members and meet the following criteria, 
unless waived by an action of the City Council: 

(1) Three members shall be residents of the City of Lowell. 
(2) Two members may be non-residents. 

 
Term of Office: Members of the Library Committee shall serve a term of two years. Expiration of 
the terms shall be staggered such that the terms of three members expire of December 31st of 
odd numbered years and the terms of two members expire on December 31st of even numbered 
years.  
 
Powers and Duties: The Library Committee shall operate and maintain the library, establish policy 
for use of the library and advise the City Council on policy related to library budget, funding and 
use.  
 
Reporting: An annual report describing the activities of the previous calendar year shall be 
submitted by January 31 of each year. 
 
 

Position Name Term Expires 

1  December 31, 2019 

2 Heather Woodhurst December 31, 2019 

3 Virginia Galvin December 31, 2019 

4  December 31, 2020 

5  December 31, 2020 

 
Applicants: 
Barbaranne Ingram* 
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Blackberry Jam Festival Committee 
 
Membership: The BBJ Festival Committee shall consist of five members residing within the City 
of Lowell or communities of Dexter, Trent, Fall Creek, and Unity. 
 
Term of Office: Members of the Blackberry Jam Festival Committee shall serve a term of two 
years. Expiration of the terms shall be staggered such that the terms of three members expire on 
December 31st of odd numbered years and the terms of two members expire on December 31st 
of even numbered years. 
 
Additional Officers: The committee may appoint additional officers, as necessary, to accomplish 
its objectives, and such other non-voting members to organize and operate the Blackberry Jam 
Festival. 
 
Powers and Duties: The BBJ Festival Committee shall organize and operate a community event 
to accomplish the following goals: 

(1) Provide exposure to Lowell’s many recreational opportunities and community spirit. 
(2) Provide a marketplace for local crafters and food vendors. 
(3) Provide a venue for local non-profit fundraising activities. 
(4) Increase tourism in the City of Lowell, surrounding communities, and Lane County. 

 
Reporting: An annual report describing the activities of the previous event shall be submitted by 
August 31 of each year. 
 
 

Position Name Term Expires 

1 Michael Galvin December 31, 2019 

2 Pam Baumann December 31, 2019 

3  December 31, 2020 

4 Aaron Graham December 31, 2019 

5  December 31, 2020 

 
Applicants: 
Tim Stratis* 
Tony Moreci 
 

 























































AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 
 

 
 
 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019  
Professional Services Contract 
The Urban Collaborative 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

 
 

SUMMARY: 
A contract with The Urban Collaborative was approved at the December 18, 2018 meeting for 
a Community Facilities Study. On the day of the meeting, staff received an email with several 
changes to the contract that were not incorporated. These changes are consistent with the 
contract that The Urban Collaborative has with LCOG for our Downtown Master Plan.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 
No change in fiscal impact. 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
1. Motion to approve the amended Professional Services Contract with The Urban 

Collaborative and authorize the City Administrator to sign the Contract. 
2. No action. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to approve the amended Professional Services Contract with The Urban Collaborative 
and authorize the City Administrator to sign the Contract. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Amended City of Lowell Professional Services Contract 

 



CITY OF LOWELL 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

 
 

This Contract is by and between the City of Lowell (“City”) and “URBAN COLLABORATIVE” for the 
performance of professional design services for City. 

 
A. RECITALS 

 
CITY is in need of retaining the services of a qualified architect to provide design and related support 
elements of the City of Lowell’s Community Facilities Study (“Project”). 

 
On  , 2019, the CITY awarded this Contract to the Urban Collaborative, based upon its 
response to CITY’s request for bids/qualifications dated September 19th, 2018. 

 
B. CONTRACT EXHIBITS 

 
The following exhibits are hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract: 

 
Exhibit A – Request for Proposals, Community Facilities Study, RFP #2018-02 
Exhibit B – Urban Collaborative’s Proposal 

 
In the event of a conflict, the terms of this Agreement shall govern, followed by Exhibits A and B, in that 
order. 

 
C. CONTRACT 

 
1. Term 

 
This Contract shall commence upon execution, and continue through final completion of Project, 
but no later than December 31, 2019. 

 
2. Scope of Work 

 
Urban Collaborative shall provide all services and deliver all materials as specified in the attached 
Exhibits, which are hereby incorporated into this Contract by this reference, and as may be 
described by future addenda to this Contract. 

 
3. Compensation 

3.1 Compensation.  Urban Collaborative will be paid by CITY on a firm fixed fee basis, for work 
completed and invoiced as described in this section. Urban Collaborative shall complete its 
scope of work as defined in Exhibit A for up to a total not to exceed amount, including 
reimbursable expenses, of $24,890.  

 
3.2 Invoices. Payments shall be based upon monthly invoices which Urban Collaborative 

shall submit to CITY, detailing the previous months’ fees, costs and estimated 
percentage of the Project completed at that time. Upon request, Urban Collaborative will 
provide CITY representative with documents, records, and draft plans evidencing the 
progress made on the Project to date. Urban Collaborative shall send invoices to CITY’s 
representative at CITY’s address set forth in Section 5. In the event of non-payment due 
to a fee dispute between the parties, Urban Collaborative shall continue to provide 
Contract services to CITY. 

 
3.3 Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable expenses shall be itemized and include expenses 

incurred in the interest of the Project, including but not limited to: 1) Long distance 
communications; 2) Reproductions, presentations and work session handouts or other 

JaredCobb
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materials; 3) Postage and handling of documents; and 4) Expense of overtime work requiring 
higher than regular rates, if authorized by CITY. 

 
4. Contractor Is an Independent Contractor 

 
Urban Collaborative shall be an independent contractor for all purposes and shall be entitled to 
no compensation other than the compensation provided for under this Contract. While CITY 
reserves the right to set various schedules and evaluate the quality of Urban Collaborative’s 
completed work, CITY cannot and will not control the means and manner of Urban Collaborative’s 
performance. Urban Collaborative is responsible for determining the appropriate means and 
manner of performing work. Urban Collaborative is responsible for all federal and state taxes 
applicable to compensation and payment paid to Urban Collaborative under the Contract and will 
not have any amounts withheld by CITY to cover Urban Collaborative’s tax obligations. Urban 
Collaborative is not eligible for any CITY fringe benefit plans. 

 
5. Notices 

 
All notices provided for hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be duly served on 
the date of delivery if delivered in person, when receipt of transmission is generated by the 
transmitting facsimile machine if delivered by facsimile transmission, on the day after deposit if 
delivered by overnight courier, or three days after deposit if delivered by placing in the U.S. mail, 
first-class, postage prepaid. Any notice delivered by facsimile transmission shall be followed by a 
hard copy. All notices shall be addressed as follows: 

 
CITY: Jared Cobb, City Administrator 

City of Lowell 
107 East Third Street 
Lowell, OR 97452 
Phone: 541-937-2157 
Email: jcobb@ci.lowell.or.us 

 

Urban Collaborative: ________________________ 
 ________________________ 
 ________________________ 
 ________________________ 
 ________________________ 
 

6. Indemnification 
 

Urban Collaborative shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend CITY and its representatives, 
officers, directors, and employees from any loss or claim made by third parties, including legal 
fees and costs of defending actions or suits resulting directly or indirectly from Urban 
Collaborative’s negligent performance and/or fault of Urban Collaborative, its employees, 
representatives, or subcontractors. If the loss or claim is caused by the joint concurrent 
negligence or other fault of CITY and Urban Collaborative, the loss or claim shall be borne by 
each in proportion to the degree of negligence or other fault attributable to each. 

 
Urban Collaborative shall defend CITY from claims covered under this section at Urban 
Collaborative’s sole cost and expense until such time: (1) as an arbitration panel or a court of 
competent jurisdiction determines that CITY is liable in whole or in part for the loss or claim 
caused by CITY’s negligence; or (2) until CITY and Urban Collaborative mutually agree to 
allocate the liability. 

 
Urban Collaborative’s indemnification obligations under this Section 6 shall survive the expiration 
or earlier termination of this Contract. 
 
 

 

mailto:jcobb@ci.lowell.or.us


7. Insurance Requirements 
 
7.1 During the term of this Contract, Urban Collaborative shall maintain, at its own expense, 

the following types of insurance in the following amounts: 
 

a. Comprehensive general liability insurance on Insurance Services Office (ISO) 
occurrence form CG 00 01, including coverage for premises operations, 
independent contractors, protected products, completed operations, contractual 
liability, personal injury, and broad form for property damage (including coverage 
for explosion, collapse, and underground hazards): 

 
$1,000,000 – each occurrence (bodily injury) 
$2,000,000 – general aggregate 
$1,000,000 – property damage, contractual, etc. 
$2,000,000 – umbrella liability coverage 

 
Coverage shall also include contractual liability coverage for the indemnity 
provided under this Contract. (Proof of coverage will be attached to this 
Contract). 

 
b. Workers’ Compensation and employer’s liability insurance per ORS Chapter 656. 

The employer’s liability limit shall not be less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. 
(Proof of coverage will be attached to this Contract). 

 
c. Errors and Omissions insurance covering Urban Collaborative’s liability arising 

out of negligent acts, errors or omissions in its performance of work or services 
under this Contract. Such policy will have a combined single limit of not less than 
$1,000,000 per each claim, incident or occurrence for the term of the Project. 
Such policy will be on a claims made basis and will have an extended claims 
reporting period of six (6) years after final completion. (Proof of coverage will be 
attached to this Contract). 

 
d. The limits required in this Section 7.1 may be met with a combination of 

underlying and umbrella coverage. 
 

7.2 Except as required in 7.1(d) above, if any of the above required insurance is arranged on 
a “claims made” basis, “tail” coverage will be required at final completion or termination of 
this Contract for a duration of two (2) years. 

 
7.3 Policies shall provide that CITY, its Board, officers, representatives, employees, and 

agents will be included as an additional insured with respect to the coverages required in 
Section 7.1(a) and a waiver of subrogation against them shall be obtained for all 
coverages. 

 
7.4 All coverages under Section 7.1 shall be primary over any insurance CITY may carry on 

its own. 
 

7.5 CITY shall be solely responsible for any loss, damage or destruction to its own property, 
equipment, and materials used in conjunction with the work or services under this 
Contract if the loss, damage or destruction is due to CITY’s negligence or fault. 

 
7.6 All policies of insurance shall be issued by good, responsible companies with a rating 

acceptable to CITY and that are qualified to do business in the State of Oregon. 
 

7.7 Urban Collaborative shall furnish CITY with certificates of insurance evidencing all 
required coverages prior to commencing any work or services under this Contract. If 
requested by CITY, Urban Collaborative shall furnish CITY with executed copies of such 
policies of insurance.  Urban Collaborative shall furnish CITY with at least 30 days’ 
written notice of cancellation of, or any modification to, the required insurance coverages. 
Failure to maintain any required insurance coverages in the minimum required amounts 
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shall constitute a material breach of this Contract and shall be grounds for immediate 
termination of this Contract. 

 
8. Workers’ Compensation 

 
8.1 Urban Collaborative, its subcontractors, if any, and all employers working under this 

Contract are subject employers under the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Law and shall 
comply with ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide workers’ compensation 
coverage for all subject workers. 

 
8.2 Urban Collaborative warrants that all persons engaged in Contract work and subject to 

the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Law are covered by a workers’ compensation plan 
or insurance policy that fully complies with Oregon law. Urban Collaborative shall 
indemnify CITY for any liability incurred by CITY as a result of Urban Collaborative’s 
breach of the warranty under this paragraph. 

 
9. Hours of Employment 

 
Urban Collaborative shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws regarding 

employment. 
 

10. Assignment 
 

Urban Collaborative may not assign any of its responsibilities under this Contract without CITY’s 
prior written consent, which consent may be withheld in CITY’s sole discretion. Urban 
Collaborative may not subcontract for performance of any of its responsibilities under this 
Contract without CITY’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
Urban Collaborative’s assigning or subcontracting of any of its responsibilities under the Contract 
without CITY’s consent shall constitute a material breach of this Contract. Regardless of any 
assignment or subcontract, Urban Collaborative shall remain liable for all of its obligations under 
this Contract. 

 
11. Labor and Material 

 
Urban Collaborative shall provide and pay for all labor, materials, equipment, tools, water, heat, 
utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for the proper execution and 
completion of all Contract work, all at no cost to CITY other than the compensation provided in 
this Contract. 

 
12. Ownership of Work and Documents 

 
All work performed by Urban Collaborative and compensated by CITY pursuant to this Contract 
shall be the property of CITY upon full compensation for that work performed or document 
produced to Urban Collaborative, and it is agreed by the parties that such documents are works 
made for hire. Urban Collaborative hereby conveys, transfers and grants to CITY all rights of 
reproduction and the copyright to all such documents. However, in the event CITY reuses or 
modifies any materials furnished to CITY by Urban Collaborative, without Urban Collaborative’s 
involvement or consent, then Urban Collaborative shall not be responsible for the materials. 

 
The Urban Collaborative has the right to use materials developed under this contract for award 
submittals with CITY permission and for marketing purposes. 
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13. Termination for Convenience 
 

This Contract may be terminated by mutual consent of the parties upon written notice. In 
addition, CITY may terminate all or part of this Contract upon determining that termination is in 
the best interest of CITY by giving seven (7) days’ prior written notice of intent to terminate, 
without waiving any claims or remedies it may have against Urban Collaborative. Upon 
termination under this paragraph, Urban Collaborative shall be entitled to payment in accordance 
with the terms of this Contract for Contract work completed and accepted before termination less 
previous amounts paid and any claim(s) CITY has against Urban Collaborative. Pursuant to this 
paragraph, Urban Collaborative shall submit an itemized invoice for all unreimbursed Contract 
work completed before termination and all Contract closeout costs actually incurred by Urban 
Collaborative. CITY shall not be liable for any costs invoiced later than thirty (30) days after 
termination unless Urban Collaborative can show good cause beyond its control for the delay. 

 
14. Termination for Cause 

 
CITY may terminate this Contract effective upon delivery of written notice to Urban Collaborative, 
or at such later date as may be established by CITY, under any of the following conditions: 

 
14.1 If CITY funding is not obtained and continued at levels sufficient to allow for purchases of 

the indicated quantity of services. The Contract may be modified to accommodate a 
reduction in funds. 

 
14.2 If federal or state regulations or guidelines are modified, changed, or interpreted in such a 

way that the services are no longer allowable or appropriate for purchase under this 
Contract or are no longer eligible for the funding proposed for payments authorized by 
this Contract. 

 
14.3 If any license or certificate required by law or regulation to be held by Urban Collaborative 

to provide the services required by this Contract is for any reason denied, revoked, or not 
renewed. 

 
15. Termination for Default 

 
If CITY fails to perform in the manner called for in this Contract or if CITY fails to comply with any 
other provisions of the Contract, the Urban Collaborative may terminate this Contract for default 
after giving CITY the notice and opportunity to cure required by this paragraph. Prior to 
termination for default, Urban Collaborative must give CITY written notice of the breach and of the 
Urban Collaborative’s intent to terminate. If CITY has not entirely cured the breach within fifteen 
(15) days of the date of the notice, then Urban Collaborative may terminate the Contract at any 
time thereafter by giving a written notice of termination. 

 
If Urban Collaborative fails to perform in the manner called for in this Contract or if Urban 
Collaborative fails to comply with any other provisions of the Contract, CITY may terminate this 
Contract for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of termination on Urban 
Collaborative setting forth the manner in which Urban Collaborative is in default. Urban 
Collaborative shall be paid the Contract price only for services performed in accordance with the 
manner of performance as set forth in this Contract. 

 
16. Remedies 

 
In the event of breach of this Contract the parties shall have the following remedies: 

 
16.1 If terminated under paragraph 15 by CITY due to a breach by Urban Collaborative, CITY 

may complete the work either itself, by agreement with another contractor, or by a 
combination thereof. If the cost of completing the work exceeds the remaining unpaid 
balance of the total compensation provided under this Contract, then Urban Collaborative 
shall pay to CITY the amount of the reasonable excess. 



16.2 In addition to the above remedies for a breach by Urban Collaborative, CITY also shall be 
entitled to any other equitable and legal remedies that are available. 

 
16.3 If CITY breaches this Contract, Urban Collaborative’s remedy shall be limited to 

termination of the Contract and receipt of Contract payments to which Urban 
Collaborative is entitled. 

 
16.4 CITY shall not be liable for any indirect, incidental, consequential, or special damages 

under the Contract or any damages arising solely from terminating the Contract in 
accordance with its terms. 

 
16.5 Upon receiving a notice of termination, and except as otherwise directed in writing by 

CITY, Urban Collaborative shall immediately cease all activities related to the services 
and work under this Contract. As directed by CITY, Urban Collaborative shall, upon 
termination, deliver to CITY all then existing work product that, if the Contract had been 
completed, would be required to be delivered to CITY. 

 
17. Nondiscrimination 

 
During the term of this Contract, Urban Collaborative shall not discriminate against any employee 
or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, age, or national origin. 

 
18. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue 

 
This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding 
(collectively “Claim”) between CITY and Urban Collaborative that arises from or relates to this 
Contract which results in litigation shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within 
the Circuit Court of Washington County for the State of Oregon; provided, however, if a Claim 
must be brought in a federal forum, then it shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively 
within the United States District Court for the District of Oregon. URBAN COLLABORATIVE BY 
EXECUTION OF THIS CONTRACT, HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE IN PERSONAM 
JURISDICTION OF SAID COURTS. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of CITY’s 
protections under the Oregon Tort Claims Act. 

 
19. Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

 
Urban Collaborative shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, regulations, executive 
orders and ordinances applicable to the services under this Contract. Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, Urban Collaborative expressly agrees to comply with: 
(i) ORS 659.425; (ii) all regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing 
laws; and (iii) CITY’s performance under this Contract is conditioned upon Urban Collaborative’s 
compliance with all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code, as more 
particularly set forth in Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference. Urban Collaborative, 
its subconsultants, and all employers providing work, labor, or materials under this Contract are 
subject employers under the Oregon workers' compensation law and shall comply with 
ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide Oregon workers' compensation coverage that 
satisfies Oregon law for all their subject workers. Urban Collaborative shall adhere to all safety 
standards and regulations established by CITY for work performed on its premises or under its 
auspices. 



20. Experience, Capabilities and Resources 
 

By execution of this Contract, Urban Collaborative agrees that: 
 

20.1 Urban Collaborative is an experienced architectural firm having the skill, legal capacity, 
and professional ability necessary to perform all the services required under this Contract 
and to design or administer any work within the scope and complexity contemplated by 
this Contract. 

 
20.2 Urban Collaborative has the capabilities and resources necessary to perform the 

obligations of this Contract. 
 

20.3 Urban Collaborative is familiar with all current laws, rules, and regulations which are 
applicable to the design and construction of work which may fall within the scope of this 
Contract, and that all drawings, specifications, and other documents prepared by Urban 
Collaborative shall be prepared in accordance with the standard of care of other 
professionals performing similar services under similar conditions and in an effort to 
accurately reflect and incorporate all such laws, rules, and regulations. 

 
21. Errors and Omissions 

 
Urban Collaborative shall be responsible for correcting any errors or omissions in the drawings, 
specifications, and/or other documents which deviate from the standard of care set forth in 
Sections 20.3. Urban Collaborative shall correct at no additional cost to CITY any and all such 
errors and omissions in the drawings, specifications, and other documents prepared by Urban 
Collaborative or its subconsultants. Urban Collaborative further agrees to assist CITY in resolving 
problems relating to any project designs or specified materials. Architect’s warranties and 
obligations under Sections 20-22 of this Contract shall survive the expiration or earlier termination 
of this Contract. 

 
22. Contract Performance 

 
Urban Collaborative shall at all times carry on the services diligently, without delay and punctually 
fulfill all requirements herein. Urban Collaborative shall not be liable for delays that are beyond 
Urban Collaborative’s control. Contract expiration shall not extinguish, prejudice, or limit either 
party's right to enforce this Contract with respect to any breach of Urban Collaborative’s 
warranties or a default or defect in performance by Urban Collaborative that has not been cured. 
Urban Collaborative agrees that time is of the essence under this Contract. 

 
23. Access to Records 

 
For not less than five (5) years after the Contract expiration and for the purpose of making audit, 
examination, excerpts, and transcripts, CITY, and its duly authorized representatives shall have 
access to Urban Collaborative’s books, documents, papers, and records that are pertinent to this 
Contract. If, for any reason, any part of this Contract, or any resulting construction contract(s) is 
involved in litigation, Urban Collaborative shall retain all pertinent records for not less than five (5) 
years or until all litigation is resolved, whichever is longer. Urban Collaborative shall provide full 
access to these records to CITY, and its duly authorized representatives in preparation for and 
during litigation. 
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24. Representations and Warranties 

24.1 Urban Collaborative represents and warrants to CITY that: 
 

24.1.1 Urban Collaborative has the power and authority to enter into and perform this 
Contract; 

 
24.1.2 When executed and delivered, this Contract shall be a valid and binding 

obligation of Urban Collaborative enforceable in accordance with its terms; 
 

24.1.3 Urban Collaborative shall, at all times during the term of this Contract, be duly 
licensed to perform the services, and if there is no licensing requirement for the 
profession or services, be duly qualified and competent; and 

 
24.1.4 The services under this Contract shall be performed in accordance with the 

professional skill, care and standards of other professionals performing similar 
services under similar conditions. 

 
24.2 The warranties set forth in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other 

warranties provided. 
 

25. CITY Obligations 
 

25.1 CITY shall provide full information in a timely manner regarding requirements for and 
limitations on projects and work tasks. With regard to subcontractor liens, CITY shall 
furnish to Urban Collaborative, within fifteen (15) days after receipt of a written request, 
information necessary and relevant for Urban Collaborative to evaluate, give notice of, or 
enforce lien. 

 
25.2 CITY shall establish and update, if necessary, overall project budgets, including 

Architecture/Engineering and construction costs. 
 

25.3 CITY shall furnish the services of consultants, including geotechnical 
architects/engineers, when such services are requested by Urban Collaborative, 
reasonably required by the scope of a project, and agreed to by CITY. 

 
25.4 CITY shall furnish all testing as required by law or the Contract documents. 

 
25.5 CITY shall furnish all legal accounting, auditing and insurance services as necessary for 

projects to meet the CITY’s needs and interests, after Urban Collaborative has performed 
requisite project management and oversight duties. 

 
25.6 CITY shall provide prompt written notice to Urban Collaborative if CITY becomes aware 

of any fault or defect in a project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in 
Urban Collaborative’s design or performance under the Contract. 

 
25.7 CITY shall pay Urban Collaborative in accordance with paragraph 3 and Exhibit C of this 

Contract, upon receipt of Urban Collaborative’s submission of monthly invoices, and 
satisfactory progress and performance made in accordance with the scope of work. 
Payments shall reflect work completed, or progress made on a project to date, on a pro 
rata basis. 

 
25.8 CITY shall report the total amount of all payments to Urban Collaborative, including any 

expenses, in accordance with federal Internal Revenue Service and State of Oregon 
Department of Revenue regulations. 

 
25.9 CITY shall guarantee access to, and make all provisions for Urban Collaborative to enter 

upon public and private property necessary for performance of the Scope of Work over 
which CITY exercises control. 



25.10 Extra work or work on contingency tasks is not permitted unless authorized by CITY in 
writing. Failure of Urban Collaborative to secure written authorization for extra work shall 
constitute a waiver of all rights to an adjustment in the Contract price or Contract time. 

 
26. Arbitration 

 
26.1 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between CITY and Urban 

Collaborative arising out of, or relating to this Contract, including rescission, reformation, 
enforcement, or the breach thereof except for claims which may have been waived by the 
making or acceptance of final payment, may be decided by binding arbitration in CITY’s 
sole discretion, in accordance with Uniform Oregon Arbitration Act ORS 36.600 et seq. 
and any additional rules mutually agreed to by both parties.  If the parties cannot agree 
on rules within ten (10) days after the notice of demand, the presiding judge of the 
Washington County Circuit Court will establish rules to govern the arbitration. CITY shall 
have the sole discretion as to whether or not dispute will be decided by arbitration rather 
than through the court process. 

 
26.2 A claim by Urban Collaborative arising out of, or relating to this Contract must be made in 

writing and delivered to the Executive Director not less than 30 days after the date of the 
occurrence giving rise to the claim. Failure to file a claim with the Executive Director 
within 30 days of the date of the occurrence that gave rise to the claim shall constitute a 
waiver of the claim. A claim filed with the Executive Director will be considered by the 
Board at the Board’s next regularly scheduled meeting. At that meeting the Board will 
render a written decision approving or denying the claim. If the claim is denied by the 
Board, the Urban Collaborative may file a written request for arbitration with the 
Executive Director. No demand for arbitration shall be effective until the Board has 
rendered a written decision denying the underlying claim. No demand for arbitration shall 
be made later than thirty (30) days after the date on which the Board has rendered a 
written decision on the underlying claim. The failure to demand arbitration within said 30 
days shall result in the Board’s decision being binding upon CITY and Urban 
Collaborative. 

 
26.3 Notice of demand for arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other party to the 

Contract. The demand for arbitration shall be made within the 30-day period specified 
above. CITY, if not the party demanding arbitration, has the option of allowing the matter 
to proceed with binding arbitration or by written notice within five (5) days after receipt of 
a demand for arbitration, to reject arbitration and require the Urban Collaborative to 
proceed through the courts for relief. If arbitration is allowed, the parties agree that the 
award rendered by the arbitrators will be final, judgment may be entered upon it in any 
court having jurisdiction thereof, and the award will not be subject to modifications or 
appeal except to the extent permitted by Oregon law. 

 
27. Joinder 

 
Notwithstanding any contrary language in other documents or agreements related to services 
provided by Architect pursuant to this Contract, including contracts for construction services, 
either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved 
in a common question of law or fact arising out of or related to this Contract and whose presence 
is required if complete relief is to be accorded. This paragraph applies to any and all claims, 
disputes, and other matters arising out of, or relating to this Contract, including but not limited 
those claims, disputes, and other matters subject to litigation or arbitration. 

 
28. Attorney Fees 

 
If any suit, action or arbitration is brought either directly or indirectly to rescind, reform, interpret or 
enforce the terms of this Contract, the prevailing party shall recover and the losing party hereby 
agrees to pay reasonable attorney's fees incurred in such proceeding, in both the trial and 
appellate courts, as well as the applicable costs and disbursements. Further, if it becomes 
necessary for CITY to retain the services of an attorney to enforce any provision of this Contract 



without initiating litigation, Urban Collaborative agrees to pay CITY’s attorney's fees so incurred. 
Such costs and fees shall bear interest at the maximum legal rate from the date incurred until the 
date paid by the losing party. 

 
29. Successors and Assigns; Subcontractors and Assignments 

 
The provisions of this Contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties 
hereto, and their respective successors and assigns. 

 
30. Limitation of Liabilities 

 
CITY shall not be liable for (i) any indirect, incidental, consequential, or special damages under 
the Contract or (ii) any damages of any sort arising solely from the termination of this Contract in 
accordance with its terms. Urban Collaborative shall not be liable for any consequential damages 
under this Contract. 

 
31. Foreign Contractor 

 
If Urban Collaborative is not domiciled in or registered to do business in the State of Oregon, 
Urban Collaborative shall promptly provide to the Oregon Department of Revenue and the 
Corporations Division of the Oregon Secretary of State all information required by those agencies 
relative to this Contract. Urban Collaborative shall demonstrate its legal capacity to perform the 
work under this Contract in the State of Oregon prior to entering into this Contract. 

 
32. Confidentiality 

 
Urban Collaborative shall maintain the confidentiality of any of CITY’s information that has been 
marked as confidential, unless withholding such information would violate the law, create the risk 
of significant harm to the public, or prevent Urban Collaborative from establishing a claim or 
defense in an adjudicatory proceeding. Urban Collaborative shall require similar agreements 
from CITY’s and/or Urban Collaborative’s subconsultants to maintain the confidentiality of 
information of CITY. 

 
33. Force Majeure 

 
Urban Collaborative shall not be deemed in default hereof nor liable for damages arising from its 
failure to perform its duties or obligations hereunder if such is due to causes beyond its 
reasonable control, including, but not limited to, acts of God, acts of civil or military authorities, 
fires, floods, windstorms, earthquakes, strikes or other labor disturbances, civil commotion or war. 

 
34. Waivers 

 
No waiver by CITY of any provision of this Contract shall be deemed to be a waiver of any other 
provision hereof or of any subsequent breach by Urban Collaborative of the same or any other 
provision. CITY’s consent to or approval of any act by Urban Collaborative requiring CITY’s 
consent or approval shall not be deemed to render unnecessary the obtaining of CITY’s consent 
to or approval of any subsequent act by Urban Collaborative, whether or not similar to the act so 
consented to or approved. 

 
35. Severability 

 
Any provision of this Contract which shall prove to be invalid, void or illegal shall in no way affect, 
impair or invalidate any other provision hereof, and such remaining provisions shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

 
36. Headings 

 
The captions contained in this Contract are for convenience only and shall not be considered in 
the construction or interpretation of any provision hereof. 



37. Integration and Modification 
 

This Contract, including the attached exhibits referenced in Section B, contains the entire 
agreement between the parties regarding the matters referenced herein and supersedes all prior 
written or oral discussions or agreements regarding the matters addressed by this Contract. Any 
modifications or amendments to this Contract will only be effective when made in writing and 
signed by authorized parties for each party to this Contract. 

 
38. Authority 

 
The representatives signing on behalf of the parties certify that they are duly authorized by the 
party for which they sign to enter into this Contract. 

 
39. Certificate of Compliance with Oregon Tax Laws 

 
By executing this Contract, Urban Collaborative certifies under penalty of perjury that Urban 
Collaborative is, to the best of Urban Collaborative’s knowledge, not in violation of any Oregon 
tax laws described in ORS 305.385(6) and (7). 

 
CITY OF LOWELL THE URBAN COLLABORATIVE 

 
 

By:   By:   
Jared Cobb Mark Gillem 
City Administrator Principal 

 

Date:   Date:    
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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES STUDY 

RFP #2018-02 
 
 

SUBMISSION DEADLINE: OCTOBER 10, 2018 BY 5:00 P.M. PST 



LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT 
 

 

The City of Lowell invites proposals for professional services from consultants with demonstrated 
experience, knowledge, and expertise in city hall, library, and community center planning, design, and 
architecture to conduct a Community Facilities Study. 

 
Sealed proposals will be received until 5 p.m. on October 10, 2018, to Jared Cobb, City Administrator at 
P.O. Box 490, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, Oregon 97452. There will be no formal opening. Facsimile 
proposals will not be accepted. Proposals will not be accepted after the stated date and time. 

 
Proposal packets may be downloaded from www.ci.lowell.or.us/rfps or may be obtained by calling 541- 
937-2157. 

 
Proposers are required to certify non-discrimination in employment practices, and identify resident status 
as defined in ORS 279A.120(1). Pre-qualification of proposer is not required. All proposers are required to 
comply with the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes and the City of Lowell Municipal Code. 

 
The City of Lowell reserves the right to (1) reject any or all proposals not in compliance with public bidding 
procedures, (2) to postpone award of the contract for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days from the date 
of proposal opening, (3) to waive informalities in the proposals, and (4) to select the proposal which 
appears to be in the best interest of the City. 

 
PUBLISHED: City of Lowell Website, www.ci.lowell.or.us/rfps on September 19, 2018. 
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SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

 

Project Summary 
The existing Lowell City Hall and Library building is approximately 4,000 square feet. It currently has a failing 
roof, which has caused significant structural and cosmetic damage. The City recently received an estimate 
of approximately $538,755 to make necessary repairs, which does not include other known plumbing, 
electrical, mechanical and ADA deficiencies. With this information in hand, the City has decided that it 
would be prudent to take a step back and utilize a more comprehensive approach to rehabilitation or 
development of new facilities. Recommended facilities may be located within one or multiple buildings. 

 
What are the Project Goals? 
 Assist the City in planning for future community facilities to serve the organization and community. 
 Produce a report which helps the City plan for future capital expenditures and informs the community 

about capital needs. 
 

What is the Project Objective? 
 Work with City to engage a wide range of community stakeholders in the process, resulting in a report 

that is reflective of community and organizational needs. 
 Use existing reports, master plans, and ongoing planning efforts to help identify existing conditions. 
 Identify opportunities to leverage grant funding while meeting needs expressed by the community. 
 Consider design opportunities which promote the City’s economic development goals and help 

generate revenue. 
 Plan facility “needs” for administration, finance, human resources, planning and zoning, utility billing, 

information technology, customer service, and space for public meetings and records. 
 Plan facility “wants” for other services that may be desired by the community, such as a library, 

commercial kitchen, community/youth/senior center, and/or fitness facility. 
 

Who is the Audience? 
There are many stakeholders who the City expects to engage during this process. The City is seeking 
community-wide input to identify the needs for community facilities, as well as identifying space needs 
through analysis and interviews with City staff. This will include working with the existing Downtown 
Master Plan Steering Committee, which is currently working on a Downtown Master Plan with the support 
of the Lane Council of Governments. The final report will serve to help the community and the organization 
see the “big picture” impact of the organization and community needs and wants. 
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SECTION 2: SCOPE & SCHEDULE OF WORK 
 

Scope of Work 
The scope of work outlines the anticipated consultant tasks and responsibilities for the Community 
Facilities Study. In responding to this RFP, the consultant may offer alternative approaches for 
consideration; however, the integrity of the process must remain intact, particularly in maintaining the 
previously established goals and in utilizing community suggestions for action. 

 
The consultant may perform other duties not listed below, but only as expressly approved by City staff. 

 
Consultant Tasks/Requirements 

 
KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERIENCE: The successful respondent to this RFP will have professional expertise in 
developing municipal facilities plans and identifying estimated capital costs for planning, designing and 
constructing the facilities. The ideal respondent will have the following qualifications: 

 
 Experience working with municipalities of similar sizes. 
 Experience in the preparation of facility plans for similarly sized organizations. 
 A demonstrated history of successful facility planning efforts. 
 Experience in preparing budget estimates for design and construction of public facilities. 
 Adequate, qualified staff with appropriate experience to perform the development planning effort 

within the designated time period. 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES: The scope of work is as follows: 
 

 Conduct interviews with City staff to identify and prioritize space and facility needs. 
 Plan at least one (1) meeting with the Downtown Master Plan Steering Committee to discuss the 

existing City Hall and Library building, potential project sites, and community facility needs. 
 Develop a minimum of two (2) conceptual plans, with one (1) for the rehabilitation of the existing 

City Hall and Library and one (1) for a new facility. Plans should include a floorplan, interior and 
exterior design renderings with cost estimates. 

 Participate in at least one (1) public community workshop. 
 Plan at least one (1) meeting with the Steering Committee to review comments from the public 

community workshop and identify the preferred conceptual plan. 
 Based on the selected conceptual plan, develop a detailed project cost estimate. 
 Develop summary planning document for Steering Committee review. 
 Present recommended plan to the City Council for review and adoption. 

 
GUIDING CITY STAFF: The consultant will be responsible for helping City staff to develop a successful 
outreach strategy to inform the facilities planning process. 

 
While the consultant will provide guidance, assistance and technical expertise to the process, City staff will 
be primarily responsible for implementation of the facilities planning process. City staff will: 
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 Serve as the liaison between the consultant and the Downtown Master Plan Steering Committee; 
 Provide support to the Steering Committee, including agendas and meeting arrangements; 
 Serve as primary contact for the consultant; 
 Coordinate outreach and public communication; 
 Review drafts of the Community Facilities Plan; and, 
 Assist the consultant in preparing for the presentation of the report to the City Council. 

 
The consultant will facilitate the public community workshop and Steering Committee meetings. 

 
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PROMOTION AND COORDINATION: The consultant and staff will work with the 
Steering Committee, City staff and other stakeholders to promote awareness of the process with the public 
and continue to seek new ways of soliciting public input. Activities and actions led by City staff, the Steering 
Committee and the consultants will include developing information for the City’s website, public events, 
and presentations at public meetings. The consultant may be asked to develop, review or assist with 
material or presentations. 

 
Proposed Project Timeline 

 
 RFP to Consultants September 19, 2018 
 Proposals Due October 10, 2018 
 Consultant Selection October 16, 2018 
 Project November 2018 - April 2018 
 Plan Adoption April 2018 
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SECTION 3: PROPOSAL CONTENT & FORMAT 
Proposals must address all submission requirements set forth in this RFP and describe how the services 
will be provided. 

 
The City’s proposal format and administrative requirements are set out below. These are intended to 
facilitate the City’s ability to quickly and accurately evaluate proposals. Failure to follow these format and 
administrative requirements may affect the scoring of proposals. 

 
Page Limit 
Proposals must be clear, succinct and should not exceed 20 pages, including resumes, work examples and 
any other supporting documents. 

 
Cost of Preparing Proposals 
All costs incurred in preparing and submitting a proposal in response to the RFP is the responsibility of the 
proposer and shall not be reimbursed by the City. 

 
Proposal Validity Period 
Each proposal shall be irrevocable for a period of seventy (70) days from the proposal opening date. 

 
Title Page 
Include a title page with the submitted proposal. Include the following information on the title page: 1) the 
RFP title; 2) the name, title, address, telephone number, fax number, and email address of proposer’s 
primary contact person; and, 3) the date of submission. Proposers may include other information on the 
title page in addition to the listed information, but not in lieu thereof. 

 
Transmittal Letter 
Include a transmittal letter with the proposal. The letter should identify by name and contact information 
the one person the proposer wishes the City to contact after proposals have been evaluated, scored, and 
ranked. The letter may include any other information or insights the proposer deems relevant, but in no 
instance may the letter exceed two pages in length. 

 
Submission Requirements 
Interested consultants are to submit 3 hard copies and an electronic version of the proposal on or before 
October 10, 2018 at 5 p.m. (PDT). 

 
Mailing: Delivery: 
Jared Cobb Jared Cobb 
City Administrator City Administrator 
City of Lowell City of Lowell 
P.O. Box 490 107 East Third Street 
Lowell, OR 97452 Lowell, OR 97452 
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SECTION 4: SUBSTANTIVE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROPOSAL 
The following information is requested to allow the City to evaluate Proposer responsibility and 
responsiveness to perform work described under the “Scope of Work” heading. If a contract is awarded, 
the City shall select the proposal which best meets the criteria outlined in the Scope of Work and based on 
the evaluation factors described in this RFP. 

 
Experience 
Provide a description of the firm’s experience in the preparation of public facility development plans for 
cities and counties which address the key elements of the proposed scope of work. 

 
Proposer Qualifications 
Interested firms must submit statements of qualifications including the following: 

 
 Background of firm. Include a brief history of the firm and types of services the firm is qualified to 

perform. 
 Qualifications of the firm in performing this type of work. Provide a minimum of three and up to 

five references for similar projects. Include the contact name(s), address, email, and telephone 
number for each reference. 

 Project team members and their qualifications. Identify individuals who will complete this work, 
their experience, individual qualifications, and roles they would be assigned for this project. 

 
Project Approach & Understanding 
Interested firms must submit statements of project approach and understanding including the following: 

 Describe the proposed process for defining project scope. Description of management of project 
scoping. Please describe specific process and tools for this scope of work. 

 Describe how the proposed approach meets the goals and objectives of the project and the 
characteristics described in the scope of work. This will be a major part of the selection process. 

 Describe other characteristics of service which would add value to the process. 
 Describe experience in public process strategies, design, implementation, and coordination. 

 
Work Product Samples 
Provide examples of work products for similar projects including but not limited to a schedule, work plan, 
task lists, and sample pages from a final report or public document created for the project. 

 
Project Cost 
Provide a detailed project budget and please state assumptions clearly. Also include hourly rates for the 
project team, an estimate of the number of hours of work for each team member, tasks to be performed, 
and any other anticipated expenses, direct or indirect. 

 
Additional Services 
Provide a brief description of any other services that your firm could provide the City and an approximation 
of the hourly charge for each service of this type. Such services would be contracted for on an “as needed” 
basis, to be provided and billed for separately. 
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SECTION 5: PROPOSAL EVALUATION PROCEDURES 
 

Selection Process 
The City Administrator, City Clerk, and Public Works Director shall review and evaluate proposals 
based on the proposal requirements and evaluation criteria identified in this RFP. The highest 
ranked proposal will be recommended for award to the City Council for a final decision. 

 
Evaluation Criteria Maximum 

  Points  

Experience & Qualifications of Project Team Members and Firm 30 

Project Understanding & Approach 30 

Examples Provided of Similar Work Products 20 

Contract Price 20 

Maximum Total Points: 100 
 

At the City’s option, interviews may be part of the evaluation process to determine which 
proposers best meet the requirements outlined in the RFP. The City Administrator will schedule 
any necessary interviews and notify the selected proposers. 

 
Intent to Award 
After evaluation, the City will provide written notice to all proposers of its intent to award the 
contract to the highest ranked proposer and then commence with negotiations. If an agreement, 
cannot be reached, the City may engage in discussions with the next highest ranked proposer. 

 
The decision whether to engage in negotiations or discussions with the next highest ranked 
proposer shall be made at the sole discretion of the City based on its reasonable judgment. 

 
The City reserves the right to cease negotiations with the highest ranked proposer and proceed 
to negotiate with the next highest ranked proposer, (and so on down the list) until such time as 
an agreement can be reached or the City decides to cease all negotiations. 

 
Investigation of References 
The City reserves the right to investigate references and the past performance of any proposer 
with respect to its successful performance of similar projects, compliance with specifications and 
contractual obligations, its completion or delivery of a project on schedule and its lawful payment 
of employees and workers. 
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Clarification of Proposals 
The City reserves the right to obtain clarification of any point in a firm’s proposal or to obtain 
additional information necessary to properly evaluate a proposal, but will not, in any way, 
provide an opportunity to change any fee amount originally proposed. Failure of a proposer to 
respond to such a request for additional information or clarification could result in rejection of 
the firm’s proposal. 

 
Award Recommendation 
City staff will inform the successful respondent of selection as the consultant. The successful 
respondent will be required to complete a Personal Services Agreement with the City. 

 
Reservation of Rights 
City reserves all rights regarding the RFP, including, without limitation, the right to: 

 
• Amend, delay, or cancel the RFP without liability if City finds it is in the best interest of 

the City to do so (see generally ORS 279B.100); 
• Reject any or all proposals received upon finding that it is in the best interest of the City 

to do so (see generally ORS 279B.100); 
• Waive any minor informality or non-conformance with the provisions or procedures of 

the RFP, and seek clarification of any proposal, if required; 
• Reject any proposal that fails substantially to comply with all prescribed RFP procedures 

and requirements; 
• Negotiate a Statement of Work based on the Scope of Work described herein and to 

negotiate separately in any manner necessary to serve the best interest of the public; 
• Amend any Contracts that are a result of the RFP; and 
• Engage consultants by selection or procurement independent of the RFP process or any 

Contracts or agreements to perform the same or similar services. 
 

Although price is a consideration in determining the apparent successful proposer, the intent of 
the RFP is to identify a proposal from a proposer that has a level of specialized skill, knowledge 
and resources to perform the work described in the RFP. Qualifications, performance, history, 
expertise, knowledge and the ability to exercise sound professional judgment are primary 
considerations in the selection process. Due to the highly technical nature of some of these tasks, 
the proposer with the lowest price proposal may not necessarily be awarded a contract. City 
reserves the sole right to determine the best proposal. 
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Exhibit B 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF LOWELL 
COMMUNITY FACILITIES STUDY 

 
 
 

 
 
 

RFP Title: 
Community Facilities Study 
RFP #2018-02 

Proposer Primary Contact 
Mark Gillem, PhD, FAIA, FAICP 
800 Willamette Street, Suite 790 
Eugene, OR 97401 

 
M. 510-551-8065 
mark@urbancollaborative.com 

Date of Submission 
October 10, 2018 

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
City of Lowell 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
107 East Third Street 
Lowell, OR 97452 

Response to Request for Proposals 
October 10, 2018 
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TRANSMITTAL LETTER 
October 10, 2018 

 
Jared Cobb 
City Administrator 
City of Lowell 
107 East Third Street 
Lowell, OR 97452 

 

RE: Proposal for City of Lowell Community Facilities Study, RFP #2018-02 
 

Dear Mr. Cobb and Members of the Selection Team, 
 

I am pleased to submit our proposal for the City of Lowell Community Facilities Study. The Urban Collaborative 
(UC) is more than qualified to fulfill all services within the scope of work and project goals and objectives 
identified in the Request for Proposals. The UC is an interdisciplinary design firm that has prepared master plans, 
comprehensive plans, form-based codes, land use plans, and facilities concept plans regionally, nationally, 
and across the globe. As a local firm, we can provide on-site support throughout the entire project process. 
Moreover, we are currently working with the Lowell community to develop a Downtown Master Plan and 
would apply our experience to this next step in planning. The team will work closely with the City of Lowell, City 
Council, Downtown Master Plan Steering Committee, staff, residents, and other stakeholders throughout the 
design process. Working with the people who will implement and use the community facilities will ensure our 
team’s ability to develop concept plans that reflect the community’s vision and meet the needs and desires of 
staff and residents. 

 
Our projects in the region include preparing concept plans, renderings, and a cost estimate for the Lutherwood 
Lodge and Administration building in Cheshire, Oregon. The plans, developed though a participatory process, 
included several community facilities. In Wilsonville, Oregon, our team developed architectural design 
standards for the Old Town neighborhood, including concepts for four distinct building types that adhered to 
the neighborhood’s desired historic character. In addition, we have experience in similar scale community 
facilities studies and concept plans as a result of our work with the Department of Defense at installations in the 
U.S. and around the world. Similar to small towns, installations have limited budgets and a need for beautiful 
administrative and community facilities within their areas. Our team designed the Torii Community Center and 
Library at an American military base in Japan that supported a community of families similar in size to Lowell. 

 
The UC is known for creating award-winning plans that promote the vision and goals of the community. Our 
comprehension of your objectives for the Community Facilities Study has guided the assembly of a team with a 
proven track record in community engagement, facilities studies, building concept plans, and cost estimates. 
We have enjoyed working with the City of Lowell during the first stages of developing the Downtown Master 
Plan and are eager to further collaborate with local government and community members in this important 
and exciting work. If you have any questions, please contact me anytime at mark@urbancollaborative.com or 
by phone at 510-551-8065. 

 
This proposal is irrevocable for 70 days from the proposal opening date. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 

Mark Gillem, PhD, FAIA, FAICP 
Principal 
The Urban Collaborative, LLC 
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And Safe, Functional and Attractive Streets2 

A New Vision 
for Community Facilities in Lowell 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Beautiful and Functional Facilities 

 
 
 
 
 
 

For the Entire Community, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting the Needs of the Community In a Central Location. 
 
 
 
 

 
This vision supports the emerging Downtown Master Plan vision and goals and the 2018 Strategic Plan Vision 
of “A rural lakeside community, with a high quality of life, great outdoor activities, proud of our history, looking 
forward to the future through a representative government.” 

 
The Urban Collaborative’s planning process starts with reviewing previous planning documents and working 
with the city and stakeholders to understand the opportunities and goals of the community. We use this 
information as a base to help the community create a new vision for future community facilities that addresses 
the administrative needs of the City, responds to the desires of the community, and identifies priorities for 
implementation. 
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That Enhance Lowell’s Small Town Feel and Historic Character 



EXPERIENCE 
 

 
 
 
 

The Urban Collaborative has ample experience 
conducting community facilities studies for 
communities of all sizes. These studies help to identify 
the vision and components of concept plans for civic 
buildings. We have completed architectural concept 
plans for over forty communities worldwide. Our 
team is currently working with the Lowell community 
to develop the Downtown Master Plan and has 
experience working with other municipalities of similar 
size including a Joint Comprehensive Plan for the town 
of Emporia, Kansas, and community planning work at 
small American military installations around the world. 

 
The UC has developed facility plans for numerous 
communities similar to Lowell, including a lodge and 
administrative building at a youth summer camp for 
Camp Lutherwood in Cheshire, Oregon; a Community 
Center and Library, Fire Station, and a Community 
Club for the Marine Corps Air Station Iwakuni; and 
administrative head quarters and flexible training 
facilities for several installations. These communities, 
while diverse, are of the same size as a small town 
and have similar needs and wants for their community 
and administrative facilities. Throughout each of 
these projects our team uses a participatory planning 
process to engage communities and ensure the 
proposed facility design serves the needs and desires 
of the community or the organization. 

The UC has experience in preparing budget estimates 
for the design and construction of public facilities. 
In 2017 our team completed a Customer Concept 
Document for the Joint Operations Center at Fort Polk. 
Like a small town, the DoD installations we work with 
need a facility that could meet multiple needs on a 
tight budget. We help our clients in identifying funding, 
including securing grant funding. We design flexible 
spaces for potential income generating activities 
such as event rooms that can also be classrooms. 
Our team works with stakeholders to ensure a realistic 
budget for conceptual projects so a planning board 
can identify funding sources. It is our goal to help the 
City of Lowell to plan for future capital expenditures 
and inform the community about its capital 
needs while building a City Hall that supports the 
community’s vision. 
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Chattanooga Industrial District Historic Preservation Project 
Revitalization of an existing 

administrative facility 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exploring alternatives for the 
City of Lowell Downtown Master Plan 



PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS: Firm Background 
 

 

Our History and Services 
 
 
 

The Urban Collaborative (UC) is a planning and 
design firm headquartered in Eugene, Oregon 
that helps communities establish a collaborative 
vision and define implementation plans to achieve 
their goals. The UC has a reputation for creating 
great places through community engagement, 
stakeholder collaboration, and context-based 
planning. Established in 2006, we have received 
over 35 national, state, and local planning and 
design awards. With 24 staff members with degrees 
in planning, architecture, landscape architecture, 
economics, and engineering, our multi-disciplinary 
team thinks creatively and brings expertise in planning 
and design along with effective implementation tools 
to all of our projects. 

 
The Urban Collaborative provides the following 
services: 

• Comprehensive Planning 
• Architecture 
• Strategic Visioning + Analysis 
• Form Based Planning 
• Street Design Guidelines 
• Concept Plans 
• Programming Documents 
• Sustainability Analysis 
• Transportation Planning 
• Public Facilities Planning 
• Low-Impact Development 
• Resiliency Planning 
• Implementation Plans 
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Recent Awards 
• American Planning Association-Federal Planning 

Division (APA-FPD) Outstanding Federal Planning 
Project – Honor Award, USAG-Miami Future 
Development Plan, 2017 

• American Institute of Architects and South West 
Oregon (AIA-SWO), People’s Choice Award, 
Master Planning Category 

• APA FPD. Outstanding Technical Plan or Study – 
Citation Award Fort Polk Joint Operations Center 
Customer Concept Document, Louisiana, 2017 

• APA FPD. Outstanding Collaborative Planning 
Project – Merit Award: NASA Johnson Space 
Center Master Plan Update, Texas & New Mexico, 
2017 

• APA FPD. Outstanding Federal Area Development 
Plan Project – Honor Award: Fort Polk Warrior Plaza 
ADP, Louisiana, 2016 

• American Planning Association Hawaii Annual 
Chapter Award. Outstanding Planning Award – 
Joint Base Pearl Harbor-Hickam Master Plan, 2016 

• APA FPD. Outstanding Technical Plan or 
Study Merit Award: Parks Reserve Forces Training 
Area Development Execution Plan, Dublin, 
California, 2016 

• APA FPD. Outstanding Federal Planning 
Project Honor Award: Fort Buchanan Area 
Development Plan, San Juan, Puerto Rico, 2016 

• APA FPD. Outstanding Area/Site Development 
Plan Merit Award: Fort Knox South Wilson Area 
Development Plan, Radcliff, Kentucky (with 
Merrick and Co), 2016 

• APA FPD. Outstanding Technical Plan or 
Study Honor Award: Fort Hood Area Development 
Execution Plan, Killeen, Texas, 2016 

• Outstanding Environmental Planning Project Honor 
Award: Parks Reserve Forces Training Area 
Sustainability Component Plan, Dublin, California, 
2016 
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PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS: Firm References 
 

 

Community Facilities Studies 
 

The Urban Collaborative (UC) has experience 
conducting similar scale public facilities studies as 
well as developing concept plans for civic buildings 
for communities across the nation and American 
installations across the globe. These studies, 
developed through a participatory planning process, 
include floor plans, interior and exterior renderings, 
and cost estimates. 

 
 

REFERENCES 
 

Project: Torii Community Center and Library, 
(Iwakuni, Japan) 
Contact: 
Mr. Emilio Rovira 
Planning Division, Facilities Department 
MCAS Iwakuni, Misumi-Cho 
Iwakuni-Shi, Yamaguchi-Ken 
Japan, 740-0025 
emilio.rovira@usmc.mil 
+81 827.79.6403 

 
Project: Camp Lutherwood Lodge and Administrative 
Offices, (Cheshire, Oregon) 
Contact: 
Mrs. Andrea Scofield 
22960 OR-36 
Cheshire, OR 97419 
andrea@lutherwoodoregon.org 
503.679.6625 

 
Project: Parks RFTA Training Center, (Dublin, California) 
Contact: 
Mr. Jerry Zekert 
Chief of Master Planning, Headquarters U.S. Army of 
Engineers 
441 G Street NW 
Washington, DC 20314-1000 
Jerry.C.Zekert@usace.army.mil 
540.847.5246 

 
Project: Joint Operations Center at Fort Polk, 
(Alexandria, LA) 
Contact: 
Mr. Joey Ball 
819 Taylor St., Rm 3B10 
Fort Worth, TX 76102 
joey.b.ball@usace.army.mil 
817.886.1878 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Atrium of the Community Club at Marine Corps Air Station Iwakuni 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Club at Marine Corps Air Station Iwakuni 
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PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS: Project Team 
 

Mark Gillem, PhD, FAIA, 
FAICP 

Zoe Anton, LEED AP ND, 
PMP 

Barry Gordon, AICP Chris Becker, LEED GA Lindsay Jacobson 

Assistant Planner Architectural 
Designer 

Senior Planner, 
Landscape Designer 

Project Manager, 
Planner 

Principal, Senior 
Architect 

Team Organization 

Our principal-in-charge, Mark Gillem, PhD, FAIA, FAICP, will be the Senior Architect and Facilitator and oversee 
the entire community facilities study effort. Zoe Anton, PMP, LEED AP ND, be the Project Manager for the team. 
She is currently leading the Downtown Master Plan for Lowell and is familiar with working with the City and 
Steering Committee. Keeping continuity of the team, Lindsay Jacobson will continue to be the Assistant Planner 
as well as Architectural Designer. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Our full staff are experienced and qualified and able to help as needed: 

ARCHITECTURE STAFF 
Virginia Bailey, CPHC 
Dede Christopher 
Lyndsey Deaton, RA, LEED AP, PMP 
Marc Holt, RA, LEED AP 
Jessica Kelly, LEED AP 
Dale Masin, RA 

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE & 
PLANNING STAFF 
Steve Baird, AICP 
Hesham Issa, PhD, AIA 
Tricia Kessler, AICP 
Holly Workman, AICP 
Kellie Dziedzic LEED GA 
Jane Jewett 
Joaquin Pedrin, RLA 
Donald Rickman, LEED AP 

COST ESTIMATING STAFF 
Jason Fajardo 
Mike Knowles 
Tim McAdams AICP 

 
GIS & CAD SUPPORT STAFF 
John Gonzales 
Eric Knobelspiesse 
Jay Pezzotti 
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PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS: Project Team 
 

 
 

MARK GILLEM PhD,FAIA, FAICP 
Principal, Senior Architect, The Urban Collaborative 
Professor, University of Oregon 

 

 
Education 
Architecture PhD, University of California, Berkeley 
Master of Architecture, University of California, Berkeley 
Bachelor of Architecture, University of Kansas 

 
Professional Registrations 
Oregon Registered Architect, #6082 
California Registered Architect, #C27707 
Fellow, American Institute of Architects (FAIA) 
Fellow, American Institute of Certified Planners (FAICP) 
Director, International Association for the Study of Traditional 
Environments (IASTE) 

 
Qualifications 
Dr. Gillem has extensive experience in helping communities 
develop strategic visions that drive sustainable 
development. He has completed plans at a range of scales; 
from comprehensive plans at over 60 sites to numerous 
conceptual architectural plans (15% design). His planning 
work has received over 30 awards from the American 
Planning Association Federal Planning Division (APA FPD). 

 
Selected Projects: 
City of Lowell, OR, Downtown Master Plan 
As the principal-in-charge, Dr. Gillem oversees all aspects 
of the Downtown Master Plan. He works directly with the 
in-house project manager and collaboratively with the 
Steering Committee and stakeholders to ensure the needs 
and desires of the community are met. 

 
Torii Community Center and Library, Iwakuni, Japan 
As the lead architect and principal-in-charge for this 
customer concept document Dr. Gillem’s participation 
ensures the architectural designs meet the intent of the 
master plan and detailed form-based code developed 
under a larger real property master planning project. This 
15% conceptual design architectural project includes a 
youth and teen center, library, and town pool. He worked 
directly with senior officials and stakeholder. This architecture 
project is one of nine projects developed at Iwakuni. 

Camp Lutherwood Lodge and Administrative Offices, 
Cheshire, OR 
As the principal-in-charge, Dr Gillem oversees all aspects 
of the Lodge and Administrative Offices Complex. 
He works directly with the in-house project manager 

and collaboratively with the Camp Master Plan and 
Development Steering Committees, numerous focus groups, 
and community working sessions. 

 
Parks RFTA Training Center, Dublin, CA 
Dr. Gillem was the lead architect and principal-in-charge for 
this customer concept document. His involvement ensures 
the architectural designs meet the intent of the master plan 
developed under his guidance. This 15% conceptual design 
architecture project included two Marine Corps Reserve 
Centers with Administrative, Physical Training, and Vehicle 
Maintenance Centers. 

 
Joint Operations Center, Alexandria, LA 
Dr Gillem oversaw all aspects of this 15% conceptual design. 
The operations center laid the framework for all customer 
concept design and cost estimating for the U.S. Army. 

 
Emporia and Lyon County, KS, Joint Comprehensive Plan. 
As principal-in-charge and senior planner, Dr. Gillem 
guided the visioning process and facilitated an intensive 
planning charrette. He helped transition the city and 
county from a land use plan to a regulating plan in order 
to better implement the community’s goals. Dr. Gillem 
led stakeholders and a team of planners to develop a 
principles, goals, and objectives to meet the community’s 
vision and needs for a sustainable future. 

 
Tacoma, WA, Joint Base Lewis-McChord Comprehensive 
Plan. 
Senior planner and principal-in-charge of the master plan 
process. The project included direct planning with the 
local municipality an state department of transportation to 
solve major traffic issues. (Outstanding Sustainable Planning 
Design or Development, 2008; Outstanding Federal Planning 
Project, 2010) 

 
Wilsonville, OR, Old Town Single-Family Design Standards 
Dr. Gillem, as architect and senior planner, led the 
development of simple and flexible standards that helped 
to met the community’s desire to continue the historic 
character of their neighborhood. 

 
Yakima, WA, Training Center Area Development Plan. 
As principal-in-charge, Dr. Gillem led the effort for the 
U.S. Army’s premier Pacific Northwest range and training 
installation. A small developed area, located on the west 
side of the 328,000 acre training complex, contains the 
parade field, headquarters and other support facilities for 
both permanent and transient units and families. The entire 
plan was designed using a natural, historic, and built systems 
overlay analysis methodology. 

 
Clayton, OH, Comprehensive Plan. 
As principal-in-charge, Dr. Gillem led the charrette 
facilitation and land use regulating plan development. In a 
diverse community, Dr. Gillem worked extensively with local 
government to ensure that all needs of the community were 
met. He helped to align the future land use plan with the 
community’s goals, which will enable Clayton to grow while 
preserving their agricultural land and unique character. 
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PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS: Project Team 
 

 
ZOE ANTON, LEED AP ND, PMP 
Project Manager, Planner 
The Urban Collaborative 

 

 
Education 
Master of Science, Environmental Policy and Regulation, 
London School of Economics and Political Science (LSE) 
Bachelor of Arts, International Relations, 
Bachelor of Arts, French, University of Oregon 

 
Professional Registrations 
U.S. Green Building Council, LEED Accredited Professional 
Project Management Certification, Association for Project 
Management 

 
Qualifications 
Ms. Anton has over eight years of experience in sustainable 
design and development, urban planning, and policy 
development. She has managed projects at various scales 
and consistently keeps projects on schedule and within 
budget. Ms. Anton has served as primary and contributing 
author to numerous comprehensive plans, economic 
development strategies, and community facilities studies. 
Her focus is on participatory planning, sustainable growth, 
and capacity building throughout the planning process. 

 
Selected Projects: 
Downtown Master Plan, City of Lowell, OR 
Ms. Anton is currently the project manager and planner for 
the Downtown Master Plan. She has worked collaboratively 
with the Steering Committee and stakeholders to ensure the 
needs and desires of the community are met. 

 
Old Town Single-Family Design Standards, Wilsonville, OR 
As project manager, Ms. Anton directed all aspects of the 
process from initial analysis and stakeholder engagement to 
presenting at public hearings. 

 
Joint Comprehensive Plan, Emporia and Lyon County, KS 
As project manager, Ms. Anton led the overall project 
process as well as facilitated all community engagement, 
including one-on-one interviews, designing and 
implementing a web survey, leading focus groups, and co- 
facilitating a week-long planning charrette. She conducted 
a public facilities study and developed a phased 
implementation plan aligned with the community’s vision. 

 
Comprehensive Plan, Clayton, OH, 
Ms. Anton co-facilitated the design charrette and worked 
specifically to align a new nodal development plan with the 
community’s economic development goals. 

 
BARRY GORDON, AICP, LEED Green Associate 
Senior Planner, Landscape Designer 
The Urban Collaborative 

 

 
Education 
Master of Landscape Architecture; Master of Community 
and Regional Planning, University of Oregon 
Bachelor of Science in Community Development and 
Applied Economics, University of Vermont 

 
Professional Registrations 
American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP) 
U.S. Green Building Council, LEED Green Associate 

 
Qualifications 
Mr. Gordon has extensive experience in sustainable 
design and development, education and training, policy 
development, public and private sector urban design, and 
landscape preservation planning. He has completed plans, 
form-based codes, and implementation plans for cities and 
communities at a range of scales worldwide. 

 
Selected Projects: 
Torii Community Center and Library, Iwakuni, Japan 
Mr. Gordon is currently in his third year as the program 
manager and senior planner for this large planning program. 
He has led and or assisted in the facilitation of architecture 
and planning workshops and helped complete over 100 
project deliverables from large-scale planning reports to 
detailed form-based codes, and 15% conceptual design 
architectural project. He works directly with senior officials 
and stakeholders alike. 

 
Lutherwood Lodge and Administrative Offices, Cheshire, OR 
As the quality assurance manager, Mr. Gordon reviewed all 
planning deliverables with the project team for quality and 
consistency prior to delivery to the client and then with the 
client and stakeholders during the design review period. 

 
Parks RFTA Training Center, Dublin, CA 
As a project planner, Mr. Gordon assisted in all aspects of a 
series of workshops that generated the planning vision and 
form-based code that informed this project. He worked with 
stakeholders, the planner from the adjacent city of Dublin, 
and the developer, ensuring an implementable project. 

 
Joint Operations Center at Fort Polk, Alexandria, LA 
As the quality assurance manager Mr. Gordon reviewed all 
planning deliverables with the project team for quality and 
consistency prior to delivery to the client. 
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PROPOSER QUALIFICATIONS: Project Team 
 

 
CHRIS BECKER, LEED Green Associate 
Architectural Designer 
The Urban Collaborative 

 

 
Education 
Bachelor of Architecture, University of Oregon 

 
Professional Registrations 
U.S. Green Building Council, LEED Green Associate 

 

Qualifications 
Mr. Becker has over six years of experience in facilitating, 
urban design, and master planning. He brings expertise 
in graphic design, 3D modeling, architectural design, 
sustainable urban planning, and energy modeling. He 
works to ensure the project vision and goals developed with 
clients are reflected in the high quality products delivered at 
the end of the project. 

 
Selected Projects: 
Torii Community Center and Library, Iwakuni, Japan 
Mr. Becker facilitated youth and adult focus groups and 
architectural design workshops. As the technical lead of 
the community’s form-based code, he ensured the facility 
conforms to the form-based code, the community’s needs, 
and the surrounding architectural styles. He also assisted in 
preparing an estimated capital construction budget. 

 
Maintenance Facility and Administrative Center, Siting 
Study, Havelock, NC 
As a technical lead, Mr. Becker helped execute all aspects 
of the project to ensure successful facility design and 
community engagement in the process. He conducted 
one-on-one interviews with stakeholders, drafted 
architectural plans, and helped prepare budget estimates 
for design and construction of the facility. 

 
Lutherwood Lodge and Administrative Offices, Cheshire, OR 
Mr. Becker met with clients and assisted with the 
architectural design documentation. He performed project 
quality and consistency reviews prior to delivery of the plans 
to the client. 

 
Joint Operations Center, Customer Concept Document, 
Alexandria, LA 
As an architectural designer, Mr. Becker assisted with the 
development of architectural plans, renderings, graphic 
communication, and facility programming documents. 
Additionally, he supported the overall quality assurance and 
quality check team. 

LINDSAY JACOBSON 
Assistant Planner, Architectural Designer 
The Urban Collaborative 

 

 
Education 
Master of Architecture, Ecological Design Certificate; 
University of Oregon 
Bachelor of Arts in Interior Architecture, California State 
University in Sacramento 

 
Qualifications 
Ms. Jacobson is a Masters of Architecture graduate and 
has five years education and experience specializing in 
ecologically-focused architecture and planning. She has 
demonstrated understanding of the relationships between 
environmental and socio-cultural ecological processes, 
sustainable architecture and urban development, and how 
design and planning disciplines collaboratively approach 
these relationships. 

 
Selected Projects: 
Downtown Master Plan, City of Lowell, OR 
Ms. Jacobson is currently the assistant planner for the Lowell 
Downtown Master Plan. She co-facilitated the downtown 
design workshop and is working with community members, 
Steering Committee members, and stakeholders to develop 
a new master plan for downtown Lowell. 

 
Kintai Inn Lodge & Conference Center, Iwakuni, Japan 
Ms. Jacobson assisted in the design for the Kintai Inn 
Lodge and Conference Center. She developed the Revit 
3D Model, produced final architectural drawings for the 
customer concept document, and performed an energy 
analysis for the project. 

 
Old Town Single-Family Design Standards, Wilsonville, OR 
As a design assistant, Ms. Jacobson helped to develop and 
create 3D models and graphics illustrating the new design 
principles of the form based code for Old Town’s Residential 
architecture. 

 
Avionics Repair Facility Conceptual Design, 
NAS Lemoore, CA 
As an architectural designer, Ms. Jacobson produced the 
Revit 3D Model and the final plans, sections, and elevations 
for the new facility conceptual design. She performed 
thorough energy calculations and systems analysis for the 
program needs for the facility, and created photo-realistic 
interior and exterior renderings for the project. 
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PROJECT APPROACH AND UNDERSTANDING: Schedule + Scope 
 

PRELIMINARY 
ANALYSIS 

DRAFT CONCEPTUAL 
PLANS DEVELOPMENT 

Proposed Process 
 
 

 
 

 
November 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PRELIMINARY ANALYSIS 
As a result of the planning process for the Downtown 
Master plan, our team is familiar with many past 
planning efforts in Lowell. We will build on our current 
analysis of existing conditions. This stage will further 
allow us to learn from existing reports and plans and 
ongoing efforts. We will: 
• Evaluate previous city planning work that 

addresses City Hall, the library, and other 
community facilities 

• Assess current zoning and land use, including 
any new proposals being developed during the 
Downtown Master Plan process 

• Explore current administrative needs and 
community desires for an updated or new City Hall 
and community building 

• Analyze Lowell’s current community facilities and 
how they could be improved to better contribute 
to the overall goals of the community as well as 
contribute to economic development 

 
This analysis and the corresponding recommendations 
would be presented to the Downtown Master Plan 
Steering Committee. 

 

KICKOFF MEETING + STAKEHOLDER INTERVIEWS 
We will attend a kick-off meeting with the Steering 
Committee to discuss the current state of the City Hall 
and Library building, potential project sites, and facility 
needs, as well as relevant findings from the Downtown 
Master Planning process. In addition, our team will 
conduct interviews with stakeholders including City 

staff, residents, and other stakeholders to better 
identify and prioritize community facility needs. 

 
DRAFT CONCEPTUAL PLANS DEVELOPMENT 
Our team, building on public engagement input, 
will draft two conceptual plans for the City Hall and 
Library facility. One will address the rehabilitation 
of the existing facility and the other will present 
a conceptual plan for a new facility. Each draft 
conceptual plan will include the following elements: 
• Floorplan 
• Elevations 
• Interior design rendering 
• Exterior design rendering 
• High level cost estimate 

 

PUBLIC COMMUNITY WORKSHOP 
Our team follows a proven methodology for 
participatory planning and design. As part of this 
process we will conduct a half-day community 
workshop, or two evening sessions of two hours each, 
for staff and residents. Throughout the workshop we 
will work with dedicated stakeholders and community 
members to refine a clear vision, goals, and objectives 
for community facilities in Lowell. In addition, we will 
consider design opportunities that could generate 
revenue and help Lowell meet its economic goals. 
In order to ensure informed planning decisions for 
the City, we will work with participants to analyze 
and refine the components of a rehabilitated or new 
facility, which will lead to a better understanding of 
the community’s preferred conceptual plan. 
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PROJECT APPROACH AND UNDERSTANDING: Schedule + Scope 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

DETAILED COST 
ESTIMATE DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

April 2019 

 
 
 
 
 
 

With this analysis in place, our team will evaluate 
relevant courses of action for the City Hall and Library. 
This will help to outline priority needs and functions for 
the facility in the near term. 

 

STEERING COMMITTEE REVIEW MEETING 
We will attend and present at a Steering Committee 
meeting to review outcomes from the public 
workshop and identify a preferred conceptual plan to 
carry forward. 

 

FINAL CONCEPTUAL PLAN DEVELOPMENT 
Based on the comprehensive analysis, community 
input, and Steering Committee review, we will 
develop a final concept plan for the preferred 
approach. The final conceptual plan will include the 
following elements: 
• Floorplan 
• Elevations 
• Interior design renderings 
• Exterior design renderings 

 

DETAILED COST ESTIMATE DEVELOPMENT 
Our team will develop a parametric cost estimate 
based on the preferred conceptual plan for the 
Lowell City Hall, Library, and Community Facility. 

DRAFT SUMMARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 
Our team will prepare a summary planning 
document that incorporates the conceptual plan 
and cost estimate as well as documents the planning 
process. The report will help the City plan for future 
expenditures while also informing the community 
about capital needs. 

 

FINAL SUMMARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 
Following a Steering Committee review, our team will 
incorporate comments and prepare a final summary 
planning document for the City Council’s review. 

 

PRESENTATION TO CITY COUNCIL 
Our team will present the planning document and 
conceptual plan to the City Council for adoption. 
The report will address facility needs for administration 
as well as other services that are desired by the 
community and identify priorities. 
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PROJECT APPROACH AND UNDERSTANDING: Meeting Goals 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The Urban Collaborative will facilitate a process that engages a wide range of community 
stakeholders. Our focus is on the creation of places rather than objects, and we think a strong vision 
is the key to successful community facilities. From the community’s vision we will evaluate design 
opportunities that promote economic development and generate revenue. Throughout the process 
we will work with the City to develop a program that meets the needs and wants of the community. 

 
Our philosophy and work approach is focused on four key areas: 

Collaboration. We have pioneered a process 
that integrates the goals and needs of all involved, 
whether actively or passively, in an engaging and 
effective manner. We have deep knowledge and 
expertise in survey methods, focus groups, charrettes, 
and participatory facility planning, and we use these 
skills on all of our projects. 

 
Our firm does not accept development ideas and 
programs at face value though. As our clients 
educate us on the nuances of their unique community 
that may impact planning, we also educate our 
clients on creative solutions that harness these 
attributes as opportunities for economic and cultural 
growth in the future. 

 
This process results in more informed facility plans that 
serve the organization and the community. 

Placemaking. We believe in the design and creation 
of great places. By working with community members 
to create these places, they are more invested in the 
outcome, and more likely to support urban amenities 
that lead to a more vibrant building and community. 

 
We facilitate this process by working with community 
and organization members to create a facility vision 
as the first step. With the vision guiding the remainder 
of the process, we keep stakeholders focused on the 
overall objectives of the broader community and 
previously established economic goals. 

 
Creating great places draws people to downtowns 
and neighborhoods, spurring private development 
and contributing to a thriving economy. 

 
 

Using Illustrations to Communicate a Clear Vision 
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PROJECT APPROACH AND UNDERSTANDING: Characteristics of Service 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Economic Sustainability. Our goal is to create 
places that are economically, environmentally, and 
socially sustainable. We will focus on including the 
city’s economic development goals as a foundation 
of this community facilities study. 

 
Through our preliminary analysis, we will evaluate 
previous planning studies, existing administrative 
needs, and analyze Lowell’s current facilities for 
design opportunities which could stimulate economic 
development. 

 
By conducting interviews with staff, residents, and 
stakeholders, our team will build on our experience 
developing the Downtown Master Plan to produce 
realistic and sustainable conceptual plans for the 
community facilities. 

Responsiveness. We pride ourselves on being 
responsive to client needs and in our ability to 
orchestrate collaborative planning efforts for 
communities. 

 
The UC will provide informed recommendations to 
meet the needs and wants of the community through 
the development of two conceptual plans for the 
City Hall and Library facility; one to address the 
rehabilitation of the existing facility and the other to 
present a conceptual plan for a new facility. 

 
With the collaboration between stakeholders and 
the steering committee, the Urban Collaborative will 
facilitate the evaluation and analysis of the alternative 
plans in order to develop a recommended plan for 
the City Council to review and adopt. 

 
 
 

Illustrating the Plan Turning a Vision into Actions 
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WORK PRODUCT SAMPLES 
 

Torii Community Center and Library 
Customer Concept Document (Iwakuni, Japan) 
The Urban Collaborative led a public engagement process 
to generate conceptual architectural designs for a library, 
community center, teen center, and neighborhood pool. 
The project is located in the town center of Marine Corps 
Air Station Iwakuni - a growing small community of overseas 
families. Our team held focus groups with youth, parents, adult 
community members, library staff, community planners, and 
key decision-makers to determine a vision for the facility, the 
appropriate siting, and architectural plans to meet the client’s 
and the community’s needs. 

 
The process resulted in a vision statement and architectural 
concept for the facility: a contemporary mixed-use building 
that is welcoming to the community, with clearly defined 
spaces, incorporating narrow wings and collaborative spaces. 

 
The contractor and stakeholder team analyzed multiple sites 
and identified its preferred location. The site, located in the 
community’s foremost residential and community-focused 
area, also sits adjacent to the installation’s central park. Library 
staff and community planners worked with our architects 
to determine the building’s programmatic requirements to 
include multi-purpose rooms, teen storage cubbies and hang 
out areas, maker rooms, reading alcoves, and staff work 
stations, personal offices, and break room/kitchen. 

 
The UC created architectural design alternatives and the 
preferred plan by following the design vision, goals, and 
objectives, and inspiration gathered from stakeholder groups. 

Project Reference: 
Mr. Emilio Rovira 
Planning Division, Facilities Dept 
MCAS Iwakuni, Misumi-Cho 
Iwakuni-Shi, Yamaguchi-Ken 
Japan, 740-0025 
emilio.rovira@usmc.mil 
+81 827.79.6403 
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Interior rendering of the library staircase leading from the Special Collections and Tech Maker Space to the third floor Periodicals 

Youth Focus Group 
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WORK PRODUCT SAMPLES 
 

47 
48 

52 
58 63 

 
45 46 60 

53 56 

59 

49 61 
54 55 

50 
44 43 

 
51 51A 57 62 62A 

 
 
 
 

Room Sc 
41 Number Name 

37 Egress Stairwell 
38 Theater 
39 Activity Room 2 

40A 39A Activity Room Storage 
40 Activity Room 1 
40A Activity Room Storage 

42 41 Computer Room 1 

42 Collaboration Space 
43 Women's Restroom 

40 44 Men's Restroom 

45 Game Room 
46 Main Stair 
47 Japanese American Societ 
48 Study Area 

39A 49 Elevator 

50 Storage 
51 Conference Space/Classr 
51A Storage 

39 52 Circulation Desk 
53 Library Entry 
54 Small Group Study 1 
55 Small Group Study 2 
56 Teen Collection 
57 Tech Maker Space 
58 Teen and Children Collect 

38 59 Display Altar 
60 Children's Collection 
61 Special Collections 
62 Craft Maker Space 

37 62A Storage 
63 Children's Reading Room 

 
 
 
 

The conceptual design for the Torii Community Center and 
Library has narrow wings to create opportunities for passive 
design strategies, such as natural light and ventilation. The 
L-shape footprint allows for the segregation of different types 
of uses, including public and administrative spaces. 

 
Our team of architects and planners developed a detailed 
project cost estimate based upon the selected conceptual 
design. We worked with our client to develop presentation 
materials for the planning board. 

 
The deliverable establishes a planning framework for the 
facility and will reduce the design time, limit design changes 
and conserve design funds. 

Project Elements: 
• Public Engagement (including a four- 

day workshop, 40 interviews, open 
houses, focus groups, and follow-on 
reviews with stakeholders) 

• Community Vision and Principles 
• Focus Groups with Staff, Youth & Adults 
• Site Identification within Master Plan 
• Conceptual Floor Plans, Sections and 

Renderings 
• Cost Estimate 
• Energy Modeling 

 
 
 

Torii Community Center and Library, Second Floor Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20’ 20’ 20’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

286 SF Level 2 
343 SF Level 2 
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hedule Level 2  
 Area Level 
 334 SF Level 2 
 620 SF Level 2 
 1194 SF Level 2 
 362 SF Level 2 
 1527 SF Level 2 
 366 SF Level 2 
 1011 SF Level 2 
 1076 SF Level 2 
 411 SF Level 2 
 345 SF Level 2 
 1608 SF Level 2 
 2342 SF Level 2 

y Personal Office 343 SF Level 2 
 120 SF Level 2 
 56 SF Level 2 
 106 SF Level 2 
oom Space 1022 SF Level 2 
 127 SF Level 2 
 682 SF Level 2 
 739 SF Level 2 
 221 SF Level 2 
 221 SF Level 2 
 1724 SF Level 2 
 869 SF Level 2 
ion Storage 101 SF Level 2 
 280 SF Level 2 
 1453 SF Level 2 
 1388 SF Level 2 
 897 SF Level 2 

 



WORK PRODUCT SAMPLES 
 

Camp Lutherwood, Cheshire, Oregon 
Lodge and Entry Facility Customer Concept Documents 
In 2016 The Urban Collaborative completed a set of two 
customer concept designs for a youth summer camp in 
Cheshire, Oregon. The customer concept designs were part 
of a multi-year collaborative effort starting with the camp’s 
master plan and continuing through the schematic design and 
preliminary cost estimate of the new buildings on-site. 

 
The Urban Collaborative engaged over 250 participants in 
14 workshops and focus groups over a period of four-years to 
complete the Master Plan and customer concept designs. 
During the customer concept design process, the team relied 
and built on the information collected during the previous 
workshops by facilitating focus groups, stakeholder workshops, 
and individual interviews aimed at creating a vision and 
identity for the new facilities that aligned with the overall 
Master Plan. 

 
To understand the requirements for the new facilities, the 
team completed a detailed site and existing building analysis 
through interviews, creating as-built drawings of the existing 
buildings, reviewing utility and man-made/natural constraints, 
and facilitating site-walks with stakeholders. 

 
Through exhaustive analysis of site constraints and 
opportunities, detailed document review, and comprehensive 
engagement with stakeholders the camp can move forward 
with energy-efficient, rustic-modern development that aligns 
with the master-plan, has been approved by the majority of 
stakeholders including the board of directors, and builds on 
their operational vision and growth strategy. 

Project Reference: 
Andrea Scofield 
22960 OR-36 
Cheshire, OR 97419 
andrea@lutherwoodoregon.org 
503.679.6625 
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Showing Main Entry to Lodge/Hotel Facility 

The Board of Director’s Workshop 
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WORK PRODUCT SAMPLES 
 

 
 
 
 

Lodge Vision: 
“Our vision of the lodge is a series of flexible spaces 
made of natural materials, flooded by natural light, 
with a strong connection to nature from within.” 

 
Entry Vision: 
“Our successful entry is a place that is efficient, 
welcoming, and safe, with clear signage and 
wayfinding. The entry should contain buildings with 
complimentary functions, ample and hidden parking, 
and appropriate landscaping to help set the tone for 
the camp upon arrival.” 

Project Elements: 
• Existing Conditions Analysis 
• Utilities Analysis 
• Programming 
• Alternative Analysis 
• Energy Modeling 
• Master Plan 
• Camp Vision and Principles 
• Public Engagement (including 

14 workshops, with interviews, 
presentations, and focus groups) 

• Two Customer Concept Documents 
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Youth Workshop Lodge Entry Rendering 

Entry Building Rendering 



WORK PRODUCT SAMPLES 
 

Dublin, California 
Parks RFTA Training Center, Customer Concept Document 
The UC developed a customer concept document for a new 
Reserve Center for the Marine Forces Reserve Command in 
Dublin, California. The report outlines a comprehensive set 
of program requirements for the design and construction of 
a new Marine Corps Forces Reserve Training Center at Parks 
Reserve Forces Training Area. 

 
The Parks RFTA Training Center, customer concept document 
includes a conceptual site plan linked to an existing master 
plan, conceptual floor plans and elevations were linked to the 
Installation Design Guide and master plan design standards, 
conceptual building sections, a systems narrative, and a 
conceptual cost estimate. 

 
The report also includes a detailed program table, a summary 
of the vision and planning patterns for the facility, and 
renderings of the facility. In addition, an energy model of the 
proposed project identifies a path towards net-zero energy. 

 
The customer concept document enables the installation 
and MARFORRES to understand the implications of their 
requirements, validate the programmed areas and enable the 
project manager to facilitate design with a clear statement of 
customer requirements. 

 
The plan establishes a planning framework for the facilities, 
and will reduce the design time, limit design changes, and 
conserve design funds. 

Project Reference: 
Ms. Cyndi Skinner 
cynthia.a.skinner.civ@mail.mil 
503.570.1536 

 
Project Elements: 
• Existing Conditions Analysis 
• Vision and Principle Development 
• Utilities Analysis 
• Programming 
• Alternative Analysis 
• Parametric Cost Estimating 
• LEED Analysis 
• Conceptual Floor Plans, Elevations, 

Sections 
 

Above: East and West Elevations 
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Bird’s-Eye Perspective 

Building Rendering 

Site Analysis 
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WORK PRODUCT SAMPLES 
 

Alexandria, Louisiana 
Joint Operations Center, Customer Concept Document 
This Customer Concept Document outlines a comprehensive 
set of program requirements for the design and construction of 
a new Joint Operations Center at Fort Polk. 

 
A customer concept document includes a conceptual site 
plan linked to the installation’s Master Plan, conceptual floor 
plans for each floor linked to the Facility Standards, conceptual 
elevations for each side of the building linked to the Vision 
Plan, conceptual building sections, a systems narrative, and a 
conceptual cost estimate. All of these elements are created at 
the planning level. 

 
The report includes a detailed program table, a summary of 
the vision and planning patterns for the facility, and renderings 
of the facility. In addition, an energy model of the proposed 
project identifies a path for energy efficiency. A capital 
construction and design budget estimate based upon the 
architectural drawings, enable decision makers to plan for 
funding. These are all conceptual planning documents only 
and are not to be used for construction. 

 
This customer concept document will enable the client to 
understand the implications of their requirements, validate 
the programmed areas and enable the project manager 
to facilitate design with a clear statement of customer 
requirements. It establishes a planning framework for the 
facility, and will reduce the design time, limit design changes, 
and conserve design funds. 

Project Reference: 
Mr. Joey Ball 
joey.b.ball@usace.army.mil 
817.886.1878 

 
Project Elements: 
• Existing Conditions Analysis 
• Vision and Principle Development 
• Utilities Analysis 
• Programming 
• Alternative Analysis 
• Parametric Cost Estimating 
• Energy Modeling 
• Conceptual Floor Plans, Elevations, 

Sections 
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Bird’s-Eye Perspective 

Ground Perspective 
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PROJECT COST 
 

 
 
 

Project Budget 

Community Facilities Study Tasks 
 

Total Cost 
 

Total Hours 
Stakeholder Interviews and Engagement $1,050.00 15 
Conceptual Plans Development $12,650.00 235 
Public Community Workshop $2,200.00 32 
Summary Planning Document and Cost Estimate $7,900.00 133 
Meetings and Presentations $700.00 10 
Total Burdened Labor Cost $24,500.00  

Travel, Printing, & Other Direct Costs $390.00  

TOTALS $24,890.00 425 
 
 

Assumptions 
1. The City of Lowell and will provide background information, maps, and other technical knowledge. 
2. The City of Lowell will be responsible for printing all draft and final deliverables other than materials used 
during meetings. 
3. In-person meetings include two steering committee meetings, one public community workshop, and one City 
Council presentation. 
4. The City of Lowell will coordinate outreach and public communication. 

 
 
 
 
 

Hourly Rates and Estimated Hours for Each Team Member 

Fully Burdened 
Position Estimated Hours Hourly Rates 
Senior Architect 13 $150 
Project Manager 75 $90 
Senior Planner 14 $90 
Architectural Designer 162 $50 
Assistant Planner 161 $40 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
The Urban Collaborative has the capability to 
provide final design construction documents and 
specifications, energy modeling, LEED certification 
assistance (Neighborhood Development, Building 
Design and Construction, Interior Design and 
Construction), additional renderings and physical 
model making, construction administration, bid 
management, owners rep services, value engineering, 
design management if another firm is selected for the 
final design. 

20 

For example, the Urban Collaborative can assist the 
city to identify a team to prepare the construction 
drawings and coordinate that process. Additionally, 
we can assist the city to identify a contractor team to 
build the project using a design-bid-build or design-bid 
approach and serve as the Owner’s Representative 
through the entire process. We can help manage the 
financing process as well. 
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AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
December January 12, 2019 
2019 City Council Meeting Calendar 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

SUMMARY: 
A copy of the proposed 2019 City Council Meeting Calendar is attached for review. The 
second meeting in December is proposed to be cancelled to allow staff and councilors time 
for holiday arrangements. Meetings are proposed to be held at Lowell City Hall, except for 
the December meeting, which is proposed for the PDC at Lundy Elementary to accommodate 
my evaluation. The approved calendar will be posted on the City website. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
1. Motion to approve the 2019 City Council Meeting Calendar, as presented. 
2. Motion to approve the 2019 City Council Meeting Calendar, as amended. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to approve the 2019 City Council Meeting Calendar, as presented. 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 2019 City Council Meeting Calendar 

 
 
 

 



1 1/12/2019 10:36 PMJared Cobb

 January 15, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 February 5, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 February 19, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 March 5, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 March 19, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 April 2, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 April 16, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 May 7, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452
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 May 21, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 June 4, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 June 18, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 July 2, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 July 16, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 August 6, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 August 20, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 September 3, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452
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 September 17, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 October 1, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 October 15, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 November 5, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Work Session -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 November 19, 2019
 Tuesday
7:00 PM - 9:00 PM City Council Meeting -- Lowell City Hall, 107 East Third Street, Lowell, OR 97452

 

 December 3, 2019
 Tuesday
5:30 PM - 9:00 PM Lowell City Council Executive Session, Work Session, and Regular Meeting -- Professional Development 

Center, Lundy Elementary School, 45 South Moss Street, Lowell, OR 97452
 



 
      

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
Ford Family Foundation Grant 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

SUMMARY: 
The Ford Family Foundation has awarded the City a $5,000 grant to hire Rural Development 
Initiatives (RDI) for Small Business Organizational Assistance. If approved, RDI will engage 
stakeholders in Lowell, Fall Creek, Dexter and Pleasant Hill to: 1) determine if there is a need 
for an economic development organization and, if desired, 2) develop a plan for creating a 
sustainable economic development organization. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Match in the amount of $500 is available for the project. RDI is also providing $1,500 in grant 
assistance. 
 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
1. Motion to approve the grant agreement for Small Business Organizational Assistance 

with The Ford Family Foundation and authorize the City Administrator to sign the 
agreement. 

2. No action. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to approve the grant agreement for Small Business Organizational Assistance with 
The Ford Family Foundation and authorize the City Administrator to sign the agreement. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. The Ford Family Foundation Grant Agreement 
2. Rural Development Initiatives Project Proposal  
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THE FORD FAMILY FOUNDATION 
1600 NW Stewart Parkway, Roseburg, OR 97471 

 
 

Grant Agreement 

    

A. Requirements 
1. This grant is made subject to the condition that the entire amount will be expended for the purposes stated 

above and substantially in the manner described in the materials you have provided to the Foundation.  Grant 
funds shall not be used for, or charged to grant development or management costs or other “overhead or 
administrative” charges unless explicitly approved by the Foundation.  Grant funds shall not be used for or to 
carry out propaganda, or otherwise to attempt to influence legislation within the meaning of Internal Revenue 
Code § 4945(d)(1) and the corresponding Treasury Regulations. 

 
2. Foundation approval must be obtained for any modification of the objectives, use of expenditures or the agreed 

time period of the project for which grant funds have been awarded. 
 
3. The Foundation must be promptly notified about any of the following during the grant period:  change in 

primary contact and key personnel of the project or organization; change in address or phone number; change 
in name of organization; or any development that significantly affects the operation of the project or the 
organization. 

 
4. The Grantee will provide the Foundation with the project report(s) and evaluation(s) described in Section D. 

Project Reports and Evaluations of this Agreement.  The primary contact will be responsible for completing all 
reporting requirements; our records indicate that Mr. Jared Cobb is the primary contact for this grant. 

 
5. The Grantee will abide by all provisions of this Agreement and will keep adequate supporting records to 

document the expenditure of funds and the activities supported by these funds. 
 
6. If the Grantee fails or becomes unable for any reason in the opinion of the Foundation to perform the specific 

project within the specified Grant Period, unless extended by the Foundation; or if conditions arise that make 
the project untenable; or if Grantee materially breaches this Agreement, all grant funds that may be deemed 
unearned, unjustified or inappropriately expended must be returned to or withheld by The Ford Family 
Foundation.  The Foundation maintains the right to nullify the grant in such circumstances. 

 
B. Payment 
1. Once the signed Agreement is received by the Foundation the grant check(s) will be released as follows: 
 

2/15/2019 $5,000.00  Contingent 
 

 
 
 

GRANTEE: City of Lowell GRANT ID:    20180762   
 PO BOX 490 

Lowell, OR 97452 
 

 
 

GRANT AMOUNT:       $5,000.00 
 
PROJECT TITLE: Economic Development Project – Lowell, Dexter, Pleasant Hill, Fall Creek 

 
GRANT PERIOD:   3 months, January 1, 2019 to March 31, 2019 
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2. Grant payments are contingent upon the Grantee conducting the program or project to the Foundation’s 

reasonable satisfaction within the time specified (see A.6.) and for the specific use as outlined in section H. of 
this Agreement. 
 

C. Unexpended Funds 
If the funds have not been completely expended at the end of the grant period the Grantee agrees to immediately 
notify the Foundation and provide a statement of the balance.  The Foundation may request a plan for using the 
remaining funds.  The Grantee should not return funds without consultation with the Foundation.  The Foundation 
will approve or disapprove Grantee’s plan in writing.  Unexpended funds, which must be returned to the 
Foundation, shall be refunded pursuant to the Foundation’s instructions. 
 
D. Reports and Evaluations 
The Foundation and Grantee need certain data to properly evaluate the progress, success and the impact made by 
this grant. During the grant period Grantee will be required to submit to the Foundation specific reports which may 
include interim progress, financial, annual and/or a final report.  Grantee is required to access the reports through 
the online account. 
 
E. IRS Status 
It is the understanding of the Foundation that the Grantee organization has obtained a determination from the 
Internal Revenue Service that it qualifies as a section 501(c)(3) organization or that it is a governmental unit 
described in Section 170(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue code.  Grantee is classified as not a private foundation under 
Section 509(a) of the Code.  If there is any change in the Grantee’s status or classification, the Grantee must 
promptly notify the Foundation.  In the event of loss of tax exempt status under Federal laws, any unspent funds 
must be returned to the Foundation. 
 
F. Publicity 
If the Grantee wishes to publicize the grant, the Foundation requests that the focus be on the project and the 
Grantee without calling unnecessary attention to the Foundation.  We prefer being mentioned in conjunction with 
other donors, and do not require any special recognition.  Please see attached policy on how to publicize the grant.   
 
G. Legal, Ethical and Responsible Conduct 
The Ford Family Foundation expects all Grantees to maintain the highest standards of behavior at all times with 
priority on individual and community safety, obeying the law, managing finances with integrity, treating others 
with respect, accurately representing information, maintaining academic honesty and respecting intellectual 
property rights and protecting youth and the vulnerable.  At its sole discretion, the Foundation may revoke a grant 
award to a Grantee observed engaging in any of the following prohibited behaviors: 

 Discrimination based on race, color, gender, religion, marital status, national origin, sexual orientation, 
political affiliation, age or any other characteristic protected under federal or state law. 

 Serious violations of federal, state, or local law 
 Physical, verbal or sexual abuse or harassment 
 Neglect of the needs of children, youth or vulnerable populations 
 Misrepresentation of information 
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H. Special Conditions 
These funds are for Economic Development Project – Lowell, Dexter, Pleasant Hill, Fall Creek as set forth in the 
proposal submitted to the Foundation on October 31, 2018, which was approved by the Foundation on January 7, 
2019, and are contingent on the following:  
 

1/15/2019 Signed Grant Agreement Release of funds contingent on receipt of signed Agreement 
 

 

5/31/2019 Technical Assistance Final Report   
 
If this document correctly sets forth your understanding of the terms of this grant, please countersign this 
Agreement and return all pages of the original document to The Ford Family Foundation. 
 
The Ford Family Foundation 
 

 City of Lowell 

 
Anne C. Kubisch 
President 
 

 By:  
___________________________________________ 
 
Name: _____________________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________________ 
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Publicizing an Award from The Ford Family Foundation 
The Ford Family Foundation encourages non-profit organizations to raise public awareness about their work. The 
Foundation does not seek public recognition. However, we understand that receiving funds from a foundation adds 
legitimacy to your work and provides a newsworthy opportunity to raise awareness about what you do. We 
encourage you to publicize your award, grant or fellowship as long as you characterize the award as it appears in 
your grant or fellowship agreement. 
 
We request that the focus be on the project and/or your non-profit organization without calling attention to the 
Foundation. We prefer being mentioned in conjunction with other donors; we do not require any special 
recognition. 
 
Please note that The Ford Family Foundation was created by the personal philanthropy of Kenneth W. Ford and 
Hallie E. Ford and is not connected with Roseburg Forest Products Co. Also note that "The" is capitalized in our 
name. To describe the Foundation in your media publicity, you can use this statement: 
 

The Ford Family Foundation was established in 1957 by Kenneth W. and Hallie E. Ford. Its mission is 
“successful citizens and vital rural communities” in Oregon and Siskiyou County, California. The Foundation 
is located in Roseburg, Oregon, with a Scholarship office in Eugene. 
 

Press Releases / Approval 
Please send a draft of your press release to your Foundation program officer who will review it, and then he or she 
will forward it to the Foundation's communications director for approval. 
 
Use of The Ford Family Foundation Logo / Approval 
The Ford Family Foundation logo is available for use on printed and electronic material (such as newsletters, 
reports, programs, web pages — also see "Inappropriate Use of Logo" below). The logo should be used in its 
entirety according to The Ford Family Foundation Style Guide. Depiction of the Foundation logo should be small 
and discreet. 
 
Please send a draft to your Foundation program officer who will review the material, and then he or she will 
forward it to the Foundation's communications director for approval. 
  
How to Obtain The Ford Family Foundation Logo 
To obtain the logo and the Style Guide, send a request to your Foundation program officer. He or she will review 
the request, and then he or she will forward the request to the Foundation's communications director for action. 
The logo is available in two formats: .eps, .jpg (color and B&W). 
 
Inappropriate Use of The Ford Family Foundation Logo / Name 
The Ford Family Foundation logo and name are not allowed on exterior signage, banners, billboards or vehicles. If 
in doubt, please contact your Foundation program officer. 
  
Naming Rights 
Our Founders' names (Kenneth Ford, Hallie Ford, Ford Family) cannot be used without Board and Family approval 
(for example, naming a room, building, facility or program). 
 
 

The Ford Family Foundation • (541) 957-5574 • 1600 NW Stewart Parkway • Roseburg OR 97471 
Last updated March 20, 2014 
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April 17, 2018  

Amended:  July 11, 2018 

 

TO:   Jared Cobb, City Administrator 

 City of Lowell, Oregon 

 

FROM:   Michael Held, Director of Rural Economic & Policy Services 

 Mary Bosch, Senior Project Manager – Economic Vitality 

 

RE: Proposal for Small Business Organizational Assistance 

 

In follow up to our recent conversation about ways to encourage a business network in the Lowell area, 

this proposal outlines a straightforward approach for your consideration.  It focuses on hearing from the 

business community, defining their needs and interests and the best fit in terms of an organization or 

network.  It does not include implementation steps.  This work can be completed in 8-10 weeks from the 

start. Once we agree on the approach, we will put together a budget.  

 
Background and Purpose 

 Lowell, Dexter, Pleasant Hill and Fall Creek exist as an interdependent cluster of communities along 

the Highway 58 spine, sharing school and fire districts among other services.    

 The business base is small with Pleasant Hill and Lowell having the greatest concentrations.  

 No chamber of commerce or other similar organization exists for business networking, entrepreneur 

support and development or business assistance.  RAIN and Lane County have provided some 

services.  Lowell has an Economic Development Committee that serves as an advisory group to the 

City and is interested in business marketing and support. 

 The City of Lowell reached out to RDI to request assistance with 1. Determining the needs of local 

small businesses to help them remain vital and expand; and 2. Identifying the appropriate, best 

suited business network or organization (chamber of other) to provide a way for businesses to 

connect to and support each other and the residents/visitors they serve 

SCOPE OF WORK 

We’ve outlined a 3-Phase Scope of Work to explore the formation of a local business organization in the 

Lowell area.   

1. Business Listening 
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 Engage with key members of the Economic Development Committee (EDC) to ensure their 

support for the approach outlined below and to secure their help in connecting to local 

businesses. 

 This phase includes outreach to the Lowell area business community (about 40 including key 

home based businesses) through small group meetings in each community and interviews to ask 

about needs and interests.   Assume approximately three meetings. 

 RDI will organize the process but will depend on local contacts for introductions to and some PR 

assistance to create awareness and participation by businesses.  

 Synthesize and summarize the results of this work will provide direction for moving forward. 

Sample draft questions include: 

 What does your business need from a business organization?  (e.g., connect to customers, 

connect to businesses, technical assistance and training, promote the Lowell area business 

community, organize events to promote community, shop local campaigns, connect to 

resources, etc?) 

 What type of organization would you be interested in joining and participating in?   (e.g., 

Marketing, Networking, Tourism, Business Attraction, Learning, etc.) 

 What is the most important value/outcome you’d like to receive to make your participation 

worthwhile? 

 What would it take for you to make time to participate in a new network? Specifically, what 

types of ‘get togethers’ or services would be useful to you? 

 What is your interest in participating at the ground level in a new organization?  

 What’s the best way to reach you? 

 

2. Research Examples of Success 

 

 Identify up to five case studies of how small towns are adapting to a changing business market 

with new iterations of old business networking models.  E.g.  Young Entrepreneurs and 

Professional Society of Umpqua Valley, Business Meet-up groups, Pub Talks, etc.  

 Identify any best practices to guide a new organization, structure and approach given the limited 

local capacity of Lowell area. 

 

3. Get Organized  

 

 Summarize learning from Phases 1 and 2 in short report and PowerPoint presentation. 

 Identify and map out one or more new organization models that appear to be a fit with the 

Lowell area business community. 

 Pull together a small local core team who can serve as sounding board and launch group for next 

steps.   Layout group purpose, leadership, structure, goals and actions for near future. 

It is anticipated that a total of 4 trips are needed to Lowell/nearby communities to complete this 

assignment. 
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BUDGET 

The total budget for the work outlined above is $7,000 inclusive of all expenses.  A proposed breakdown 

of funding sources is as follows:  

$5,000 – The Ford Family Foundation Technical Assistance Grant 

$1,500 – RDI Business Retention/Expansion Program 

$500—City of Lowell 

 

 



 
      

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY  

 

 

 
TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 
 

Mayor Bennett and Council 
Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
January 12, 2019 
Memorandum of Understanding 
Rural Development Initiatives 

 DISCUSSION 
 ACTION 
 RESOLUTION 
 ORDINANCE 
 PROCLAMATION 
 REPORT 

SUMMARY: 
This item is related to the preceding agenda item. The Ford Family Foundation has awarded 
the City a $5,000 grant to hire Rural Development Initiatives (RDI) for Small Business 
Organizational Assistance. Staff is awaiting an MOU from RDI for the City Council to review 
and consider. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Ford Family Foundation has provided $5,000, RDI provided $1,500, and the City would 
match $500. 
 
 

COURSES OF ACTION: 
1. Motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Rural Development 

Initiatives for Small Business Organizational Assistance in an amount not to exceed 
$5,500. 

2. No action. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Rural Development Initiatives 
for Small Business Organizational Assistance in an amount not to exceed $5,500. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Memorandum of Understanding (to be attached) 
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Memorandum of Understanding 
Between Rural Development Initiatives, Inc. (RDI)  

And 
City of Lowell 

 
This agreement is entered into by both parties with the understanding that RDI will perform the 
services described under Section A and will be compensated by City of Lowell as described in 
Section B. 

 
Section A 

Scope of Work and Time Line 
 
RDI will deliver Small Business Organizational Assistance to the City of Lowell between February 
1, 2019 and April 30, 2019.  
 
See Attachment A for a detailed scope of work. 
 

Section B 
Compensation 

 
RDI’s fee to complete the scope of work will be $5,500.00. (A thirty party is funding the 
remaining $1,500 cost.) 
 
RDI will submit an invoice for 50% payment upon execution of this contract and the remaining 
50% at completion of the contract.  

 
 

Acceptance 
 
The following signatures indicate agreement to the terms as outlined above. 
 
 
__________________________                        _____________________________ 
Signature      Signature 
Heidi Khokhar, Executive Director   Jared Cobb, City Administrator 
Rural Development Initiatives    City of Lowell 
150 Shelton-McMurphey Blvd, Ste 201  107 East Third Street 
Eugene, OR  97401     Lowell, OR 97452 

     
 
Dated ______________________   Dated _________________________ 
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Attachment A 
 

3-Phase Scope of Work to explore the formation of a local business organization in the Lowell area.   

1. Business Listening 
a. Engage with key members of the Economic Development Committee (EDC) to ensure their 

support for the approach outlined below and to secure their help in connecting to local 
businesses. 

b. This phase includes outreach to the Lowell area business community (about 40 including key 
home based businesses) through small group meetings in each community and interviews to ask 
about needs and interests.   Assume approximately three meetings. 

c. RDI will organize the process but will depend on local contacts for introductions to and some PR 
assistance to create awareness and participation by businesses.  

d. Synthesize and summarize the results of this work will provide direction for moving forward. 
 
Sample draft questions include: 
 What does your business need from a business organization?  (e.g., connect to customers, 

connect to businesses, technical assistance and training, promote the Lowell area business 
community, organize events to promote community, shop local campaigns, connect to 
resources, etc?) 

 What type of organization would you be interested in joining and participating in?   (e.g., 
Marketing, Networking, Tourism, Business Attraction, Learning, etc.) 

 What is the most important value/outcome you would like to receive to make your participation 
worthwhile? 

 What would it take, for you to make time to participate in a new network? Specifically, what 
types of “get togethers” or services would be useful to you? 

 What is your interest in participating at the ground level in a new organization?  
 What is the best way to reach you? 

 
2. Research Examples of Success 

a. Identify up to five case studies of how small towns are adapting to a changing business market 
with new iterations of old business networking models.  E.g.  Young Entrepreneurs and 
Professional Society of Umpqua Valley, Business Meet-up groups, Pub Talks, etc.  

b. Identify any best practices to guide a new organization, structure and approach given the limited 
local capacity of Lowell area. 

 
3. Get Organized  

a. Summarize learning from Phases 1 and 2 in short report and PowerPoint presentation. 
b. Identify and map out one or more new organization models that appear to be a fit with the 

Lowell area business community. 
c. Pull together a small local core team who can serve as sounding board and launch group for next 

steps.   Layout group purpose, leadership, structure, goals and actions for near future. 

It is anticipated that a total of four trips are needed to Lowell/nearby communities to complete this 
assignment. 
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